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SUMMARY INFORMATION

Section A: Introduction and warnings

Summaries are made up of disclosure requirements known as “Elements”. These elements are numbered in
Sections A – E (A.1 – E.7).

This summary contains all the Elements required to be included in a summary for this type of securities and
issuer. Because some Elements are not required to be addressed, there may be gaps in the numbering
sequence of the Elements.

Even though an Element may be required to be inserted in the summary because of the type of securities and
issuer, it is possible that no relevant information can be given regarding the Element. In this case a short
description of the Element is included in the summary with the mention of “not applicable”.

Section A – Introduction and warnings

Element Disclosure requirement Disclosure

A.1 This summary should be read as an introduction to this
Prospectus. Any decision to invest in Ordinary Shares should be
based on consideration of this Prospectus as a whole and not just
solely on this summary. Where a claim relating to the
information contained in this Prospectus is brought before a
court in a member state of the European Economic Area, the
claimant investor might, under the national legislation of that
member state, be required to bear the costs of translating this
Prospectus before the legal proceedings are initiated. Following
the implementation of the relevant provisions of the Prospectus
Directive in each member state of the European Economic Area,
civil liability will attach to the persons who are responsible for
this summary, including any translation thereof, in such member
state but only if the summary is misleading, inaccurate or
inconsistent when read together with the other parts of this
Prospectus or it does not provide, when read together with the
other parts of this Prospectus, key information in order to aid
investors when considering whether to invest in Ordinary
Shares.

A.2 Not applicable. No such consent is included in this Prospectus.

Section B – Issuer

Element Disclosure requirement Disclosure

B.1 PuriCore plc

B.2 PuriCore is a company limited by shares, is incorporated in and
operates under the laws of England and Wales, and is domiciled
in the United Kingdom.

I 5.1.1Legal and Commercial
name

Domicile and legal form,
applicable legislation,
country of incorporation

Consent for intermediaries
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Element Disclosure requirement Disclosure

B.3 PuriCore is a water-based, clean technology company
developing and commercialising proprietary solutions that
protect people from the spread of infectious pathogens without
causing harm to human health or the environment. PuriCore’s
antimicrobial technology and complementary products are used
principally in well-established core businesses and emerging
sectors of two broad markets: Health Sciences and Food &
Agriculture.

In the Health Sciences market, PuriCore is a leading provider of
a broad suite of products and services for compliant endoscopic
decontamination in NHS and private hospitals. In the US,
PuriCore’s Wound Care technology is used by hospitals, wound
care centres, nursing homes, and home healthcare providers to
treat chronic and acute wounds. The Wound Care technology
also provides partnership opportunities in new Health Sciences
segments including Dermatology and Animal Health.

In the Food & Agriculture market both Sterilox Fresh and
FloraFresh Solution provide savings to supermarket retailers in
labour costs and improvements in inventory loss of fresh
produce and floral products. Sterilox Fresh is also used to
sanitise fresh fruits and vegetables in US and Canadian
supermarkets. In addition, the Company is progressing in its
research and development programmes at Oxford University on
the use of its technology as an agricultural fungicide.

B.4a Migration to Bottled Solutions: PuriCore migrated to bottled
solution in the Wound Care segment in 2011. Based on this
success, late in 2012, the Company developed and produced its
first bottled FloraFresh concentrate product, replacing the
FloraFresh System. For the Floral business, this new product
format eliminates the need for System sales, manufacturing,
capital investment, inventory carrying, installations, and service
and provides for a long-term stream of recurring revenues
generated from these consumable products. PuriCore is
investigating further bottled solutions for various new and
existing market segments.

Increasing Recurring Revenues: The Company has continued
to shift its strategy to sales that generate recurring revenues,
which comprise rental or lease agreements, service contracts,
bottled products, disinfectant chemistry, managed services, and
consumables. The Company’s strategy is to increase both the
amount and percentage of recurring revenues. This strategy
reduces the potential impact of capital spending delays by large
customers, including both the NHS and larger supermarket
retailers in the US. In the UK, recurring revenues have been
increased by driving additional revenues from the installed base
through contracts from the new installations coming out of
warranty, the offering of private-labelled chemistries, and
service contract price increases for some of the legacy products,
combined with the new catalogue of surgical consumables.

Significant recent trends
affecting the Company and
the industries in which it
operates

Description of, and key
factors relating to, the
nature of the issuer’s
current operations and its
principal activities

I 12.1
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Element Disclosure requirement Disclosure

Business Development and Formulation Expansion:
PuriCore is pursuing additional marketing partnerships with
established distributors and marketers to capitalise on
opportunities for rapid market penetration and revenue growth,
whilst requiring limited investment. In the Wound Care segment,
the Company is in discussions with marketing partners who are
well-established to gain quicker distribution and sales growth in
the US and in international markets for its prescription product.
To support these new opportunities, PuriCore is pursuing
broader regulatory approvals to permit more claims/indications
for use as well as new product formats and formulations. In new
areas such as Water Treatment, PuriCore is partnering with
Lohas Products GmbH, to develop products for new applications
in this segment.

B.5 The Company was incorporated on 21 April 2006 and is the
parent company of the PuriCore Group, which comprises
PuriCore International Limited and PuriCore, Inc.

PuriCore International Limited is the UK operating company
and PuriCore, Inc. is the US operating company.

B.6 As at 18 December 2012 (being the latest practicable date prior
to the publication of this document), the Company is aware that
the following persons were interested in 3 per cent. or more of
the issued share capital of the Company.

No. of Percentage of
Existing Existing

Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares

Fund Manager/Owner
Invesco Perpetual 4,345,766 17.18 per cent.
Woolwich International Holdings
Limited 2,727,573 10.78 per cent.

Kanton Services Limited 2,050,087 8.11 per cent.
Oracle Management Limited 1,604,725 6.34 per cent.
Gacita Limited 1,268,898 5.02 per cent.
Brooks Macdonald Asset
Management 1,154,132 4.56 per cent.

Mr. Stewart Newton 1,096,732 4.34 per cent.

Save as disclosed above, PuriCore is not aware of any persons
who, as at 18 December 2012 (being the latest practicable date
prior to the publication of this document), directly or indirectly,
jointly or severally, will exercise or could exercise control over
PuriCore, nor is it aware of any arrangements the operation of
which may at a subsequent date result in a change of control of
PuriCore.

None of the Shareholders referred to above has or will have
different voting rights from any other Shareholder in respect of
any Ordinary Shares held by them.

Description of the PuriCore
Group and PuriCore’s 
position in the Group

Persons who have an 
interest in PuriCore’s capital 
or voting rights which is
notifiable under English law
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Element Disclosure requirement Disclosure

B.7 The selected financial information set out below for the three
years ended 31 December 2011 has been extracted without
material adjustment from the audited financial statements of the
Group for those periods as set out in this document. The interim
financial information for the period ended 30 June 2012 has
been extracted without material adjustment from the unaudited
interim financial statements of the Group for such period as set
out in this document.

Save for the impact of two contracts announced by the Company
on 9 October 2012, which are expected to generate respective
revenues of US$7 million and US$2 million, there has been no
significant change in the financial or trading position of the
Company since 30 June 2012 (being the date to which the
unaudited interim financial statements of the Group were
prepared).

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income:
2009 2010 2011 H1 2011 H1 2012

$ $ $ $ $

Revenue 40,034,561 40,451,690 42,554,284 18,755,237 25,349,219
Cost of sales (29,956,684) (26,876,418) (30,048,322) (13,617,212) (16,985,839)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Gross Profit 10,077,877 13,575,272 12,505,962 5,138,025 8,363,380
Sales and marketing expenses (8,279,480) (5,744,900) (4,577,176) (2,425,420) (2,459,136)
General and administrative
expenses (9,308,617) (11,180,755) (10,231,238) (5,991,615) (4,690,232)

Research and development
expenses (2,969,644) (4,858,714) (4,394,312) (2,155,786) (2,094,428)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Loss before Interest and Tax (10,479,864) (8,209,097) (6,696,764) (5,434,796) (880,416)
Finance costs (654,437) (1,533,537) (2,446,620) (1,204,924) (655,300)
Finance income 198,013 47,937 14,567 10,073 14,979

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Net Finance Loss (456,424) (1,485,600) (2,432,053) (1,194,851) (640,321)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Loss before Taxation (10,936,288) (9,694,697) (9,128,817) (6,629,647) (1,520,737)
Taxation – – – – 65,943

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Loss for the Period (10,936,288) (9,694,697) (9,128,817) (6,629,647) (1,454,794)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Other Comprehensive Income:
Foreign currency translation
for foreign operations 467,966 32,627 306,467 (870,894) (78,751)

Total comprehensive loss
for the period (10,468,322) (9,662,070) (8,822,350) (7,500,541) (1,533,545)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Loss Attributable to:
Equity Holders of the Parent (10,936,288) (9,694,697) (9,128,817) (6,629,647) (1,454,794)
Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent (10,468,322) (9,662,070) (8,822,350) (7,500,541) (1,533,545)
–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––

Basic and Diluted Loss
Per Share (0.05) (0.43) (0.37) (0.28) (0.06)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––

Selected historical key
financial information
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Element Disclosure requirement Disclosure

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position:
2009 2010 2011 H1 2011 H1 2012

$ $ $ $ $

ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Intangible assets 9,195,919 8,282,314 5,942,801 6,906,018 5,514,696
Property, plant, and equipment 5,063,126 5,511,789 3,678,337 4,762,437 3,494,462
Restricted cash 700,825
Trade and other receivables 391,836 386,328 117,007 273,024 73,831

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Total Non Current Assets 15,351,706 14,180,431 9,738,145 11,941,479 9,082,989
Current Assets
Inventories 6,358,070 7,015,494 4,995,227 6,587,845 6,221,804
Trade and other receivables 8,680,894 9,715,678 9,817,220 8,140,658 7,052,913
Restricted cash 350,413 1,157,287
Cash and cash equivalents 4,300,195 4,035,785 4,490,746 3,762,715 4,722,367

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Total Current Assets 19,689,572 21,924,244 19,303,193 18,491,218 17,997,084

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Total Assets 35,041,278 36,104,675 29,041,338 30,432,697 27,080,073

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables (10,650,876) (12,037,159) (12,904,187) (12,992,928) (13,989,333)
Loans and borrowings (4,980,089) (15,473,817) (3,609,614) (15,078,095) (2,123,383)
Provisions (95,999) (95,999) (72,629) (95,999) (73,391)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Total Current Liabilities (15,726,964) (27,606,975) (16,586,430) (28,167,022) (16,186,107)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Non Current Liabilities
Loans and borrowings (3,600,097) (2,097,797) (12,729,762) (1,337,360) (12,653,062)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Total Non Current Liabilities (3,600,097) (2,097,797) (12,729,762) (1,337,360) (12,653,062)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Total Liabilities (19,327,061) (29,704,772) (29,316,192) (29,504,382) (28,839,169)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Net Assets 15,714,217 6,399,903 (274,854) 928,315 (1,759,096)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
EQUITY
Share capital 4,114,288 4,114,288 4,527,883 4,483,312 4,527,883
Share premium 161,418,604 161,418,604 163,082,712 162,998,021 163,082,712
Other reserves 7,971,622 8,319,378 8,389,268 8,399,890 8,438,571
Retained earnings (155,533,439)(165,228,136)(174,356,953)(171,857,783) (175,811,747)
Cumulative translation
adjustment (2,256,858) (2,224,231) (1,917,764) (3,095,125) (1,996,515)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Issued capital and reserves
attributable to equity
holders of the parent 15,714,217 6,399,903 (274,854) 928,315 (1,759,096)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Total Equity 15,714,217 6,399,903 (274,854) 928,315 (1,759,096)–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
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Element Disclosure Requirement Disclosure

Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement:
2009 2010 2011 H1 2011 H1 2012

$ $ $ $ $
Cash Flows From 
Operating Activities

Loss for the period (10,936,288) (9,694,697) (9,128,817) (6,629,647) (1,454,794)
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 654,437 1,533,537 2,446,620 1,204,924 655,300
Finance income (198,013) (47,937) (14,567) (10,073) (14,979)
Depreciation and amortisation 3,755,101 3,650,779 4,424,939 1,715,837 1,555,620
Share based payment expense 654,459 347,756 69,890 80,512 49,303
Loss on disposal of property,
plant, and equipment 302,479 124,890 445,496 354,429 23,338

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Operating Income/(Loss) 
Before Movement In
Working Capital (5,767,825) (4,085,672) (1,756,439) (3,284,018) 813,788

(Increase)/Decrease in
inventories (1,398,888) (657,424) 2,020,267 427,649 (1,226,577)

(Increase)/Decrease in trade
and other receivables (928,524) (699,784) (1,202,497) 973,480 2,212,586

(Decrease)/Increase in trade
and other payables (281,759) 1,325,559 867,028 230,566 1,085,146

Increase in provisions 2,127 – – – –
–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––

Cash (Absorbed)/Generated
By Operations (8,374,869) (4,117,321) (71,641) (1,652,323) 2,884,943

Interest received 198,013 47,937 14,567 10,073 14,979
–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––

Net Cash From Operating
Activities (8,176,856) (4,069,384) (57,074) (1,642,250) 2,899,922

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Cash Flows From
Investing Activities

Purchase of property, plant
and equipment (2,990,269) (2,531,044) (656,100) (331,703) (599,319)

Purchase of subsidiary (3,351,916) – – – –
Purchase of intangible assets (1,452,707) – – – (312,300)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Net Cash Flow From 
Activities (7,794,892) (2,531,044) (656,100) (331,703) (911,619)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Cash Flows From Financing
Investing Activities

Issue of shares, options,
and warrants 3,344,200 – 2,077,704 1,948,441 –

Proceeds from new loan notes 2,727,103 13,827,163 4,817,735 – 1,663,980
Net debt issuance cost (1,092,230) (66,000) 714,844 –
Repayment of borrowings (5,098,388) (5,288,434) (5,946,385) (400,746) (3,369,856)
Interest paid on borrowings (526,796) (770,799) (1,010,344) (1,204,924) (60,403)
Repayments of obligations
under finance leases (81,513) (59,182) (53,988) (30,210) –

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Net Cash Flow From 
Financing Activities 364,606 6,616,518 (181,278) 1,027,405 (1,766,279)

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Net (Decrease)/Increase In 
Cash And Cash Equivalents (15,607,142) 16,090 (894,452) (946,548) 222,024

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 20,650,460 5,351,433 5,193,072 5,193,072 4,490,746

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes on cash held 308,115 (174,451) 192,126 (483,809) 9,597

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,300,195 4,035,785 4,490,746 3,762,715 4,722,367

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Restricted Cash 1,051,238 1,157,287 – – –

–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Total Cash at End of Period 5,351,433 5,193,072 4,490,746 3,762,715 4,722,367–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
KPMG Audit Plc, the auditors of the Group, issued an
unqualified audit opinion in respect of the financial years ended
31 December 2011, 2010 and 2009.  The audit reports in respect
of the financial years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009
included an emphasis of matter in relation to a material
uncertainty in relation to the going concern of the Group due to
the risks inherent in the forecasts of the Group.

B.8 The Conversion and the issue of the Interest Shares will reduce
PuriCore’s liabilities and borrowings by £7,773,245 and will
increase PuriCore’s existing share capital by £7,773,245,
comprising a £1,943,311 increase in the nominal share capital of
the Company and a £5,829,934 increase in share premium.

Pro forma financial
information 

I 20.2
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Element Disclosure requirement Disclosure

The issue of the Placing Shares will increase PuriCore’s cash
and cash equivalents (excluding expenses) by £2,302,000 and
will increase PuriCore’s existing share capital by £2,302,000,
comprising a £535,349 increase in the nominal share capital of
the Company and a £1,766,651 increase in share premium.

The aggregate impact of the Conversion, the issue of Interest
Shares and the Placing will be to increase PuriCore’s net assets
by £10,075,245.

Because of its nature, the pro forma financial information
addresses a hypothetical situation and, therefore, does not
represent PuriCore’s actual financial position or results.

B.9 Not applicable. This document does not contain profit forecasts
or estimates.

B.10 Not applicable. The audit reports on the historical financial
information contained in this document do not contain any
qualifications.

B.11 Working capital The Company does not have sufficient working capital for its
present requirements, that is for the next 12 months from the
date of this document.

The Company has in issue £7.95 million in aggregate nominal
amount of the Convertible Loan Notes which are due and
payable on 31 December 2013, if not previously converted in
whole or in part by Noteholders, at the option of the
Noteholders. The Company will therefore on 31 December 2013
have a maximum cash shortfall equal to £7.95 million, being the
aggregate nominal amount of the outstanding Convertible Loan
Notes on such date (the “Shortfall”).

The Company does not expect to be in a position to satisfy a
request for repayment by all or a substantial number of the
Noteholders in which event the Company may enter into
administration.

In the event the Company does enter into administration, the
Directors would no longer manage the affairs of the Company or
the realisation of its assets. As a result of entering into
administration, the Ordinary Shares would be cancelled from the
Official List and Shareholders may receive little or no value for
their Ordinary Shares.

In order to address the Shortfall, the Company has secured
agreement (subject to the passing of the Resolution) with certain
Noteholders for the variation to the conversion terms of the
Convertible Loan Note Instrument (the “Variation”) and
conversion of £7,575,000 in aggregate nominal amount of the
Convertible Loan Notes (the “Conversion”) and thereby
satisfying in aggregate 95.28 per cent. of the Shortfall. The
remaining £375,000 of unconverted Convertible Loan Notes, to
the extent unconverted by 31 December 2013, and to the extent
an election is made on such date to require repayment, will be
satisfied out of the net proceeds of the Placing.

Profit forecasts or
estimates

Nature of any
qualifications in the audit
report on the historical
financial information

ESMA 107-112

ESMA 116-123
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Section C – Securities

Element Disclosure requirement Disclosure

C.1 The securities being admitted to trading are Ordinary Shares of
the Company of 10 pence each, whose ISIN is
GB00B3XBCR18.

C.2 Pounds Sterling in respect of the Ordinary Shares and the New
Ordinary Shares.

C.3 The Company has 25,292,164 fully paid Ordinary Shares of
10 pence par value in issue. The Company has no partly paid
Ordinary Shares in issue or Ordinary Shares held in treasury.

C.4 Each holder of Ordinary Shares has the right to attend and speak
at meetings of Shareholders of the Company, to appoint one or
more proxies and, if they are corporations, corporate
representatives and to exercise voting rights.

Each Ordinary Share is entitled pari passu to dividend payments
or any other distribution.

Each Ordinary Share is entitled pari passu to participate in a
distribution arising from a winding up of the Company.

C.5 There are no restrictions on the transfer of Ordinary Shares other
than:

• certain restrictions may from time to time be imposed by
laws and regulations (for example, insider trading laws);

• pursuant to the Company’s share dealing code whereby the
Directors and certain employees of the Company require
approval of the Company to deal in Ordinary Shares; and

• where a person with at least a 0.25 per cent. interest in
Ordinary Shares held in certificated form has been served
with a disclosure notice and has failed to provide the
Company with information concerning interests in those
Ordinary Shares.

C.6 Application will be made to the Financial Services Authority
and the London Stock Exchange for all of the New Ordinary
Shares to be admitted to the Official List (by way of a premium
listing) under Chapter 6 of the Listing Rules and to trading on
the London Stock Exchange’s main market for listed securities.
The Ordinary Shares will not be listed on any other regulated
market.

C.7 Dividend policy The New Ordinary Shares will rank for all dividends and other
distributions (if any) declared, paid or made by PuriCore
following Admission. No dividends have been paid to date, and
for the foreseeable future the Group intends to retain all
available funds and any future earnings to fund the growth and
needs of the Group.

Type and class of the
securities being
admitted to trading

Currency of the
securities

LR 13.8.1(2)Number of shares in issue
and their par value

Rights attaching to the
Ordinary Shares

Restrictions on free
transferability of the
Ordinary Shares

Admission to trading on
regulated market

I 20.7.1
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Section D – Risks

Element Disclosure requirement Disclosure

D.1 • The Company has in issue £7.95 million in aggregate
nominal amount of the Convertible Loan Notes which are
due and payable on 31 December 2013, if not previously
converted in whole or in part by Noteholders, at the option of
the Noteholders. The Company will therefore on 31
December 2013 have a maximum cash shortfall equal to
£7.95 million, being the aggregate nominal amount of the
outstanding Convertible Loan Notes on such date (the
“Shortfall”).

In order to address the Shortfall, the Company has secured
agreement (subject to the passing of the Resolution) with
certain Noteholders for the variation to the conversion terms
of the Convertible Loan Note Instrument (the “Variation”)
and conversion of £7,575,000 in aggregate nominal amount of
the Convertible Loan Notes (the “Conversion”) and thereby
satisfying in aggregate 95.28 per cent. of the Shortfall. The
remaining £375,000 of unconverted Convertible Loan Notes,
to the extent unconverted by 31 December 2013, and to the
extent an election is made on such date to require repayment,
will be satisfied out of the net proceeds of the Placing.

In order to implement the Variation, the Conversion and the
Placing, a General Meeting of Shareholders is being
convened to approve the Resolution. The Variation, the
Conversion and the Placing are conditional upon the passing
of the Resolution. If Shareholders do not vote in favour of the
Resolution, the Variation, the Conversion and the Placing
will not proceed and the Convertible Loan Notes will remain
in issue.

In such an event there is a material risk that the Company
will not be in a position to satisfy a request for repayment by
all or a substantial number of the Noteholders, in which event
the Company may enter into administration. In such an
event, the Directors would no longer manage the affairs of
the Company or the realisation of its assets. As a result of
entering into administration, the Ordinary Shares would be
cancelled from the Official List and Shareholders may
receive little or no value for their Ordinary Shares.

• The Group has a significant concentration of sales revenue
derived from a few customers and failure to deliver products
and/or services to those customers, termination by any of
those customers of their agreements with the Group and/or a
reduction in spending by these customers could have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial
condition and results of operations in the form of reduced
revenues. 

• The Group has a history of operating losses and therefore
there can be no assurance that the Group will achieve net
profitability. 

Key risks specific to
PuriCore and the industries
in which it operates
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Element Disclosure requirement Disclosure

• The Group’s products are subject to various US, European
and other legislative and regulatory requirements. If the
Group or its third party manufacturers fail to satisfy
legislative and regulatory requirements, if legislative changes
or regulatory reform affect the Group’s ability to sell its
products profitably or at all, or if the Group is not able to
secure or renew regulatory clearance, this could have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial
condition and results of operations. 

• As the Group transitions to a recurring-revenue,
consumables-based revenue model, consumption levels may
not be as high as forecast and this could have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition
and results of operations if appropriate measures are not
taken to reduce costs in line with reduced sales. 

• The Group may be unable to adequately protect its
intellectual property and any misappropriation of or
challenge to its intellectual property rights, or failure to
obtain protection of or a licence in relation to such
intellectual property, could have a material adverse effect on
the Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operations and may require it to engage in costly litigation.

D.3 The Company’s share price may fluctuate significantly. The
share price may, in addition to being affected by the Group’s
actual or forecast operating results, fluctuate significantly as a
result of factors beyond the Company’s control and may not
always reflect the underlying asset value or the prospects of the
Company. Sales of Ordinary Shares by one or more major
Shareholders could have a material adverse effect on the share
price.

Section E – Issue

Element Disclosure requirement Disclosure

E.1 Total estimated net proceeds of the Placing are £1,632,000. Total
estimated expenses of the Proposals are £670,000.

E.2a The Company has conditionally raised approximately
£1,632,000, net of expenses, through the Placing of 5,353,488
Placing Shares at the price of 43 pence per Ordinary Share from
new and existing investors representing a premium of 1.18 per
cent. to the Closing Price of 42.5 pence per Ordinary Share on
18 December 2012, being the latest practicable date prior to the
publication of this document.

The Placing is conditional upon approval of the Resolution by
Shareholders at the General Meeting.

Risks specific to the
Ordinary Shares

Total estimated net proceeds
of the Placing and estimate
of the total expenses of the
Proposals

Reasons for the Placing, use
of proceeds, estimated net
amount of the proceeds



Element Disclosure requirement Disclosure

The net proceeds of the Placing, amounting to £1,632,000 will
be used as to £375,000 to be set aside to satisfy the unconverted
Convertible Loan Notes and £1,257,000 for working capital.

The Placing is expected to raise a gross amount of £2,302,000.
A portion of the gross Placing proceeds will be used to pay fees
in relation to the Proposals (£670,000). The Placing has been
fully underwritten by Peel Hunt under the terms of the Placing
and Underwriting Agreement.

E.3 The Company is proposing to raise approximately £1,632,000,
net of expenses, through the Placing of 5,353,488 Placing Shares
at the price of 43 pence per Ordinary Share from new and
existing investors in the Company representing a premium of
1.18 per cent. to the Closing Price of 42.5 pence per Ordinary
Share on 18 December 2012, being the latest practicable date
prior to the publication of this document.

The Placing is conditional upon approval of the Resolution by
Shareholders at the General Meeting. The Placing has been fully
underwritten by Peel Hunt under the terms of the Placing and
Underwriting Agreement.

E.4 Not applicable. There are no interests, including any conflicting
interests, which are material to the Conversion, the issue of
Interest Shares and the Placing.

E.5 Not applicable. There are no selling Shareholders or lock-up
arrangements in connection with the Proposals.

E.6 Following the issue of the New Ordinary Shares, Shareholders
who are not participating in the Placing or are not converting
their Convertible Loan Notes or receiving Interest Shares will
suffer an immediate dilution of approximately 50.5 per cent. to
their interests in the Company.

E.7 Not applicable. No expenses will be charged to the investor by
the Company.

Terms and conditions of the
Placing

Interests material to the
Conversion, the issue of
Interest Shares and the
Placing, including
conflicting interests

Name of the person or entity
offering to sell the Ordinary
Shares
Lock-up agreements: the
parties involved; and
indication of the period of
the lock-up

Amount and percentage of
immediate dilution resulting
from the issue of the New
Ordinary Shares

Estimated expenses  
charged to the investor by
the Company
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RISK FACTORS

Any investment in the Ordinary Shares is subject to a number of risks. Before making any investment
decision, prospective investors should consider carefully the factors and risks set out below, which the
Directors believe include all known material risks in relation to the Company, its business and the Placing,
together with all other information contained in this document including, in particular, the risk factors
described below. Additional risks and uncertainties relating to the Group that are not currently known to the
Group, or that it currently deems immaterial, may also have an adverse effect on the Group’s business.
Investors should consider carefully whether an investment in the Ordinary Shares is suitable for them in light
of the information in this document and their personal circumstances.

1.        Risks relating to the Proposals                                                                                                              

The Company has in issue £7.95 million in aggregate nominal amount of the Convertible Loan Notes which
are due and payable on 31 December 2013, if not previously converted in whole or in part by Noteholders,
at the option of the Noteholders. The Company will therefore on 31 December 2013 have a maximum cash
shortfall equal to £7.95 million, being the aggregate nominal amount of the outstanding Convertible Loan
Notes on such date (the “Shortfall”).

In order to address the Shortfall, the Company has secured agreement (subject to the passing of the
Resolution) with certain Noteholders for the variation to the conversion terms of the Convertible Loan Note
Instrument (the “Variation”) and conversion of £7,575,000 in aggregate nominal amount of the Convertible
Loan Notes (the “Conversion”) and thereby satisfying in aggregate 95.28 per cent. of the Shortfall. The
remaining £375,000 of unconverted Convertible Loan Notes, to the extent unconverted by 31 December
2013, and to the extent an election is made on such date to require repayment, will be satisfied out of the net
proceeds of the Placing.

In order to implement the Variation, the Conversion and the Placing, a General Meeting of Shareholders is
being convened to approve the Resolution. The Variation, the Conversion and the Placing are conditional
upon the passing of the Resolution. If Shareholders do not vote in favour of the Resolution, the Variation,
the Conversion and the Placing will not proceed and the Convertible Loan Notes will remain in issue.

In such an event there is a material risk that the Company will not be in a position to satisfy a request for
repayment by all or a substantial number of the Noteholders, in which event the Company may enter into
administration. In such an event, the Directors would no longer manage the affairs of the Company or the
realisation of its assets. As a result of entering into administration, the Ordinary Shares would be cancelled
from the Official List and Shareholders may receive little or no value for their Ordinary Shares.

2.        Risks relating to the Group’s business

(a)       The Group has a significant concentration of sales revenue derived from a few customers

A significant proportion of the Group’s sales contracts are with a limited number of customers such
as the NHS and certain large retail supermarket chains. Failure to deliver products and/or services to
these customers, termination by any of these customers of their agreements, if any, with the Group
and/or a reduction in spending by these customers could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s
business, financial condition and results of operations in the form of reduced revenues.

(b)      The Group has a history of operating losses

The companies in the Group have experienced operating losses in each year since its inception and,
as at 31 December 2011, had an accumulated deficit of approximately US$174.4 million. Therefore,
there can be no assurance that the Group will achieve net profitability.

(c)       The Group is reliant on core technology and development and subject to competition                      

The Group is reliant on its core technology platform, particularly in the Supermarket Retail and
Wound Care businesses, and is potentially subject to competition from other companies that might
have products in development or commercially available that are more advanced and/or less
expensive. In relation to future products, competitors may precede the Group in commercialising,
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developing and receiving regulatory approval for their products and competitors may also succeed in
developing products that are even safer, more effective or more economically viable than products
developed by the Group. As a result, the Group’s products may not be competitive or available in the
market in a timely manner, therefore eroding the Group’s market share and/or potential for growth.

(d)      The Group’s products are subject to various US, European and other legislative and regulatory
requirements

The Group’s products are subject to various US, European and other legislative and regulatory
requirements. If the Group or its third party manufacturers fail to satisfy legislative and regulatory
requirements, this could result in the imposition of sanctions on the Group, including fines,
injunctions, civil penalties, import bans, delays, suspension or withdrawal of approvals, licence
revocation, seizures or recall of products, operating restrictions and criminal prosecutions, any of
which could materially harm the Group’s product development and commercialisation efforts.
Legislative changes or regulatory reform of the healthcare systems in the countries in which the Group
operates may also affect the Group’s ability to sell its products profitably or at all. Further, the Group
may not be successful in securing regulatory clearance for devices or products it may develop in the
future. Even if regulatory clearance is granted, it is subject to continual review and this approval may
be withdrawn or restricted. Any or a combination of these factors could have a material adverse effect
on the Group’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

(e)       As the Group transitions to a recurring-revenue, consumables-based revenue model, consumption
levels may not be as high as forecast

The Group has a mixture of capital equipment, leased equipment, service contracts and consumables
sales. With a stated intent to transition the business in the medium term to a more consumables-based
revenue model, future revenues are to a greater extent dependent upon on-going consumption levels
from customers. If usage levels in future years do not achieve expectations, this could have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition and results of operations if appropriate
measures are not taken to reduce costs in line with reduced sales.

(f)       Rapid growth in the Group’s Wound Care business is dependent upon successful marketing
partnerships

The Group has significant growth expectations for the Wound Care business built largely on the stated
interest of, and discussions with, potential marketing partners and represents an important part of the
Group’s growth strategy going forward. It is possible that PuriCore will not be able to agree terms
with potential partners resulting in a slower than expected revenue growth and the need for PuriCore
to invest in a direct sales strategy to grow the business.

(g)      The Group is dependent on a limited number of sub-contract manufacturers to assemble many of
its products and to produce certain components within these products

The Group is dependent on a limited number of sub-contract manufacturers to produce its range of
products. Although the Group regularly considers additional sub-contract manufacturers, there can be
no guarantee that the Group will be able to access additional sources to manufacture these integral
products. The Group believes that appropriate supply chain systems for order management and quality
control will continue to be applied, but there is no guarantee that its sub-contractors will continue to
devote adequate resources to the production of the Group’s products or deliver sufficient quantities of
finished products on a timely basis or at an acceptable cost or to enable the Group to maintain
sufficient inventory to meet customer demand, which may delay or reduce revenue recognition. 

3.        Risks relating to the marketplace in which the Group operates

The sectors in which the Group operates are subject to macroeconomic pressures that may result in
tighter spending practices

PuriCore’s customers are primarily in the healthcare and retail supermarket sectors. These sectors are subject
to spending policy changes as a consequence of a downturn in the economy. In the UK, the NHS has
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announced austerity measures to reduce costs. The Group’s sales to the NHS may be subject to pricing and/or
quantity pressures as a result. These pressures are present in the US healthcare sector as well. The retail
supermarket sector has been impacted by decreases in consumer spending arising from the economic
downturn, resulting in reduced spending on capital equipment. These macroeconomic pressures may result
in lower revenues being realised by the Group.

4.        Risks relating to the Ordinary Shares

The share price of the Company may fluctuate significantly

The share price may, in addition to being affected by the Group’s actual or forecasted operating results,
fluctuate significantly as a result of factors beyond the Company’s control and may not always reflect the
underlying asset value or the prospects of the Company. The factors that may affect the Company’s share
price are:

•         liquidity of the Ordinary Shares and willingness of Shareholders to sell where there are demand or
supply imbalances;

•         fluctuations in stock market prices and volumes, and general market volatility;

•         changes in laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Company, its operations and involvement in
actual or threatened litigation;

•         general economic and political conditions, including in the regions in which the Group operates; and

•         changes in the structure of the European Union and financial implications of the sovereign debt crisis.

5.        Risks relating to intellectual property and litigation

(a)       The Group may be unable to adequately protect its intellectual property

The Group is the owner of intellectual property rights, comprising patents, trade marks, designs,
copyright, trade secrets and confidential information, details of which are set out in paragraph 12 of
Part III of this document. While it may apply from time to time to register additional patents, trade
marks, designs and copyright and take reasonable steps to protect its trade secrets and confidential
information, there can be no assurance that any of its registered intellectual property rights will not be
successfully challenged or that third parties will not misappropriate such secrets and information. The
Group relies to a great extent on its patents and whilst no validity challenges have previously been
made there is no guarantee that they will not be made in the future. Other companies may obtain
intellectual property rights based on developments in technology used by the Group. Without
obtaining a licence to utilise such intellectual property rights, the Group would be restricted from
utilising such new developments.

Any misappropriation, or challenge to its intellectual property rights, or failure to obtain protection of
or a licence in relation to such intellectual property could have a material adverse effect on the
Group’s business, financial condition and results of operations and may require it to engage in costly
litigation.

(b)      Intellectual property litigation and/or infringement actions may be brought against the Group or
may need to be brought by the Group

There can be no assurance that the Group will not receive a notification that any products or systems
infringe any third-party intellectual property rights in the future. Any litigation to determine the
validity of third-party infringement claims, whether or not determined in the Group’s favour or settled
by the Group, would be costly and could divert the efforts and attention of the management and
technical personnel from productive tasks, which could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s
business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Directors cannot guarantee that infringement claims by third parties or claims by customers or
end users of the Group’s products resulting from infringement claims will not be asserted in the future
or that such assertions, if proven to be true, will not materially adversely affect the Group’s business,
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financial condition and results of operations. In the event of an adverse ruling in any such matter, the
Group could be required to pay substantial damages, cease the manufacture, use and sale of infringing
products, discontinue the use of certain processes or obtain a licence under the intellectual property
rights of the third party claiming infringement. A licence may not be available on reasonable terms or
at all. Any limitations on the Group’s ability to market its products, or delays and costs associated with
redesigning its products or payments of licence fees to third parties, or any failure by the Group to
develop or licence a substitute technology on commercially reasonable terms could have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

There can be no assurance that the Group will not need to bring (or otherwise participate in) claims
against third parties for infringement of intellectual property owned by the Group.

6.       Risks relating to product liability

(a)       The business of the Group exposes its products to potential product liability risks

The fact that the Group is in the healthcare and retail supermarket sectors may expose it to potential
product liability risks associated with the research, development, manufacturing, marketing, sale,
installation, training and use of its products.

The Group has product liability insurance in place. Whilst the Directors believe that the current levels
of coverage are sufficient for its current products, there can be no assurance that the level of insurance
carried now or in the future will be adequate to cover the financial damages resulting from a product
liability claim or judgement. Any product liability claim or judgement which exceeds the Group’s
insurance coverage limits could have a material adverse effect on the Group.

(b)      The Sterilox Solution may cause damage to the protective coating on some endoscopes

As with some other high level disinfectants on the market, the use of Sterilox Solution on some
endoscopes, in certain cases, may damage the protective coating on the insertion tubes over time,
resulting in significant additional expenses associated with scope repair and replacement. The
Company continues to address the problem through innovation, by working with its customers and
various manufacturers, including paying for appropriate scope repair costs and by anticipating and
accounting for these costs in its business and financial models. However, there is no certainty that
these remedial actions will continue to be effective and there may be a significant adverse impact on
the Group’s endoscopy business if such damage were to take place on any significant scale.
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EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF PRINCIPAL EVENTS

Despatch of Prospectus and Forms of Proxy                                                                       19 December 2012

Latest time and date for receipt of Forms of Proxy or submission of
proxy votes electronically for the General Meeting                                             4.00 p.m. on 8 January 2013

General Meeting                                                                                                4.00 p.m. on 10 January 2013

Admission and commencement of dealings in the New Ordinary Shares                        11 January 2013

The dates set out in the Expected Timetable of Principal Events above and mentioned throughout this
document may be adjusted by PuriCore in which event details of the new dates will be notified to the UK
Listing Authority and the London Stock Exchange and, where appropriate, to Shareholders.

All references to time in this document are to London time.
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Voting

You will find enclosed with this document a Form of Proxy for use by Shareholders in respect of the General
Meeting.

Whether or not you intend to be present at the General Meeting, please complete and return the Form of
Proxy accompanying this document as soon as possible and in any event so as to arrive by not later than
4.00 p.m. on 8 January 2013. The return of a completed Form of Proxy will not prevent you from attending
the General Meeting and voting in person if you so wish.

You may, if you wish, register the appointment of a proxy electronically by visiting www.sharevote.co.uk.
To use this service you will need your Voting ID, Task ID and Shareholder Reference Number printed on the
Form of Proxy. Full details of the procedure are given on the website at www.sharevote.co.uk.

Please note that, in relation to the Form of Proxy for the General Meeting, if you do not give specific voting
instructions on the Resolution to be considered at the General Meeting by placing a mark in the appropriate
box, your proxy will be free to vote or abstain in relation to the Resolution as he or she thinks fit. Unless you
specifically instruct otherwise, your proxy may also vote or abstain as he or she thinks fit on any other
business (including any amendments to the Resolution to be proposed at the General Meeting) which may
properly come before the General Meeting.

For further information regarding the Form of Proxy and process at the General Meeting, please refer to the
Notes to the Notice of General Meeting at the end of this document.

CREST Voting

If you are a CREST system user, you can appoint one or more proxies or give an instruction to a proxy by
having an appropriate CREST message transmitted. To appoint a proxy or to give an instruction to a proxy
(whether previously appointed or otherwise) via the CREST system, the CREST message must be received
by Equiniti Limited (Participant ID Number RA19) not later than 4.00 p.m. on 8 January 2013. For this
purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the timestamp generated by the
CREST system) from which Equiniti is able to retrieve the message. CREST personal members or other
CREST sponsored members should contact their CREST sponsor for assistance with appointing proxies via
CREST. For further information on CREST procedures, limitations and system timings, please refer to the
CREST Manual.

For further information regarding CREST members and the process at the General Meeting, please refer to
the Notes to the Notice of General Meeting at the end of this document.

Where to find help

All enquires should be addressed to the Shareholder Helpline on 0871 384 2050 (from inside the United
Kingdom) or +44 121 415 0259 (from outside the United Kingdom). The Shareholder Helpline is available
from 8.30 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. Monday to Friday (except bank and other public holidays).

Calls to the 0871 384 2050 number from inside the United Kingdom are charged at 8 pence per minute
(excluding VAT) from a BT landline. Other service providers’ charges may vary. Calls to the
+44 121 415 0259 number from outside the United Kingdom are charged at applicable international rates.
Different charges may apply to calls made from mobile telephones and calls may be recorded and monitored
for security and training purposes.

Please note that, for legal reasons, the Shareholder Helpline is only able to provide information contained
in this document and information relating to the Company’s register of members and is unable to give
advice on the merits of the Proposals or to provide legal, financial, tax or investment advice.
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Forward-looking Statements

This document contains forward-looking statements, including, without limitation, statements
containing the word “believes”, “anticipates”, “expects” and similar expressions. Such forward-
looking statements involve unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual
results, financial condition, performance or achievements of the Group, to be materially different from
any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. Factors that might cause such a difference include, but are not limited to, those discussed
in “Risk Factors” on pages 14 to 17. Given these uncertainties, prospective investors are cautioned not
to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. Subject to its obligations under the
Listing Rules, the Prospectus Rules and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, the Company and its
Directors disclaim any obligation to update any such forward-looking statements in this document to
reflect future events or developments.

Investors should note that no forward-looking statement is intended to qualify the statements made as
to sufficiency of working capital in this document.

Presentation of financial information

The Company publishes its financial statements in US dollars. The financial information presented in
a number of tables in this document has been rounded to the nearest whole number or the nearest
decimal place. Therefore, the sum of the numbers in a table may not conform exactly to the total figure
given for that table. In addition, certain percentages presented in the tables in this document reflect
calculations based upon the underlying information prior to rounding and, accordingly, may not
conform exactly to the percentages that would be derived if the relevant calculations were based upon
the rounded numbers.

International Financial Reporting Standards

As required by the 2006 Act and Article 4 of the European Union IAS Regulation, the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European
Union and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
of the IASB as adopted by the European Union.

No incorporation of website information

PuriCore’s website is www.puricore.com and this document is available on that website. The
information on that website, any website mentioned in this document or any website directly or
indirectly linked to these websites has not been verified and does not form part of this document and
investors should not rely on it.

General notice

Nothing contained in this document is intended to constitute investment, legal, tax, accounting or
other professional advice. This document is for your information only and nothing in this document
is intended to endorse or recommend a particular course of action. You should consult with an
appropriate professional adviser for specific advice rendered on the basis of your situation.

Defined terms

Certain terms used in this document are defined and explained in the section headed “Definitions and
Glossary of Technical Terms” in Part VII of this document.
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                        CONVERSION AND PLACING STATISTICS                         

Conversion Price 40 pence

Discount of the Conversion Price to the Closing Price as at 18 December 2012 5.88 per cent.

Placing Price 43 pence

Premium of the Placing Price to the Closing Price as at 18 December 2012 1.18 per cent.

Number of Ordinary Shares in issue at the date of this document 25,292,164

Number of Conversion Shares (as a percentage of existing share capital)(1)(2) 18,937,500 (74.87 per cent.)

Number of Interest Shares (as a percentage of existing share capital)(1) 495,613 (1.96 per cent.)

Number of Placing Shares (as a percentage of existing share capital)(1) 5,353,488 (21.17 per cent.)

Number of New Ordinary Shares comprising Conversion Shares, Interest 
Shares and Placing Shares (as a percentage of existing share capital) 24,786,601 (98.00 per cent.)

Enlarged Share Capital 50,078,765

Gross proceeds of the Placing £2,302,000

Estimated proceeds of the Placing net of expenses £1,632,000

Notes:

(1)   On the assumption that no further Ordinary Shares are issued under the Share Schemes or outstanding Warrants.

(2)   This number comprises the Conversion Shares to be issued to those Noteholders who, at the date of this document, have
irrevocably undertaken to convert their holding of Convertible Loan Notes pursuant to a Convertible Loan Note Commitment
Letter.
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PART I

LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF PURICORE
(Incorporated in England and Wales with registered no. 5789798)

Registered Office:

Wolseley Court
Staffordshire Technology Park
Stafford
ST18 0GA

19 December 2012

Dear Shareholder,

Proposed Variation to the Conversion Terms
Proposed Conversion of Convertible Loan Notes

Proposed Payment of Convertible Loan Note Interest in Shares
Proposed Placing of 5,353,488 Placing Shares at 43 pence per Placing Share

and
Notice of General Meeting

1.        Introduction

The Company announced today that it has reached agreement with certain Noteholders for the variation to
the conversion terms to the Convertible Loan Note Instrument, conversion of £7,575,000 of the Convertible
Loan Notes and a Placing of 5,353,488 Placing Shares to new and existing investors in the Company to raise
approximately £2,302,000 (before expenses).

Noteholders with an aggregate holding of 95.28 per cent. of the £7,950,000 in aggregate nominal amount of
the Convertible Loan Notes issued by the Company on 14 June 2010 have agreed, conditional, inter alia,
upon approval of the Resolution to be proposed at the General Meeting, to a variation of the Convertible
Loan Note Instrument reducing the Conversion Price of the Convertible Loan Notes temporarily from
75 pence to 40 pence per Ordinary Share. Each of the Converting Noteholders has also agreed to convert
their entire respective holdings of Convertible Loan Notes into in aggregate 18,937,500 Ordinary Shares at
the reduced Conversion Price, which represents a discount of 5.88 per cent. to the Closing Price of 42.5
pence per Ordinary Share on 18 December 2012, being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of
this document.

In addition, certain Converting Noteholders have agreed conditional, inter alia, upon approval of the
Resolution that the Company’s liability to pay accrued interest in respect of the period from 1 July 2012 up
to Conversion, being the date of the General Meeting, will be satisfied by the issue to them of 495,613 fully-
paid new Ordinary Shares at a price of 40 pence per Ordinary Share, rounded down to the nearest Ordinary
Share.

As a result of the Conversion and the issue of the Interest Shares, Converting Noteholders will increase their
holding of Ordinary Shares in the Company by 19,433,113 Ordinary Shares representing an aggregate
increase of 76.83 per cent. of the Existing Ordinary Shares. To the extent that any Convertible Loan Notes
are converted, they will be deemed to be repaid in the amount of the principal sum so converted.

The Company has also announced today that it proposes to raise a total of £2,302,000 (before expenses) by
the issue of 5,353,488 Placing Shares through a placing to new and existing investors in the Company at 43
pence per Placing Share, which represents a premium of 1.18 per cent. to the Closing Price of 42.5 pence
per Ordinary Share on 18 December 2012, being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this
document. The Placing has been fully underwritten by Peel Hunt.

Following the issue of the Conversion Shares, the Interest Shares and the Placing Shares, holders of the
Existing Ordinary Shares will suffer a dilution of approximately 50.5 per cent. Application will be made for
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Admission of 24,786,601 New Ordinary Shares to the Official List and the London Stock Exchange which
is expected to become effective on 11 January 2013.

Further details of the terms of the existing Convertible Loan Notes, proposed Variation and Conversion,
payment of Convertible Loan Note interest in shares as well as the Placing are set out in Parts I and II of this
document.

In accordance with the 2006 Act and the Listing Rules, the Proposals are conditional upon Shareholder
approval and accordingly, the purpose of this document is to provide Shareholders with details on the
background to, and terms of, the Proposals, to explain why the Board considers the Proposals to be in the
best interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole, and to seek your support and approval for the
Resolution required to implement them.

The Company has received irrevocable undertakings from certain Shareholders representing holdings of
11,843,677 Ordinary Shares being equal to approximately 46.83 per cent. of the Existing Ordinary Shares to
vote in favour of the Resolution. In addition, the Directors with beneficial interests in Existing Ordinary
Shares, who in aggregate hold 106,350 Ordinary Shares representing approximately 0.42 per cent. of the
Existing Ordinary Shares have irrevocably undertaken to vote in favour of the Resolution. Accordingly, in
aggregate, irrevocable undertakings have been received in respect of 11,950,027 Ordinary Shares
representing 47.25 per cent. of the Existing Ordinary Shares to vote in favour of the Resolution.

You are recommended to read the whole of this document and not rely on only part of it. In particular, you
are advised to read the section entitled “Risk Factors” on pages 14 to 17 of this document.

2.        Description of the Group

PuriCore is a water-based, clean technology company developing and commercialising proprietary solutions
that protect people from the spread of infectious pathogens without causing harm to human health or the
environment. PuriCore’s antimicrobial technology and complementary products are used principally in well-
established core businesses and emerging sectors of two broad markets: Health Sciences and Food &
Agriculture.

In the Health Sciences market, PuriCore is a leading provider of a broad suite of products and services for
compliant endoscopic decontamination in NHS and private hospitals. In the US, PuriCore’s Wound Care
technology is used by hospitals, wound care centres, nursing homes, and home healthcare providers to treat
chronic and acute wounds. The Wound Care technology also provides partnership opportunities in new
Health Sciences segments including Dermatology and Animal Health.

In the Food & Agriculture market both Sterilox Fresh and FloraFresh Solution provide savings to
supermarket retailers in labour costs and improvements in inventory loss of fresh produce and floral
products. Sterilox Fresh is also used to sanitise fresh fruits and vegetables in US and Canadian supermarkets.
In addition, the Company is progressing in its research and development programmes at Oxford University
on the use of its technology as an agricultural fungicide.

Further information on the Group is set out in Part III of this document.

3.        Current Trading and Prospects 

The Company announced on 19 November 2012 the following unaudited Interim Management Statement.
The Interim Management Statement has not been reviewed by the auditors of the Group.

“Business Report

Sales for the Group increased 29 per cent. (30 per cent. at constant currency) to US$36.4 million in the first
three quarters of 2012 (2011: US$28.3 million). Gross cash at period end was US$3.2 million.
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Food & Agriculture

Continued robust sales in the Supermarket Retail business increased revenues 45 per cent. to US$17.7
million (2011: US$12.2 million). In October, the Company announced two new sales agreements. The first
agreement is valued at approximately US$7 million over four years with an existing customer, a top-five US
supermarket retailer, to implement and use PuriCore’s new formulation of FloraFresh. The second agreement
is valued at approximately US$2 million with a long-standing US regional supermarket customer for the
capital sales of new systems to be shipped before the end of 2012. As at 30 September 2012, the Company
had captured approximately 21 per cent. of the target market stores in the US and Canada. 

Also in October, the Company announced further positive results from its ActiVita Agriculture programme.
Testing and analysis carried out in conjunction with The University of Oxford Department of Plant Sciences
continues to demonstrate ActiVita's potential as a potent broad-spectrum antifungal agent. Research is
ongoing, and the Company plans to enter into discussions with potential commercialisation partners.

In November, the Company announced that it had signed a marketing and distribution partnership agreement
with Lohas Products GmbH. PuriCore will provide technical and scientific knowledge in the development
and commercialisation of new applications, and Lohas will have an exclusive licence to market and distribute
the applications in certain markets and territories (exclusive of the US and UK). These new potential
applications include but are not limited to the use of PuriCore's technology for seafood production, water
treatment in restaurants, and livestock husbandry. Collaboration on marketing plans and application
development will be ongoing in 2013 with revenue generation expected no later than 2014.

Health Sciences

In the Endoscopy business, strong recurring revenue streams contributed to the division's sales increase of
11 per cent. (14 per cent. at constant currency) to US$17.3 million for the year to date (2011: US$15.6
million). PuriCore increased recurring revenues by 5.6 per cent. (8.1 per cent. at constant currency), which
now account for 77 per cent. of division sales. This increase was achieved by driving additional revenues
from new service contracts with existing customers coming into effect, offering of private-labelled
chemistries, service contract price increases for some of the legacy products, and the new catalogue of
surgical consumables.

In the Wound Care business, organic and distribution revenues increased significantly by 204 per cent. to
US$1.3 million (2011: US$0.4 million). In addition, the Company is pursuing new business development
opportunities in new geographies and other Health Sciences market segments. The Company will announce
details of these partnerships in due course.”

4.        Proposed Variation and Conversion of Convertible Loan Notes and issue of Interest Shares

On 14 June 2010 the Company issued a total of £7.95 million in aggregate nominal amount of Convertible
Loan Notes following approval by Shareholders at a general meeting of the Company.

The full amount of the Convertible Loan Notes remains outstanding.

The principal terms of the Convertible Loan Notes are as follows:

•          The aggregate nominal amount of the Convertible Loan Notes is £7.95 million.

•          The Convertible Loan Notes are repayable by the Company on 31 December 2013 unless any of the
Convertible Loan Notes have previously been converted at the option of the Noteholders. On
13 December 2011 the Repayment Date was extended from 31 December 2011 to 31 December 2013
following agreement between the Company and the requisite majority of Noteholders.

•          The Convertible Loan Notes are convertible into Ordinary Shares at a price of 75 pence per Ordinary
Share. As at 18 December 2012, the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document,
the Closing Price of the Ordinary Shares was 42.5 pence per Ordinary Share.

•          The Convertible Loan Notes are secured over certain intellectual property owned by the Group.
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•          The Convertible Loan Notes accrue interest at 6.0 per cent. per annum, payable on 30 June and
31 December in each year.

•          Variation of the terms of the Convertible Loan Notes requires agreement from Noteholders holding
not less than 75 per cent. in aggregate nominal amount of the Convertible Loan Notes.

Further details of the Convertible Loan Notes as proposed to be amended are set out in Part II of this
document.

The Company does not currently have, and does not expect to have, the cash resources on the Repayment
Date to satisfy notices from Noteholders for the full repayment of the Convertible Loan Notes. Accordingly,
the existence of the Convertible Loan Notes and the ongoing risk faced by the Company of a potential
insolvency event on the Repayment Date has had a serious adverse impact on the Company and its business.
In fact, at the time of the extension of the Repayment Date from 31 December 2011 to 31 December 2013,
the Board announced on 13 December 2011 that it was considering renegotiating the Conversion Price to
reflect market conditions and provide an incentive for early conversion. It was also announced that an issue
of new equity might be undertaken in conjunction with such renegotiation.

On 18 December 2012, Noteholders with an aggregate holding of £7,575,000 of Convertible Loan Notes and
representing 95.28 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the Convertible Loan Notes and thereby
representing the requisite majority under the terms of the Convertible Loan Note Instrument approved a
variation of its terms reducing the Conversion Price temporarily, conditional, inter alia, on the approval of
the Resolution, from 75 pence per Ordinary Share to 40 pence per Ordinary Share. At the same time, and
conditional upon the Variation becoming effective, all such Converting Noteholders agreed conditional on
the approval of the Resolution to convert their entire respective holdings of Convertible Loan Notes into
Ordinary Shares at 40 pence per Ordinary Share. The period for election by Noteholders in relation to the
Variation, the Conversion and the issue of Interest Shares was temporary and it expired on 14 December
2012. Those Noteholders that had not so elected by such date are still entitled to convert their Convertible
Loan Notes under the terms of the Convertible Loan Note Instrument but at the higher Conversion Price of
75 pence.

In addition, certain Converting Noteholders with holdings of an aggregate nominal amount of £6,265,000 of
Convertible Loan Notes have agreed, conditional, inter alia, upon the approval of the Resolution, that the
Company’s liability to pay accrued interest on their holding of Convertible Loan Notes amounting to
£198,245 in aggregate in respect of the period from 1 July 2012 up to Conversion, being the date of the
General Meeting, will be satisfied by the issue to them of 495,613 fully-paid new Ordinary Shares at a price
of 40 pence per Ordinary Share, rounded down to the nearest Ordinary Share. The Interest Shares are
expected to be issued at the same time as the Placing Shares and the Conversion Shares under the authority
granted by the Resolution.

In accordance with the 2006 Act, since the Conversion and the issue of the Interest Shares will result in the
issue of a significant number of Ordinary Shares, the Variation and Conversion are conditional upon
Shareholder approval granting the Directors authority to allot the Conversion Shares and the Interest Shares,
and the disapplication of statutory pre-emption rights in relation thereto.

Noteholders who have agreed to the Variation and the Conversion include James Walsh and William Birkett,
who are also Directors of the Company and holders of an aggregate nominal amount of £50,000 and £15,000
respectively of the Convertible Loan Notes. Following the Conversion and issue of Interest Shares, Dr.Walsh
and Mr. Birkett will be issued respectively with 128,955 Ordinary Shares and 38,686 Ordinary Shares.
Following the issue of the Ordinary Shares, Dr. Walsh and Mr. Birkett will respectively hold 138,955 and
92,686 Ordinary Shares, together representing 0.46 per cent. of the Enlarged Share Capital.

5.        Details of the Placing and Use of Proceeds                                                                                          

The Company has also announced today that it has conditionally raised approximately £1,632,000, net of
expenses, through the Placing of 5,353,488 Placing Shares at the price of 43 pence per Ordinary Share from
new and existing investors in the Company representing a premium of 1.18 per cent. to the Closing Price of
42.5 pence per Ordinary Share on 18 December 2012, being the latest practicable date prior to the
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publication of this document. The Placing has been fully underwritten by Peel Hunt under the Placing and
Underwriting Agreement, the principal terms of which are summarised in paragraph 15 of Part VI of this
document.

The Placing is conditional upon approval of the Resolution by the Shareholders at the General Meeting and
Admission becoming effective in respect of the Placing Shares by not later than 8.00 a.m. on 7 February
2013. The Placing Shares will, upon Admission, rank pari passu in all respects with the Existing Ordinary
Shares.

The net proceeds of the Placing, amounting to £1,632,000 will be used as follows:

(a)      £375,000 to be set aside to satisfy any unconverted Convertible Loan Notes; and

(b)      £1,257,000 for general working capital including building inventory of newly expanded product lines
and reduction of trade payables.

6.        Effect of the Proposals                                                                                                                           

Assuming no further exercise of options under the Share Schemes and/ or issues of Ordinary Shares pursuant
to the exercise of outstanding Warrants takes place, the Conversion and the issue of Interest Shares will result
in an increase in the share capital of the Company by 19,433,113 Ordinary Shares representing 76.83 per
cent. of the Existing Ordinary Shares and the Placing will result in the issue of 5,353,488 Ordinary Shares
representing 21.17 per cent. of the Existing Ordinary Shares. In aggregate, therefore, the issue of the
Conversion Shares, the Interest Shares and the Placing Shares will increase the existing share capital by
24,786,601 new Ordinary Shares representing 98 per cent. of the Existing Ordinary Shares and an enlarged
share capital of 50,078,765 Ordinary Shares.

Following the issue of the New Ordinary Shares, Shareholders who are not participating in the Placing and/
or are not converting their Convertible Loan Notes will suffer an immediate dilution of approximately
50.5 per cent. to their interests in the Company.

The issue of the Conversion Shares will satisfy the repayment of £7,575,000 of the Convertible Loan Notes.
This will have the immediate beneficial impact of extinguishing a significant amount of debt from the
balance sheet of the Company and therefore significantly reduce the risk of insolvency identified above
otherwise faced by the Company on the Repayment Date if all, or a substantial number in aggregate nominal
amount of, the Convertible Loan Notes remain outstanding at that date.

There will, however, remain in issue a total of £375,000 in aggregate nominal amount of Convertible Loan
Notes which are convertible at 75 pence per Ordinary Share or repayable on the Repayment Date.

Interest due on Convertible Loan Notes which are converted amounting to approximately £454,500 per
annum will no longer be payable. The Company will, however, still be required to pay interest at 6.0 per cent.
per annum on £375,000 in aggregate nominal amount, which represents the unconverted Convertible Loan
Notes.

The extinguishment of a significant amount of debt is expected to have several other positive effects on the
on-going business and operations of PuriCore. Firstly, it will likely provide easier access to other sources of
debt for activities such as future acquisitions, funding market expansion, research and new product
development. Reducing the interest payments which the Company would have paid on unconverted
Convertible Loan Notes in 2013 will also free those resources up for other types of investment. In addition,
an improvement in the Company’s credit rating should allow the Company to negotiate more favourable
credit terms from vendors and other lenders as well as enhancing the Company’s reputation and standing
with customers.

Financial effect of the Proposals on a Pro Forma basis                                                                                  

The Conversion and the issue of Interest Shares will reduce PuriCore’s liabilities and borrowings by
£7,773,245 and will increase PuriCore’s existing share capital by £7,773,245, comprising a £1,943,311
increase in the nominal share capital of the Company and a £5,829,934 increase in share premium.
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The issue of the Placing Shares will increase PuriCore’s cash and cash equivalents (excluding expenses) by
£2,302,000 and will increase PuriCore’s existing share capital by £2,302,000, comprising a £535,349
increase in the nominal share capital of the Company and a £1,766,651 increase in share premium.

The aggregate impact of the Conversion, the issue of Interest Shares and the Placing will be to increase
PuriCore’s net assets by £10,075,245.

7.        General Meeting                                                                                                                                     

A notice convening the General Meeting, to be held at the offices of CMS Cameron McKenna LLP, Mitre
House, 160 Aldersgate Street, London EC1A 4DD at 4.00 p.m. on 10 January 2013, is set out at the end of
this document. The General Meeting is being convened for the purposes of considering and, if thought fit,
passing the Resolution, which is required to implement the Conversion, the issue of Interest Shares and the
Placing. Set out below is a summary of the Resolution, which will be proposed as a composite special
resolution:

(a)      paragraph (a) of the Resolution will grant the Directors sufficient authority to allot the New Ordinary
Shares in connection with the Conversion, the issue of Interest Shares and the Placing of an aggregate
nominal amount of £2,478,661 (representing approximately 98 per cent. of the Existing Ordinary
Shares). This authority will expire on the earlier of the date of the Company’s annual general meeting
in 2013 and 15 months after the date of the passing of the Resolution, save that the Company may
allot shares after this authority ends if the allotment is made pursuant to an agreement or offer which
is made before this authority ends. The Directors at present intend to allot 24,786,601 New Ordinary
Shares in connection with the Conversion, the issue of Interest Shares and the Placing, but save as
required under the Share Schemes and in respect of the outstanding Warrants, do not, at present,
intend to allot any further Ordinary Shares; and

(b)      paragraph (b) of the Resolution will empower the Directors to allot, pursuant to section 570 of the
2006 Act, New Ordinary Shares of an aggregate nominal amount of £2,478,661 (representing
approximately 98 per cent. of the Existing Ordinary Shares) (which are to be issued in connection
with the Conversion, the issue of Interest Shares and the Placing), as if the statutory pre-emption
rights in section 561(1) of the 2006 Act did not apply to such allotment. This authority will expire on
the earlier of the date of the Company’s annual general meeting in 2013 and 15 months after the date
of the passing of the Resolution, save that the Company may allot shares after this authority ends if
the allotment is made pursuant to an agreement or offer which is made before this authority ends.

If Shareholders do not vote in favour of the Resolution, the Variation, the Conversion, the issue of Interest
Shares and the Placing will not proceed and the Company will not have sufficient working capital for its
present requirements, details of which are set out in paragraph 14 below, “Importance of Vote”.

8.        Action to be Taken 

A Form of Proxy for use at the General Meeting is enclosed with this document. Whether or not you intend
to be present at the General Meeting, the Form of Proxy should be completed in accordance with the
instructions printed thereon and returned to Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex,
BN99 6DA, United Kingdom or submitted electronically through CREST or via www.sharevote.co.uk as
soon as possible, but in any event so as to be received by no later than 4.00 p.m. on 8 January 2013. The
completion and return of a Form of Proxy will not preclude you from attending the General Meeting and
voting in person, if you so wish.

9.        Dividend Policy                                                                                                                                       

The New Ordinary Shares will rank for all dividends and other distributions (if any) declared, paid or made
by PuriCore following Admission. No dividends have been paid to date, and for the foreseeable future the
Group intends to retain all available funds and any future earnings to fund the growth and needs of the Group.

10.      Settlement

Placees and Converting Noteholders with a CREST participation ID and member account ID will be able to
receive their New Ordinary Shares in uncertificated form. For non-CREST Placees and non-CREST
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Converting Noteholders, it is expected that definitive share certificates will be despatched on 18 January
2013. Pending receipt of certificates in respect of such New Ordinary Shares, transfers will be certified
against the register of members.

11.      Taxation

Information regarding taxation in the United Kingdom is set out in paragraph 16 of Part VI of this document.
Shareholders who are in any doubt as to their tax position, or who are subject to tax in any other jurisdiction,
should consult their own professional adviser as soon as possible.

12.      Additional Information

Your attention is drawn to the additional information set out in Parts II to VI of this document.

13.      Working Capital                                                                                                                                     

The Company does not have sufficient working capital for its present requirements, that is for the next
12 months from the date of this document.

The Company has in issue £7.95 million in aggregate nominal amount of the Convertible Loan Notes
which are due and payable on 31 December 2013, if not previously converted in whole or in part by
Noteholders, at the option of the Noteholders. The Company will therefore on 31 December 2013 have
a maximum cash shortfall equal to £7.95 million, being the aggregate nominal amount of the
outstanding Convertible Loan Notes on such date (the “Shortfall”).

The Company does not expect to be in a position to satisfy a request for repayment by all or a
substantial number of the Noteholders in which event the Company may enter into administration.

In the event the Company does enter into administration, the Directors would no longer manage the
affairs of the Company or the realisation of its assets. As a result of entering into administration, the
Ordinary Shares would be cancelled from the Official List and Shareholders may receive little or no
value for their Ordinary Shares.

In order to address the Shortfall, the Company has secured agreement (subject to the passing of the
Resolution) with certain Noteholders for the variation to the conversion terms of the Convertible Loan
Note Instrument (the “Variation”) and conversion of £7,575,000 in aggregate nominal amount of the
Convertible Loan Notes (the “Conversion”) and thereby satisfying in aggregate 95.28 per cent. of the
Shortfall. The remaining £375,000 of unconverted Convertible Loan Notes, to the extent unconverted
by 31 December 2013, and to the extent an election is made on such date to require repayment, will be
satisfied out of the net proceeds of the Placing.

14.      Importance of Vote

In order to implement the Variation, the Conversion and the Placing, a General Meeting of
Shareholders is being convened to approve the Resolution. The Variation, Conversion, issue of Interest
Shares and the Placing are conditional upon the passing of the Resolution. If Shareholders do not vote
in favour of the Resolution, the Variation, the Conversion and the Placing will not proceed and the
Loan Notes will remain in issue.

Irrevocable undertakings to vote in favour of the Resolution have been received in respect of
11,950,027 Ordinary Shares representing 47.25 per cent. of the Existing Ordinary Shares. The
Directors are therefore confident that the Resolution will be approved at the General Meeting.

In the event that the Resolution is not approved, then, during the period prior to the Repayment Date
of the Convertible Loan Notes, being 31 December 2013, the Company would consider the following
options to address the Shortfall:

(a)      The Company would seek alternative financing arrangements to wholly or partly replace the
Convertible Loan Notes with new debt or raise equity to satisfy the requirement for repayment
of the aggregate nominal amount of the Convertible Loan Notes on 31 December 2013. Whilst
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the Company has been in discussions in relation to such refinancing options, these discussions
are at a very preliminary stage and the Directors cannot be confident that any of these options
will successfully result in a refinancing of the Convertible Loan Notes either by 31 December
2013 or on terms that are acceptable to the Company.

(b)      The Company would seek to agree with Noteholders a further deferral of the repayment date
for the Convertible Loan Notes as occurred previously and which was announced on 13
December 2011. Given the Company has been focused on the Proposals and that the date for
repayment remains more than 12 months in the future, the Company has not entered into any
discussions with Noteholders and therefore the Directors cannot be confident that such an
option will be achievable or on terms acceptable to the  Company.

(c)      The Company would seek to dispose of one or more of its businesses, in particular its UK
Endoscopy business. Although the Company has received a preliminary and informal approach
to buy this business, the Directors cannot be confident that any offers for the business will
materialise, that any such offers will be on terms acceptable to the Company or that any will be
sufficient to cover the Shortfall.

Accordingly, in order to avoid these consequences it is important that Shareholders vote in favour of
the Resolution.

If the Resolution is approved, inter alia, the Conversion will take place and the Company will not be
required to repay the aggregate nominal amount of any Convertible Loan Notes so converted. In
addition, the Placing will take place if the Resolution is approved. Accordingly, the Group will have
sufficient working capital for its present requirements, that is for at least 12 months from the date of
this document.

15.      Recommendation                                                                                                                                    

The Board considers that the Variation, the Conversion, the issue of Interest Shares, the Placing and the
Resolution are in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Board
unanimously recommends that Shareholders vote in favour of the Resolution, as the Directors with beneficial
interests in Existing Ordinary Shares have irrevocably undertaken to do in respect of their own beneficial
holdings, amounting to an aggregate of 106,350 Existing Ordinary Shares, representing approximately 0.42
per cent. of the Existing Ordinary Shares. In addition, Shareholders who in aggregate own 11,843,677
Existing Ordinary Shares, representing approximately 46.83 per cent. of the Existing Ordinary Shares, have
irrevocably undertaken to vote in favour of the Resolution. Accordingly, in aggregate, irrevocable
undertakings have been received in respect of 11,950,027 Ordinary Shares representing 47.25 per cent. of
the Existing Ordinary Shares.

Yours faithfully,

Michael Ashton
Executive Chairman
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                                                         PART II                                                          

PRINCIPAL TERMS OF THE CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

(ALL AMENDMENTS TO THE CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES, INCLUDING CONVERSION
PRICE AND PERIOD, ARE SHOWN IN ITALICS)

1.        Principal Amount

1.1      Pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Loan Note Instrument, the Company has issued Convertible
Loan Notes in the aggregate principal amount of £7.95 million (the “Principal Sum”).

2.        Interest

2.1      Insofar as the Convertible Loan Notes are not previously purchased, redeemed or converted, interest
will accrue at the rate of 6.0 per cent. per annum compounded annually on the Principal Sum of
Convertible Loan Notes outstanding.

2.2      Interest accruing on the Convertible Loan Notes will be paid to Noteholders on 30 June and
31 December (each an “Interest Date”). Subject to the prior agreement of the relevant Noteholder,
the Company may satisfy its liability to pay interest either in cash or by issuing new fully-paid
Ordinary Shares rounded down to the nearest Ordinary Share.

3.        Repayment and Purchase

3.1      Any Convertible Loan Notes not previously repurchased, redeemed or converted shall be repaid at par,
together with accrued but unpaid interest (less any applicable taxes) on 31 December 2013 (the
“Repayment Date”).

3.2      The Company may purchase outstanding Convertible Loan Notes by tender or by private treaty.

4.        Conversion

4.1      With effect from 1 January 2011, Noteholders may serve written notice on the Company to convert
their Convertible Loan Notes into Ordinary Shares. Ordinary Shares issued upon the exercise of
conversion rights shall be admitted to listing on the Official List and to trading on the London Stock
Exchange and shall rank pari passu in all respects with existing Ordinary Shares save that they will
not rank for any dividend or other distribution declared, made or paid by the Company prior to their
issue.

4.2      If a Conversion Notice is dated:

4.2.1   on or prior to 14 December 2012, the number of Ordinary Shares to be issued to a Convertible
Loan Note Holder converting their Convertible Loan Notes will be calculated on the basis of
the following formula:

xNumber of Ordinary Shares =  —–––;
0.40

4.2.2   after 14 December 2012, the number of Ordinary Shares to be issued to a Convertible Loan
Note Holder converting their Convertible Loan Notes will be calculated on the basis of the
following formula:

xNumber of Ordinary Shares =  —–––
0.75

where “x” is the amount of the Convertible Loan Notes which are to be converted, expressed in
Pounds Sterling.
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4.3      Fractional entitlements to Ordinary Shares arising upon the application of the above formula will be
disregarded.

4.4      A Noteholder who converts Convertible Loan Notes pursuant to paragraph 4.2.1 above must convert
all of their holding of Convertible Loan Notes.

4.5      A Noteholder who converts Convertible Loan Notes pursuant to paragraph 4.2.2 above may convert
all or part of their holding of Convertible Loan Notes.

4.6      To the extent that any Convertible Loan Notes are converted, they shall be deemed to be repaid in the
amount of the Principal Sum so converted.

5.        Security

5.1      PuriCore, Inc. and PuriCore International Limited (the “Chargors”) have created security over certain
intellectual property in favour of the Noteholders in order to secure the obligations of the Company
under the Convertible Loan Note Instrument.

6.        Events of Default

6.1      Noteholders may demand immediate redemption of their outstanding Convertible Loan Notes at par,
together with accrued but unpaid interest, in the event that:

6.1.1   the Company fails to pay interest on an Interest Date and such default has not been remedied
within 30 days following that Interest Date; or

6.1.2   an order is made or an effective resolution is passed for the winding-up of the Company (other
than a solvent winding-up for the purposes of amalgamation or reconstruction), or the
Company stops or threatens to stop payment of its debts, or the Company ceases or threatens
to cease to carry on its business; or

6.1.3   an administrator of the Company is appointed; or

6.1.4   a receiver or similar official is appointed in respect of the whole or a substantial part of the
undertaking and assets of the Company; or

6.1.5   any distress or execution (or similar process) is levied upon or enforced against all or a
substantial part of the assets or property of the Company and is not fully paid out or discharged
within 60 days; or

6.1.6   any process or event with an effect analogous to any of those referred to above happens to the
Company in a jurisdiction outside England and Wales; or

6.1.7   there is a change of control of the Company (which for these purposes means a person or group
of persons acting in concert (the “Bidder”) making an offer for 30 per cent. or more of the
issued Ordinary Shares and such offer being declared unconditional or the Bidder otherwise
acquiring more than or controlling the voting rights attached to 30 per cent. or more of the
issued Ordinary Shares); or

6.1.8   the Chargors fail to comply with any of the provisions of the security documents which are not
remedied within 30 days of the earlier of: (i) the security trustee giving notice to the Chargors
and the Company of the failure to comply; or (ii) the Chargors becoming aware of the failure
to comply.

7.        Transfer

7.1      Convertible Loan Notes are transferable in whole or (in amounts with a nominal value equal to or
greater than £50,000 (or such amount as the Directors may otherwise determine)) in part provided that
such transfer would not give rise to such Noteholder being the registered owner of Convertible Loan
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Notes with a nominal value of less than £50,000 (or such amount as the Directors may otherwise
determine).

7.2      Convertible Loan Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered, directly or indirectly, in or into the
United States, Canada, Japan, South Africa or Australia or any jurisdiction where acceptance of the
Convertible Loan Notes would violate the law of that jurisdiction except (i) pursuant to exemptions
from, or in transactions not subject to, the applicable requirements of such jurisdictions and (ii) with
the agreement of the Company.

8.        Adjustment

8.1      If, before the Repayment Date, the Company allots any Ordinary Shares fully paid by way of
capitalisation of profits or reserves to holders of Ordinary Shares on the register on a date (or by
reference to a record date) before the Repayment Date or upon any consolidation or sub-division of
the Ordinary Shares before such date, the nominal value and/or the Conversion Price and/or number
of Ordinary Shares that are issued upon any subsequent exercise of a Convertible Loan Note Holder’s
conversion rights shall be adjusted in such manner as the Directors shall specify to be necessary in
order that, upon conversion, such Ordinary Shares:

8.1.1   will carry as nearly as possible (and in any event not less than) the same proportion of the votes
exercisable at general meetings of the Company; and

8.1.2   will carry the same entitlement to participate in the profits and assets of the Company,

as would the total number of Ordinary Shares which might have been issued pursuant to the
conversion rights conferred by the Convertible Loan Notes outstanding and unexercised immediately
before the event giving rise to the adjustment had there been no adjustment and no such event giving
rise to such adjustment.

9.        Listing

9.1      No application will be made to any investment exchange (whether in the United Kingdom or
elsewhere) for permission to deal in or for an official or other listing or quotation in respect of the
Convertible Loan Notes.

10.      Amendment

10.1    The Company may from time to time (by deed expressed to be supplemental to the Convertible Loan
Note Instrument) amend any provisions of the Convertible Loan Note Instrument if the amendment is
previously either sanctioned by an Extraordinary Resolution (which for these purposes means a
resolution passed at a meeting of the Noteholders by a majority consisting of not less than
three-fourths of the persons voting upon a show of hands and, if a poll is demanded, by a majority
consisting of not less than three-fourths of the votes given on the poll) or considered in the reasonable
opinion of the Directors of the Company to be either necessary to correct a manifest error or such
amendment is of a minor or technical nature.

11.      Governing Law and Jurisdiction

11.1    The Convertible Loan Note Instrument and the Convertible Loan Notes (and any non-contractual
rights or obligations arising out of or in connection with them) shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of England.

11.2    The courts of England and Wales shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute which may
arise out of or in connection with the Convertible Loan Note Instrument.
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PART III

                                  INFORMATION ON THE GROUP                                  

Unless otherwise stated, the financial information relating to PuriCore included in this part of the document
has been extracted without material adjustment from the financial information referred to and incorporated
by reference in Part IV of this document.

1.        Overview

PuriCore is a water-based, clean technology company developing and commercialising proprietary solutions
that protect people from the spread of infectious pathogens without causing harm to human health or the
environment. PuriCore’s antimicrobial technology and complementary products are used principally in
well-established core businesses and emerging sectors of two broad markets: Health Sciences and Food &
Agriculture.

In the Health Sciences market, PuriCore is a leading provider of a broad suite of products and services for
compliant endoscopic decontamination in NHS and private hospitals. In the US, PuriCore’s Wound Care
technology is used by hospitals, wound care centres, nursing homes, and home healthcare providers to treat
chronic and acute wounds. The Wound Care technology also provides partnership opportunities in new
Health Sciences segments including Dermatology and Animal Health.

In the Food & Agriculture market both Sterilox Fresh and FloraFresh Solution provide savings to
supermarket retailers in labour costs and improvements in inventory loss of fresh produce and floral
products. Sterilox Fresh is also used to sanitise fresh fruits and vegetables in US and Canadian supermarkets.
In addition, the Company is progressing in its research and development programmes at Oxford University
on the use of its technology as an agricultural fungicide.

PuriCore has operations in Malvern, Pennsylvania, in the US and in Stafford and Clevedon in the UK.

2.        History and Background                                                                                                                       

The Company was incorporated in 2006 and became the holding company of the Group. PuriCore, Inc., the
US operating subsidiary of the Group (formerly known as Sterilox Technologies, Inc.), was incorporated in
1997 to acquire and commercialise new intellectual property in the biocide industry and began trading later
that year. Sterilox Technologies, Inc. was renamed PuriCore, Inc. on 24 May 2006.

PuriCore completed its initial public offering and its shares were listed on the Official List and the London
Stock Exchange’s main market for listed securities on 30 June 2006.

PuriCore International was incorporated in 1992 and is the UK operating subsidiary of the Group. In August
2009, PuriCore International acquired Labcaire Systems Ltd., a leading UK supplier and manufacturer of
endoscope disinfection equipment and air filtration systems. To augment future recurring revenues in the
UK, PuriCore International purchased the surgical endoscopy products business of Monmouth Scientific
Limited, a leading provider of complementary endoscopy and surgical consumables, in May 2012.

3.        The PuriCore Platform Technology                                                                                                      

PuriCore markets a portfolio of branded and private-labelled equipment, products, and services for
controlling the spread of infectious pathogens. A significant portion of the Company’s revenue is based on
its patented, proprietary technology that mimics the human body’s production of the natural antimicrobial
hypochlorous acid, which is highly effective in killing bacteria, viruses, and fungal spores–without
contributing to antibiotic resistance. Hypochlorous acid is proven to be safe, environmentally friendly, and
fast acting against a broad range of infectious pathogens, including major public health threats of M.
tuberculosis, MRSA, E.coli, Norovirus, C.difficile, H5N1 Avian Influenza, H1N1 Swine Influenza, HIV,
Salmonella, C. difficile, Polio Virus, Helicobacter pylori, and Legionella.1 PuriCore has also developed new
chemical variations of its base technology for use on fresh cut floral and living plants.
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The Company’s solutions are either electrochemically generated and bottled by PuriCore or are
electrochemically generated by customers on-site and on-demand. The solutions are produced at a range of
concentrations and at a nearly neutral pH range similar to the human body, optimising their biocidal efficacy
yet remaining safe to humans and the environment. All PuriCore solutions are non-toxic and non-hazardous
yet effective at killing a wide range of pathogens. PuriCore’s solutions can be deployed as soaks, sprays,
mists, and ice.

4.        Business Trends                                                                                                                                       

Migration to Bottled Solutions: PuriCore migrated to bottled solution in the Wound Care segment in 2011.
Based on this success, late in 2012, the Company developed and produced its first bottled FloraFresh
concentrate product, replacing the FloraFresh System. For the Floral business, this new product format
eliminates the need for System sales, manufacturing, capital investment, inventory carrying, installations,
and service and provides for a long-term stream of recurring revenues generated from these consumable
products. PuriCore is investigating further bottled solutions for various new and existing market segments.

Increasing Recurring Revenues: The Company has continued to shift its strategy to sales that generate
recurring revenues, which comprise rental or lease agreements, service contracts, bottled products,
disinfectant chemistry, managed services, and consumables. The Company’s strategy is to increase both the
amount and percentage of recurring revenues. This strategy reduces the potential impact of capital spending
delays by large customers, including both the NHS and larger supermarket retailers in the US. In the UK,
recurring revenues have been increased by driving additional revenues from new service contracts with
existing customers coming into effect, the offering of private-labelled chemistries, service contract price
increases for some of the legacy products, and the new catalogue of surgical consumables.

Business Development and Formulation Expansion: PuriCore is pursuing additional marketing
partnerships with established distributors and marketers to capitalise on opportunities for rapid market
penetration and revenue growth whilst requiring limited investment. In the Wound Care segment, the
Company is in discussions with marketing partners who are well-established to gain quicker distribution and
sales growth in the US and in international markets for its prescription product. To support these new
opportunities, PuriCore is pursuing broader regulatory approvals to permit more claims/indications for use
as well as new product formats and formulations. In new areas such as Water Treatment, PuriCore is
partnering with Lohas Products GmbH to develop products for new applications in this segment.

5.        Industry Trends

Supermarket Retail: The Food Marketing Institute reports in its “U.S. Grocery Shopper Trends 2012”
report that a primary trend in the US supermarket industry is the effect of recent economic challenges on
consumer behaviour throughout all demographics. According to the Food Marketing Institute report,
consumers have shifted to value-seeking (61 per cent.) and variety of fresh foods (39 per cent.) as the major
reason to shop at their primary supermarket. In addition, consumers rated “high quality produce” as one of
their top-three factors for store selection, with 97 per cent. rating it very important or important. The
Directors believe these consumer and industry trends enhance the value proposition of Sterilox and
FloraFresh for retail supermarkets as they both provide savings in labour and inventory loss due to spoilage
whilst increasing freshness and quality. Food safety continues to be a consumer issue as well, with 53 per
cent. of respondents reporting that they are moderately confident in the safety of fresh produce. The
Directors believe that Sterilox Fresh offers the ability for retail supermarkets to differentiate themselves from
the competition for food safety as well.

Endoscopy: In the UK, the current economic climate has resulted in government austerity measures and
budget cuts in public spending. Whilst the 2012/2013 NHS budget cuts 0.4 per cent. from the previous year’s
£106 billion total health budget, the service will be bolstered with a £1.5 billion surplus carried over from
the previous year, as confirmed in The King’s Fund Quarterly Monitoring Report. As the primary customer
for the UK Endoscopy business is the NHS, any spending delays by the NHS have the potential to impact
revenues for this business. The Company’s strategic shift to increase both the amount and proportion of
recurring revenues (rather than depending on capital sales) reduces the impact on the Company of potential
NHS capital spending delays. The Directors also believe that the NHS will continue to utilise endoscopy
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procedures based on the UK Government’s NHS Mandate, which calls for emphasis on early detection of
cancer, which is the aim of colonoscopies and other procedures utilising endoscopes.

6.        Commercialised Products–Summary
Market & Sector           Principal Products    Description                Launch          Primary Markets Regulatory Status

Food & Agriculture
Agriculture                   ActiVita System*       ActiVita System                              Global           EPA Compliant
Floral                            FloraFresh Solution   FloraFresh Solution   2012              US & Canada N/A
Floral                            FloraFresh System     FloraFresh System    2011              US & Canada N/A
Supermarket Retail       SafeMist                    Sterilox Doser            2010              US & Canada N/A
Supermarket Retail           Sterilox System         2010              US & Canada

Supermarket Retail           Sterilox System         2008              US & Canada

                                         Sterilox System         2004              US

Water Treatment           Aqualox 4000            Sterilox Generator     2000              UK                         CE Mark
                                     Aqualox 8000            Sterilox Generator     2000              UK                         CE Mark

Health Sciences
Endoscopy                    AERs
                                     SAFERplus                AER                           2009              UK                         CE Mark
                                     Labcaire JetAER       AER                           2008              UK                         CE Mark
                                     Labcaire ISIS             AER                           2007              UK                         CE Mark
                                         AER                           2007              UK                         CE Mark

                                     SAFER                      AER                           2003              UK                         CE Mark
                                     Labcaire Guardian     AER                           2001              UK                         CE Mark
                                     Disinfectant Chemistries
                                     PuriSept                     Chemistry                  2012              UK                         

                                     Adaspor                     Chemistry                  2007              UK                         

                                         Sterilox System              UK & US               

                                         Sterilox System         2003              UK                         CE Mark

                                         Sterilox System         1999              UK                         CE Mark

                                     Storage Cabinets
                                     Cabinets                     2006              UK                         CE Mark

Sterilox Food
Safety System
(“2200”)

FDA Allowed
EPA Compliant
UL Listed
NSF Certified
Health Canada CFIA

Sterilox Food
Safety System
(“2100”)

FDA Allowed
EPA Compliant
UL Listed
NSF Certified
Health Canada CFIA

Medivator DSD &
MDS

FDA Allowed
EPA Compliant
UL Listed
NSF Certified
Health Canada CFIA

Sterilox Fresh
System (“2300”)

NHS Supply Chain
Listing in process

Listed on NHS Supply
Chain

FDA Class II and CE
Mark

2006 &
2008

Sterilox Endoscopy
System (E200)

Sterilox Endoscopy
System (Midigen
or E100)

Sterilox Endoscopy
System (Maxigen)

Labcaire Endoscopy
Cabinets
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Market & Sector           Principal Products    Description                Launch          Primary Markets Regulatory Status

Scientific                       Laboratory Equipment
                                     Cupboards                 1998              UK                         CE Mark

                                     Benches                     1998              UK                         CE Mark

                                     Cabinets                     1998              UK                         CE Mark

Surgical                                                             2012              UK                         CE Mark

Wound Care                  CE Mark*                                          Europe                    

                                                             US                          

                                                             US                          

                                                             US                          

                                        2011              US                          FDA Cleared

                                        2011              US                          FDA Cleared

                                        2011              US                          FDA Cleared

                                      Vashe System            2010              US                          FDA Cleared

                                      Vashe System            2010              US                          

                                      Sterilox Systems        2010              US                          

                                      Vashe System            2007              US                          

Hydrogel
Dermatology 510(k)
clearance*

Vashe Wound
Therapy

SOMA Wound
Therapy (125, 250-,
and 475-ml bottles)

Private-labelled
bottled solution for
Misonix

Vashe Wound
Therapy for
Instillation
Applications (125,
250-, and 475-ml
bottles)

Vashe Wound
Therapy

Vashe Wound
Therapy (125-,
250-, and 475-ml
bottles)

Vashe Wound
Therapy

Vashe Wound
Therapy – Over The
Counter*

Vashe Wound
Therapy

Hydrogel Wound
Care 510(k)
clearance*

Labcaire Fume
Filtration Cupboards

Labcaire Downflow
Benches

Labcaire Biohazard
Safety Cabinets

Endoscopy
Consumables

Application submittedVashe Wound
Therapy solution,
hydrogel, and spray
gel

Vashe Wound
Therapy

Spray Gel FDA
510(k) clearance*

FDA Cleared and
UL Listed

Vashe Wound
Therapy with
Antimicrobial
Preservative Claims

FDA Cleared and UL
Listed

Vashe Wound
Therapy 30-day
Shelf Life

FDA Cleared and UL
Listed

Vashe Wound
Therapy

Application submitted
to the FDA 

Application submitted
to the FDA 

Application submitted
to the FDA 
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Market & Sector           Principal Products    Description                Launch          Primary Markets Regulatory Status

Dental                            Dental Systems          2007              US & UK      

                                      Sterilox System         2003              US & UK      

General Disinfection*   Sterilox Solution       Sterilox System                               EU                 

*      Non-commercialised products.

Note: CE self-certification is permissible as long as ISO design controls are followed and technical files are
completed.

7.        Revenue Models

PuriCore has a portfolio of recurring and non-recurring revenues.

(a)      Recurring Revenues

Recurring revenues are generated from rental or lease agreements, service contracts, bottled products,
disinfectant chemistry, managed services, and consumables. The Company’s strategy is to increase
both the amount and percentage of recurring revenues.

Under the rental or lease model for Sterilox Systems and other equipment, PuriCore places its
equipment at the customer site and the customer pays a fixed rental fee for using the equipment.
PuriCore offers a 42-month term for Sterilox Fresh Systems. These agreements are independent of
volume of Sterilox Solution produced thereby enabling the customers to produce as much Sterilox
Solution as they require on site and on demand in return for a fixed periodical rental fee. In the UK,
leases are for a five-year term. PuriCore benefits from recurring revenues and cash flows under the
rental model.

(b)      Non-Recurring Revenues

PuriCore also sells equipment such as Sterilox Systems and AERs outright to its customers as a
capital sale for non-recurring revenue. As part of a capital sale, the Company typically offers a 12-
month warranty for its products and sells extended warranty agreements.

8.        Manufacturing

The Company currently outsources certain manufacturing of its Sterilox Systems, AERs, and related
equipment. The majority of PuriCore’s products are produced in the country of sale thereby reducing
transport costs as well as the risk of foreign currency exchange fluctuations. Where appropriate, PuriCore
contracts with ISO Certified and/or FDA-approved manufacturers.

Certain AERs, endoscope storage cabinets, and Scientific (air handling) products are principally
manufactured at PuriCore’s facilities in Clevedon. The manufacturing facilities cover 20,000 square feet.
Materials such as the powder coated steel chassis and plastic components are manufactured off-site by local
contractors. Following delivery to PuriCore, the machines are assembled to exacting standards laid out in its
ISO 9001 and ISO 13485 registrations and then thoroughly tested before being delivered to final destinations
in the UK and internationally.

Vashe Wound Therapy and FloraFresh Solution are manufactured and bottled at the Company’s Malvern
facilities. As volume demands grow, PuriCore is investigating suitable outsourcing strategies for the
manufacturing and bottling of its solutions.

UL Listed FDA Class
I CE Mark

Application for BPD
submitted

FDA Cleared and UL
Listed

Aquatine EC
Endodontic
Cleanser

Sterilox Dental
System

38



9.        Business Units–Overview                                                                                                                       

PuriCore’s antimicrobial technology and compatible products are used principally in well-established core
businesses and emerging sectors of two broad markets: Health Sciences and Food & Agriculture.

(a)      Health Sciences

Providing a broad portfolio of equipment, consumables, and
services required for compliant disinfection of heat-sensitive
medical instruments, specifically flexible endoscopes, between
patient procedures. With this extensive portfolio, the Directors
believe PuriCore is now one of the largest providers of flexible
endoscope decontamination products and services in the UK. As
part of the Endoscopy core business, the Company also
manufactures and distributes a line of Scientific (clean-air-
handling) equipment for laboratories in the UK and international
markets.

Moistening, irrigating, cleaning and debriding acute and chronic
wounds including venous and diabetic ulcers, burns and
post-surgical wounds as an FDA-cleared medical device. The
Company currently offers six bottled products in this portfolio to
hospitals, wound care centres, nursing homes, and home healthcare
providers. PuriCore also manufactures and bottles a private-labelled
version of its wound care solution for adjunctive therapies for
Misonix, Inc. The Company markets another related device for use
as an endodontic cleanser for root canal disinfection and cleansing
in dental applications.

Dermatology: Pursuing partnership opportunities for a dermatologic formulation
of the Company’s wound care product.

Animal Health: Pursuing partnership opportunities for domestic and livestock
animal health formulations of the Company’s wound care product.

(b)      Food & Agriculture

Sanitising fresh produce to eliminate pathogens and
cross-contamination as well as to extend shelf life and reduce waste
in retail supermarket food safety programmes. PuriCore has focused
its fresh produce efforts initially in the US and Canadian retail
supermarket sector and primarily targets the larger supermarket
chains and regional chains.

Supermarket Retail–Floral: Addressing microbial growth in supermarket floral operations and
freshness of flowers whilst reducing cleaning labour required to
remove microorganisms, including mould and mildew, from fresh
floral displays and flower buckets. This concentrated bottled
solution is based upon a new chemical variation of the Sterilox
technology for use on fresh cut floral and living plants.

Agriculture: In research and development as a safe and effective fungicidal seed,
plant, and harvest protection agent for major crops including rice,
corn, and potatoes. Testing has demonstrated that it is a potent
broad-spectrum antifungal agent. Ongoing research is progressing
at Oxford University.

Endoscopy (including
Scientific):

Wound Care (including Dental):

Supermarket Retail–Fresh
Produce:
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Water Treatment: In development for the use of PuriCore technology for a variety of
water treatment applications, including those used in food
production, foodservice and agriculture, in conjunction with a
marketing partner.

10.      Business Units–Detail                                                                                                                             

Health Sciences

(a)      Endoscopy (including Scientific/Air-Handling)

(i)       Market opportunity
The PuriCore Endoscopy division targets the UK endoscope decontamination market as a core
business. With the acquisition of Labcaire in 2009 and the surgical endoscopy products
business of Monmouth Scientific Limited in 2012, the Directors believe PuriCore is one of the
largest providers of endoscope decontamination products and services in the UK. Flexible
endoscopes and gastroscopes, commonly used in medical procedures such as colonoscopies,
are large, delicate, complex and expensive instruments that cannot be steam-sterilised between
clinical procedures. Strict regulations govern the cleaning processes to ensure adequate safety
and quality controls to prevent pathogen transmission and to protect patients. The cleaning
process must be quick and efficient to enable multiple endoscope uses throughout the day.

PuriCore targets NHS hospitals and private hospitals with endoscopy departments.

PuriCore Endoscopy also targets the laboratory market with its Scientific (clean-air) Control of
Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH) equipment both in the UK and internationally. The
primary market is the UK with additional sales in Scandinavia, Europe, Africa, the Middle East
and Asia.

(ii)      Strategy, sales and marketing
The Directors believe the medical disinfection market in the UK offers the opportunity of
significant revenues and high margins. There is strong competition from major companies
already present in the market; however, approximately 310 UK hospitals with endoscopy suites
(approximately 270 NHS hospitals and approximately 40 private hospitals) use PuriCore
equipment.

PuriCore markets its Endoscopy products and services through its direct sales force, which it
plans to continue to utilise in the UK. The Company has made additional sales through its
distribution network in Europe and internationally (excluding the US), particularly with the
addition of the Scientific (clean air) products. Additional focus on further European expansion
is underway.

PuriCore Endoscopy sells Sterilox Systems, AERs and other equipment either as capital sales
or as lease sales, for 12 to 60 months. Recurring revenues, including disinfectant chemistries,
services, maintenance contracts, and related consumables, account for approximately 77 per
cent. of this business.

PuriCore also markets a suite of specialised clean-air-handling equipment for laboratories
including fume filtration cupboards, downflow benches, and biohazard safety cabinets. This
Scientific product portfolio accounts for approximately 8.5 per cent. of the PuriCore
Endoscopy business.

(iii)     Products
PuriCore offers a fully integrated product portfolio for its customers’ endoscopic
decontamination needs, from AERs, disinfectant chemistry and drying cabinets to services
including maintenance, training and validations. PuriCore also offers a line of Scientific (clean-
air-handling) equipment for laboratories.
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AERs

AERs are used for decontaminating most flexible endoscopes. The Company markets five AER
models: two “pass-through AERs” and three “single-sided AERs.” Approximately 310 UK
NHS and private hospitals use a PuriCore AER.

The “Labcaire ISIS” is a pass-through AER available in the UK that processes one or two
scopes in just 20 minutes.

The “SAFERplus” is capable of washing and disinfecting up to two endoscopes at a time once
the scope has undergone manual decontamination.

The “SAFER” is a single-sided AER.

The “Labcaire JetAER” quickly reprocesses endoscopes and works with a variety of
disinfectant chemistries.

The “Medivator MDS” is a single-sided AER that can process two flexible endoscopes
asynchronously. The MDS is a distributed product manufactured by Medivator Inc. from
the US.

Disinfectant Chemistries

Sterilox Systems

Sterilox Solution is generated by two models of Sterilox Systems on-site in the customers’
endoscopy suite tailored to different user requirements.

The Sterilox System E200 is capable of producing up to 200 litres of Sterilox Solution per hour
and was developed for hospitals with high-throughput endoscopy units. The E200 is designed
to support the volume demand for two AERs, each processing two endoscopes simultaneously.

The Sterilox System E100 (or “Midigen”) is capable of delivering up to 100 litres of Sterilox
Solution per hour and was developed for hospitals with lower throughput requirements and/or
for use where space is limited. The E100 is designed to support the processing of two
endoscopes simultaneously.

The characteristics of the Sterilox Solution, including its effectiveness at room temperature,
make it particularly effective for the disinfection of heat sensitive equipment (that cannot
simply be heated up in an autoclave to disinfect). Sterilox Solution is used as a single use, non-
fixative disinfectant, which reduces the risk of cross-contamination between patients.

PuriSept

PuriSept is a unique single-use peracetic acid based disinfectant. PuriSept provides a very low
concentration of peracetic acid resulting in excellent material compatibility as well as improved
health and safety. PuriSept has been specifically developed to suit the PuriCore range of AERs.

Adaspor

Adaspor® is a liquid chemical germicide for use in either AERs or for manual reprocessing.

Storage Cabinets

PuriCore offers two storage cabinets and one drying cabinet with full traceability for the safe
storage of up to five or ten endoscopes.

Services

Endoscopy on Demand: PuriCore Endoscopy offers managed equipment services–providing
endoscopy units with everything they need for safe, efficacious endoscope decontamination.
Under this programme, all equipment and services are included, and equipment is updated
when applicable.
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Service & Maintenance: PuriCore’s trained service team provides real-time remote fault
diagnosis and complete system guarantee (mechanical and microbiological).

Health Technical Memorandum (HTM) Rinse-Water Testing: PuriCore provides a simple
service for HTM Rinse-Water Testing, providing hospitals with cost control. All tests are
completed by the United Kingdom Accreditation Service accredited laboratories.

Clinical Nurse Advisers: PuriCore provides registered, NHS field-experienced nurses to offer
endoscopy units installation, commissioning, and onsite training on AERs to minimise
interruptions of service.

Consumable Endoscopy and Surgical Products

The Company offers a wide array of consumable products including disposables and
disinfectant chemistries used throughout the Endoscopy reprocessing suite as well as in
surgical suites as part of its portfolio. To augment future recurring revenues, PuriCore
purchased the surgical endoscopy products business of Monmouth Scientific Limited, a leading
provider of complementary endoscopy and surgical consumables, in May 2012 for £285,169
(including a payment of £85,169 for inventory) with further conditional consideration of
£125,000, of which £50,000 is payable on the first anniversary of completion and the balance
payable on the second anniversary of completion. PuriCore is rolling out the expanded product
offering to potential and existing customers.

Scientific Products

PuriCore provides a suite of specialised clean-air-handling equipment for laboratories based on
its filtration expertise. For fumes, the latest techniques in carbon filtration are employed. For
particulates and clean air requirements, high efficiency particulate air (HEPA) filters are used.
All laboratory products are designed and manufactured in the Clevedon facility and are
serviced by PuriCore’s nationwide service team.

Filtration Fume Cupboards: PuriCore provides three cupboards (as well as custom cupboards)
to filter chemical fumes, offering the highest standards of operator protection with a versatile
and environmentally sound method of fume and particulate containment. These ductless
cupboards recirculate clean air back into the laboratory and require no additional ventilation or
heating into the room, making them suitable for use in clean rooms and air-conditioned rooms.

Microbiological Safety Cabinets: PuriCore offers a range of floor-standing microbiological
safety cabinets that protect the operator, the sample where applicable, and the environment
from cross-contamination and fully comply with COSHH regulations. These cabinets have
been designed and tested to conform to and exceed the requirements of the latest British and
European standards.

Downflow Benches: PuriCore’s downflow benches allow laboratory workers to contain fumes
at the work surface and when using the optional sink, ensuring containment of rinsed and
emptied samples. The Company offers four standards sizes of downflow benches in addition to
custom-fitted benches for unique laboratory conditions.

(iv)     Competition                                                                                                                                   
The UK endoscope decontamination market is maturing in terms of regulatory standardisation
and the requirement for suppliers to meet complex criteria in order to compete. This has
divided the competitive environment into the substantial players that have the resources and
capability to comply with stringent standards and the smaller players including
dealer/distributors that cannot support the breadth of expertise needed to compete in the longer
term.

As the market continues to mature, it is reasonable to expect consolidation of the number of
suppliers due to the high threshold of market entry and sustainability as well as the funnelling
of hospital procurement contracts through the NHS Supply Chain. This additional tier of

42



market ‘regulation’ is a valuable asset to the compliant, capable supplier as it provides access
to the majority of NHS capital and consumable spending and locks out smaller, less compliant
suppliers. PuriCore has a presence on the NHS Supply Chain National Framework Agreements
for Capital Equipment, Disinfectant Chemistries and Field Service and Maintenance contracts.

(v)      Regulatory                                                                                                                                      
Regulatory approval has been obtained for the sale of products in the medical sector in the UK
and in continental Europe as well as in the US. PuriCore Endoscopy products (including the
Scientific products) comply with the latest British and European guidelines and standards
including CFPP01-06 and BS EN ISO 134585. Sterilox Systems are approved for the
disinfection and sterilisation of endoscopes in Europe, CE Marked Class IIb medical device,
and in the US, FDA 510(k)-cleared Class II medical device. PuriCore’s Scientific products
comply to the latest British and European guidelines and standards including BS 7989; BS EN
ISO 9001, 9002, 12128, 12469 and 14644; BS ISO 10002; and BS EN 12296, 12298 and
14175.

(vi)     Outlook
The Company endeavours to further grow the Endoscopy business by increasing recurring
revenues and capitalising on the new Surgical consumables catalogue. The Directors continue
to maintain a prudent approach to costs in a business that is highly dependent upon NHS
spending.

(b)      Wound Care (including Dental)

(i)       Market opportunity
PuriCore transitioned its Wound Care business from on-site generators to bottled solution in
2011. Currently, the Company offers six products in this portfolio. In addition, PuriCore
manufactures private-labelled solution for ultrasonic debridement for Misonix, Inc.

In the US, PuriCore also markets into dental surgeries to address oral care utilising an FDA-
cleared oral care product for cleansing and irrigating root canals during treatment. In both the
UK and the US, this solution is used to address hard-surface decontamination and disinfection
and water-line safety.

(ii)      Strategy, sales and marketing
Vashe Wound Therapy is used to treat a variety of chronic and acute wounds, including chronic
venous ulcers, non-healing surgical wounds, and necrotising soft tissue infections, with no
report of adverse side effects. In addition, Vashe is used as an adjunctive therapy with advanced
wound care therapies including ultrasound and negative-pressure wound therapy.

PuriCore markets Vashe to a variety of appropriate care settings, including hospitals, wound
care centres, nursing homes, and home healthcare providers. PuriCore utilises a limited direct
sales force combined with representatives throughout the US; however, it is currently pursuing
partnership agreements with large wound care marketing partners to expand its sales reach both
in North America and in international territories.

PuriCore also markets its antimicrobial solutions to dental practices targeting clinically
oriented applications for root canal procedures and oral rinses and biofilm remediation. The
Group utilises a distributor in the UK to sell its Sterilox Dental Systems in the UK and
Scandinavia.

(iii)     Products
Vashe Wound Therapy is designed as a safe and effective non-cytotoxic, non-sensitising,
proprietary wound treatment specifically aimed at managing the wound environment. It is an
FDA-cleared medical device used for moistening, irrigating, cleaning, and debriding acute and
chronic wounds including stage I through IV pressure ulcers, stasis ulcers, diabetic ulcers, post-
surgical wounds, first and second degree burns, abrasions, and minor irritations of the skin.
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PuriCore manufactures and sells three sizes of bottles for both Vashe Wound Therapy and
Vashe Wound Therapy for Instillation Applications, which are suitable for adjunctive therapies
including ultrasonic debridement and negative pressure wound therapy. In addition, PuriCore
manufactures a private-labelled line of wound therapy products for Misonix, Inc. for use in
ultrasonic debridement.

Published research demonstrated that Vashe Wound Therapy provides a safe and effective
alternative to cytotoxic antimicrobial and antiseptic products currently used to treat infected
wounds and surgical sites and is an important element in the overall clinical process of effective
wound management. Results from a clinical trial showed promising results regarding the use
of Vashe Wound Therapy in the post-operative care of split-thickness skin grafts for burn
injuries. Study results showed that Vashe Wound Therapy demonstrated clinical efficacy for
post-operative skin graft irrigation whilst offering significant overall cost savings without
reported complications or infections.2

(iv)     Competition                                                                                                                                   
There are a variety of competitive Wound Care products used in the treatment of chronic, acute
and surgical wounds, including irrigants (predominantly sterile saline), enzymatic cleansers,
antimicrobial dressings, topical ointments and ancillary supplies used in the debridement,
bioburden management, exudate management and wound irrigation of different wound types.
The advanced Wound Care market ranges from products designed to function as antimicrobial
dressings for controlling wound infections to negative-pressure wound therapy to promote
healing of difficult chronic and surgical wounds and the use of growth factors and advanced
healing technologies.

(v)      Regulatory                                                                                                                                      
Vashe Wound Therapy has received a 510(k) clearance from the FDA in the US. In 2009,
PuriCore received an FDA 510(k) clearance that extends the shelf-life of the Vashe Wound
Therapy solution and enables wound care clinics greater flexibility in the use of the therapy and
thereby allowing PuriCore to manufacture and sell bottled Vashe Wound Therapy. In 2010,
PuriCore received an FDA 510(k) clearance allowing for an antimicrobial preservative claim.
Also in 2010, PuriCore received an FDA 510(k) clearance for over-the-counter marketing.

PuriCore currently is pursuing regulatory clearances in the US and Europe. Filings in process
include:

•          Wound Care hydrogel US FDA 510(k);

•          Dermatology (indicated for various dermatoses, including atopic, allergic contact and
radiation dermatitis) hydrogel US FDA 510(k);

•          Animal Health Human Wound Care sprayable gel US FDA 510(k); and

•          European CE mark for Wound Care solution, hydrogel, and sprayable gel

The Sterilox Dental System used in the dental business unit is classified by the FDA as a Class I
medical device, exempt from 510(k) marketing clearance and is also CE marked and has all
necessary approvals required in the European Union.

(vi)     Outlook
The Company expects to continue to expand clinical use of Vashe Wound Therapy and is
seeking marketing partners to expand its reach in North America and international markets.
PuriCore will seek to expand regulatory approvals to enable a wider distribution and utilisation
of the product in different formats and packaging configurations. As part of this strategy,
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PuriCore is pursuing new markets for its Vashe technology in new Health Sciences segments,
including Dermatology and Animal Health as outlined below.

(c)      Dermatology

The Directors believe that the dermatology market is a potentially lucrative business development
opportunity for a new formulation of the PuriCore wound care product. The dermatology market is
valued at US$38 million with an annual growth rate of 8.7 per cent. The four major segments of this
market are: acne at 28.7 per cent., psoriasis at 26.4 per cent., rosacea at 14.9 per cent., and atopic
dermatitis at 9 per cent.3,4 PuriCore has identified a leading dermatology pharmaceutical partner and
is pursuing a partnership to market its technology to the dermatology market. PuriCore is progressing
in its efforts to receive the appropriate FDA regulatory clearances for a hydrogel product that would
be indicated for the management and relief of pain, burning, and itch associated with various
dermatoses, including atopic, allergic contact and radiation dermatitis for the dermatology market.

(d)      Animal Health

The Directors believe that the animal health market is a potentially lucrative business development
opportunity for new formulations of the PuriCore wound care product. PuriCore is pursuing
partnership agreements to market its technology to the companion and livestock animal health market.
Product development and regulatory clearances are being pursued for various indications for pet and
livestock treatment in solution, spray, hydrogel, and gel formulations. Indications for companion
animals pursued may include rashes, post-surgical sites, burns, skin infections, hot spots,
wounds/cuts, skin ulcers, wound odours, and reptile wounds. As with the human wound care product,
PuriCore’s solution offers unique benefits of neutral pH, which offers antimicrobial effectiveness and
tissue friendliness over other animal health wound care products including iodine and Vetericyn
(Oculus Innovative Sciences). PuriCore’s regulatory strategy for Animal Health products will be
based on the Company’s human Wound Care clearances and will utilise the solution, hydrogel, and
sprayable gel formulations.

Food & Agriculture

(e)      Supermarket Retail–Fresh Produce

(i)       Market opportunity
PuriCore targets the Supermarket Retail market as a core business. Sterilox Fresh Systems
address cross-contamination of infectious pathogens and extend the shelf life and home life
whilst reducing waste for fresh produce. In supermarkets, Sterilox Solution typically replaces
the water that is used for the crisping (rinsing and rehydrating) of fresh produce, the rinsing of
seafood and in floral applications to eliminate infectious and spoilage microorganisms. In
addition, Sterilox Solution is added at low concentrations in the produce misting systems to
keep bacteria counts minimised. The Directors believe that the use of Sterilox Solution to
prolong the shelf life of produce and to improve food safety has created a significant core
market opportunity for the Company.

The Company has focused its Supermarket Retail business initially in the North American
retail sector. Of the approximately 34,600 North American supermarkets as defined by trade
publications covering the market,5 the Company focuses on the 28,000 retail stores that can
support one or more Sterilox Systems.
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4      Dermatology Therapeutics Market to 2017 – Alopecia Market is Forecast to Decline Due to Patent Expiry of Finasteride in 2013
and Weak Pipeline. GBI Research abstract, January 2012, accessed http://www.marketresearch.com/GBI-
Research-v3759/Dermatology-Therapeutics-Alopecia-Forecast-Decline-6746073/.
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(ii)      Sales, Strategy and Marketing
The standard practice in the market remains essentially the use of regular tap water, and the
market share for use of Sterilox Systems in supermarkets continues to grow along with
opportunities for additional sales within the PuriCore customer base and with new sales
prospects.

PuriCore markets its Sterilox Fresh Systems through its direct sales force, which it plans to
continue to utilise in North America.

As at 30 September 2012, more than 50 leading US supermarket brands (including two of the
top-five US supermarket retailers) use Sterilox Systems. PuriCore’s current targeted market is
28,000 North American stores, of which the Company has already installed its Systems in 21
per cent. of these stores. As at 30 September 2012, PuriCore had sales opportunities for fresh
produce applications with other customers in negotiations, trials, or discussions representing an
additional 55 per cent. of the market.

PuriCore sells Sterilox Systems either as capital sales or as lease sales, generally for 42 month
terms. Other than the rental cost of the Sterilox System, the only additional cost to the customer
of using the Sterilox System is for common salt and any incremental water and electricity
usage.

As part of its sales process for each customer, PuriCore conducts an economic analysis of the
product wastage (shrink) and labour savings realised by the installation of Sterilox Systems in
each location.

(iii)     Products
PuriCore currently markets its Sterilox Fresh System third-generation model 2300. As the
Sterilox Solution leaves no residual taste and is not toxic, it is used (and listed by the FDA and
by the US Department of Agriculture National Organic Program) to treat food products
directly.

The Company employs direct sales and marketing staff to sell, install, and train customers on
its Systems and offers its customers the option of capital purchase or a multi-year (typically
42 months) lease agreement.

PuriCore has a dedicated in-house customer service team for the Supermarket Retail business
to handle order processing, facilitate deliveries and liaise with the field-based support team.
PuriCore also works with its customers to develop economic models to quantify the savings in
produce and labour and to develop quality control systems when implementing a Sterilox
System.

(iv)     Competition                                                                                                                                   
Because of the Sterilox Solution’s specific safety profile, efficacy, and the lack of impact on the
odour or taste of food, the Directors believe that there is currently limited direct competition in
this market and that PuriCore is a leading US retail product sanitiser.

Potential competitors may try to duplicate the effect of the Sterilox Solution by other
electrolysed brine means or address this market with other technologies such as ozone,
peracetic acid or ionisation. Other methods exist to generate electrochemically activated water
from brine solutions, which produces predominantly acidic or basic pH chlorine solutions.

The Directors further believe that the Group’s intellectual property protection and proprietary
know-how should prevent significant entry by other manufacturers of products equivalent to
Sterilox Solution in PuriCore’s target markets.
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(v)      Regulatory                                                                                                                                      
Sterilox Solution has been listed by the FDA for food contact. Sterilox Solution complies with
the US Department of Agriculture National Organics Program and state and local health
departments. Sterilox Fresh Systems are also listed with UL and NSF, both of which are
required to sell the products in the US supermarket marketplace.

(vi)     Outlook
The Company endeavours to further grow the Supermarket Retail business by increasing its
North American market share.

(f)       Floral

(i)       Market opportunity
The Directors believe that the Floral market in North America offers the opportunity of
significant revenues and high margins. PuriCore has initially targeted the US and Canadian
Supermarket Retail market for the launch of FloraFresh. In October, PuriCore announced a
major contract expected to generate approximately US$7 million over four years with an
existing customer, a top-five US supermarket retailer, to implement and use PuriCore’s new
bottled concentrate of FloraFresh.

(ii)      Sales, Strategy and Marketing
PuriCore markets its FloraFresh Solution through its direct sales force, which it plans to
continue to utilise in North America.

(iii)     Products
PuriCore launched the FloraFresh System, based on the Sterilox Fresh Model 2300 with
modifications for the chemical variation of its Sterilox technology for use on fresh cut floral
and living plants, in 2010. In 2012, PuriCore launched FloraFresh Solution as a bottled
concentrated product, eliminating the need for System sales, installations, and service and
providing for recurring revenues. At the customer site, PuriCore now installs a simple,
proprietary dilution system, which automatically dilutes the FloraFresh concentrate to the
appropriate use concentration.

The Company employs direct sales and marketing staff to sell, install the dilution system, and
train customers on the use of FloraFresh Solution. PuriCore has a dedicated in-house customer
service team for the FloraFresh business to handle order processing and facilitate deliveries.

(iv)     Competition
The primary competition for FloraFresh is traditional floral care programmes. FloraFresh
offers unique value over these traditional programmes by providing a single solution for all
floral applications for both microorganism control and plant food. In addition, the ability of
FloraFresh to control microorganisms in floral buckets keeps flowers hydrated.

(v)      Regulatory                                                                                                                                      
There are no regulatory clearances required for this product.

(vi)     Outlook
PuriCore is evaluating expansion plans for FloraFresh.

(g)      Agriculture

The Directors believe that the agricultural market is a potentially lucrative business development
opportunity for the chemical variation of its Sterilox technology for use on fresh cut floral and living
plants. Fungi are the most prolific, widespread, and damaging agents of plant disease. Each major
food crop is challenged by extant fungal strains and threatened by the emergence of new aggressive
strains.

Based on the new chemical variation of its Solution for floral applications (FloraFresh), PuriCore
initiated research and development in agricultural solutions, which is branded as ActiVita. ActiVita is
being developed as a safe and highly effective fungicidal seed, plant, and harvest protection agent. In
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December 2011, PuriCore received confirmation from the US Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) for its ActiVita Agriculture System as an on-site generator of fungicidal crop protection. Earlier
this year, the Biotechnology and Biological Sciences Research Council (BBSRC) awarded a £500,000
research grant to Oxford University to study PuriCore’s ActiVita Agricultural solution as a broad-
spectrum antifungal agent. The three-year grant will fund research focused on exploring the mode of
action of the ActiVita solution on fungi that devastate major food crops. PuriCore now plans to enter
discussions with potential partners to commercialise ActiVita to address the growing demand for a
safe and effective fungicide for seeds and crops.

(h)      Water Treatment

The Directors believe that the water treatment market is a potentially lucrative business development
opportunity for PuriCore’s technology platform. PuriCore’s technology is applicable for Water
Treatment in a variety of applications. The Company has historically installed the Aqualox products
in multiple settings, including the treatment of potable water supply for maintaining Legionella counts
at safe levels and flushing of factory product lines to remove biofilm and potential contamination
hazards. The Company is pursuing business development efforts to explore commercialisation of
contemporary solutions for this market segment. In October 2012, PuriCore signed a marketing
partnership agreement with Lohas Products GmbH. Under this agreement, PuriCore will provide
technical and scientific knowledge as new applications are commercialised. These new potential
applications include the use of PuriCore’s technology for seafood production, water treatment in
restaurants and livestock husbandry.

11.      Research and Development                                                                                                                   

The Directors believe that maintaining strong research and development is essential to successful innovation
to build on the Company’s competitive position in its current markets and in new applications and
geographies worldwide.

The Directors intend to continue to invest in research and development, and to this end have assembled teams
of high quality and experienced employees in microbiology, chemistry, quality, and engineering.

The Company is pursuing a number of research and development opportunities from which the Directors
believe the Company’s technology can extract significant value. In particular, the Company’s efforts focus
on the development of new formulations and product offerings in new market areas, including new Health
Sciences market segments, such as new Agricultural applications and water treatment that can be further
developed for specified global markets. In addition, PuriCore maintains ongoing microbiological research
including research on agricultural pathogenic fungi and other potential pathogens.

12.      Intellectual Property                                                                                                                              

The Group owns intellectual property encompassing patents, trade marks, trade secrets, and copyrights
related to the Sterilox cell, Sterilox Systems, Sterilox Solution and Labcaire Isis AERs utilised in various
markets, including Supermarket Retail, Floral, Endoscopy, Wound Care, Dental, and Water Treatment. The
Company has 43 granted patents with expiry dates ranging from 2013 to 2031 and another 18 patent
applications that are currently pending in various jurisdictions. The Company also has 24 registered
trademarks and 10 pending trademark applications. The Company further possesses certain proprietary
know-how and trade secrets. Finally, the Company has copyright protection in certain of its original works
of authorship.

(a)      Patents

The Directors are aware of the importance of protecting the Company’s inventions and continue to
seek patent protection where appropriate in relevant jurisdictions. The Company’s 43 granted patents
have been issued in Canada, Germany, France, Italy, the United Kingdom, and the United States.
International applications have been filed pursuant to the Patent Cooperation Treaty (which gives the
applicant the option to seek patent protection in over 150 countries) and in the European Patent Office
(which gives the applicant the option to seek patent protection in various countries of the European
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Union), Canada, the United Kingdom, Germany, France, Italy and the United States. The patents and
applications relate to the following:

•          operating systems used in the Sterilox Systems;

•          catholyte recirculation systems used in the Sterilox Systems;

•          electrochemical cells used and for use in the Sterilox Systems;

•          ceramic membrane for use in the Sterilox Systems;

•          biocidal solutions;

•          automated endoscope reprocessors;

•          endoscope coatings, including a complete system and applicator;

•          electrolyte formulations;

•          apparatuses and systems for storing, dispensing and reconstituting materials;

•          applications directed to health care, including wound care, treatment of infection; and

•          floral solutions.

(b)      Trademarks

The Company protects its most significant trade marks and currently holds, in addition to its common
law (non-registered) rights, various registrations and pending applications in the European Union, the
United Kingdom, and the United States. The registrations and applications encompass 24 marks,
including Active Ice, ActiVita, FloraFresh, PuriCore, Sterilox and Vashe. The Company also has
trademarks pending in the European Union, China and the United States.

(c)      Trade Secrets

The Company is careful to take reasonable measures to protect the substantial body of knowledge and
confidential information (“know-how”) that it has created while conducting extensive research and
development directed to the Company’s technology and while expanding its business. Such trade
secret information concerns both technological (e.g. production details, control systems, solution
chemistries, market applications, methods and processes) and operational (customer lists, vendor lists,
and economic data) aspects of the business. In addition to the Company’s published intellectual
property, the Directors believe that this trade secret information gives the Company a significant
advantage over competitors who would similarly need to invest heavily in research and development
in order to generate the information encompassed within the Company’s protected trade secrets.

(d)      Copyrights

The Company has copyright protection in certain of its original works of authorship (e.g. advertising
materials, product brochures, and reports).

13.      Facilities                                                                                                                                                   

In the US, PuriCore’s operations in Malvern, Pennsylvania, consists of a facility with 32,908 square feet of
space under a lease agreement expiring in August 2014. The Company is confident in its ability to renew in
the existing space or will seek alternative space available for the same or lesser cost.

In the UK, the Company has operations in Stafford and Clevedon. The Stafford facility consists of 13,580
square feet of space for which the lease expires in September 2014. The lease may be renegotiated with the
landlord prior to the time of expiry, or the Company may choose to relocate to a similar facility nearby as
there is sufficient available space locally. The Clevedon facility consists of 20,000 square feet comprising
offices, warehousing, and manufacturing space under a long-term lease that expires in June 2017, subject to
potential early termination by both PuriCore or the landlord with no penalty. As part of the integration of
Labcaire, the Company has taken advantage of existing warehousing space in Clevedon.
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14.      Insurance

It is PuriCore’s business policy to take out insurance to the extent it considers appropriate for its business.
PuriCore currently maintains insurance policies covering risks associated with its property, equipment,
stock, director and officer, travel, medical and employee liability, vehicles and product liability, each in
amounts the Directors believe to be appropriate to its business.

15.      Directors and Senior Management

(a)      Directors                                                                                                                                                   

Michael Ashton, Executive Chairman

Mr. Ashton joined PuriCore in February 2012 as an Independent Non-Executive Director and became
Non-Executive Chairman in March 2012 and Executive Chairman in May 2012. He brings more than
30 years of pharmaceutical, biotechnology, and medical device industry experience including senior
positions at Merck Inc. and Pfizer Inc. as well as holding a number of CEO positions at Purepac Inc.,
Faulding Inc., SkyePharma plc, and most recently at LMA, NV. Mr. Ashton is also a Non-Executive
Director of Hikma Pharmaceuticals Plc and Transition Therapeutics Inc. and serves as a pharma
consultant to Nations Investment Company. Mr. Ashton holds a B. Pharma from Sydney University
and an MBA from Rutgers University.

James Walsh, PhD, Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Walsh joined PuriCore in March 2012 as Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, previously
serving as an Independent Non-Executive Director from September 2006 to July 2010. Dr. Walsh has
25 years of general management experience in the healthcare industry with particular experience in
diagnostics. He is an Executive Director and Chief Scientific Officer of Trinity Biotech plc, an Irish
diagnostics company quoted on NASDAQ. Dr. Walsh is Chairman of Biosensia Limited and
GenCellBiosystems Limited, both early-stage life sciences companies. He also holds Non-Executive
Director positions with a number of early-stage biotechnology companies. Dr. Walsh is a graduate of
the National University of Ireland and holds a Doctorate in Inorganic Chemistry and Post-Doctorate
qualifications in Immunochemistry.

William Birkett, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Birkett joined PuriCore in 1999 as an Independent Non-Executive Director. On 31 January 2008,
Mr. Birkett was appointed Senior Independent Non-Executive Director. Mr. Birkett is an independent
consultant and investor. He is former chairman of Chelford Group plc, and former non-executive
director of Monument Securities Ltd. His career was in finance and global investment banking before
forming and running two independent venture capital firms in the 1980s and 1990s. Having obtained
a BSc in Economics from Sheffield University, he qualified as an FCA with Touche Ross (now
Deloitte LLP).

Matthew Hammond, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hammond joined PuriCore in 2010 as a Non-Executive Director and brings more than 15 years
of banking and financial experience to the PuriCore Board. He is currently the Managing Director of
Mail. Ru Group Limited, one of the leading internet companies in Russia. Before that, he was Group
Strategist for Metalloinvest Holdings where he had broad-ranging responsibilities including equity
forecasting, modelling, marketing, asset origination, portfolio management, and M&A. He started his
career at Credit Suisse where he was an analyst for 11 years. He is also a non-executive director of
Nautilus Minerals Inc. and Strike Resources Limited, and he serves on the audit committee of each of
Nautilus Minerals Inc. and Strike Resources Limited. Mr. Hammond graduated from Bristol
University in 1997 with a BA (Hons) in history and economics. Mr. Hammond represents Kanton
Services Limited, which is a major shareholder in PuriCore.
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Michael Sapountzoglou, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sapountzoglou joined PuriCore in 1999 as a Non-Executive Director. Mr. Sapountzoglou brings
more than 20 years of investment and finance experience and is currently the finance director of
Metrostar Management Corp., the shipping arm of the Angelopoulos group, and serves as the
corporate finance and investment adviser for the group’s other global investment activities. Prior to
this, he was a co-founder of Gamma Research, a financial advisory firm focusing on European and
Eastern European markets. He was also the investment manager for Star Maritime S.A., a private
company based in Monte Carlo and part of the Livanos Shipping Group, where he managed and
oversaw the group’s proprietary investment portfolios. Mr. Sapountzoglou is also an investment
adviser to Gacita Limited, which is a major shareholder in PuriCore.

(b)      Senior Management

PuriCore is led by an experienced group of managers in both the UK and US. This team is supported
by a dedicated group of employees in sales, marketing, technology, engineering, operations, quality,
clinical science and regulatory affairs. In addition to Mr. Ashton as Executive Chairman, the following
are members of the Senior Management of PuriCore:

Neil Blewitt, Senior Vice President Endoscopy and Clean Air, UK Managing Director

Mr. Blewitt joined PuriCore in August 2009 following the acquisition of Labcaire Systems Ltd.,
bringing significant engineering and international business development experience. Mr. Blewitt
joined Labcaire as Managing Director in June 2008. He was previously a divisional director for
International Greetings plc responsible for UK and Asia operations. He served as senior vice president
for CSM Industries, a global supplier to the semiconductor and medical industries, and was
responsible for European Operations and Customers. CSM Industries previously had acquired
Molypress Ltd., where Mr. Blewitt was managing director, following a management buyout from
Murex Ltd. He began his career at Johnson Matthey Group in Research and Development. Mr. Blewitt
graduated with BSc Honours from the University of Birmingham and is a Fellow of the Institute of
Directors.

Jenifer Bowden, Vice President-Finance and Corporate Controller

Ms. Bowden joined PuriCore in August 2006 and has more than 17 years of experience in financial
reporting, financial systems, and manufacturing and operations accounting. She has served in a
number of increasingly responsible financial management roles and is now responsible for all
corporate accounting and finance functions. Prior to joining PuriCore, she served in senior financial
roles for Carpenter Technology, a global publicly held specialty metals company; Adolor Corporation,
a publicly held biopharmaceutical company; and Salient 3 Communications, a publicly held
telecommunications holding company. Ms. Bowden holds a BS degree (magna cum laude) in
accounting from Albright College.

Tom Daniel, Senior Vice President/General Manager, Global Food Safety

Mr. Daniel joined PuriCore in July 2002 as Vice President of Food Safety. Prior to joining the
Company, he spent 19 years in the food safety, hospitality, and service sectors. Recent positions he
held in this sector include executive vice president and chief operating officer of DSI Corporation,
which provides food equipment and merchandising solutions to leading global supermarket chains,
and president of Bakers Aid, a division of Hobart Corporation, a leading equipment provider serving
global food service and retail markets. He is a graduate of the University of Alabama with a BS in
Business Administration.

Geoff Koontz, Vice President of Corporate Marketing

Mr. Koontz joined PuriCore in September 2006 as Marketing Director and is now Vice President of
Marketing. Previously Mr. Koontz served in a variety of roles at Rohm and Haas (now Dow),
including Marketing/Business Development, Strategic Planning and Supply Chain Management. He
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has extensive experience in a broad range of market segments including Personal Care, Industrial
Specialty Chemicals, Agriculture, Food Retail/Food Service and Hospitality. Mr. Koontz graduated
with a BS in Chemical Engineering from The Pennsylvania State University and has an MBA from
La Salle University.

Colin Leak, UK Finance Director

Mr. Leak joined PuriCore in September 2010. He brings more than 15 years financial and commercial
industry experience including both manufacturing and distribution. His experience includes a broad
spectrum of operational business aspects including Six Sigma, Lean Manufacturing, and Change
Management. Mr. Leak manages the UK finance team and is heavily involved in commercial business
issues. Prior to joining PuriCore, Colin held Finance Director roles within the electrical
manufacturing and distribution industry, acquiring specific industrial experience as manufacturing
and financial controller prior to his appointment as UK Finance Director. Colin has a professional
background gained with PricewaterhouseCoopers with whom he qualified and rose to the position of
Senior Manager encompassing a broad industrial profile of client responsibility and gathering
corporate finance exposure along the way.

Mark Sampson, PhD, Vice President – Research & Scientific Development

Dr. Sampson joined PuriCore in September 2000 as Senior Scientific Director and was promoted to
Vice President – Research & Scientific Development in 2012. He brings more than 10 years of
experience as a PhD-level commercial microbiologist, focusing on pathogen research in medical
device, pharmaceutical, food, and water treatment applications. He currently manages the global
PuriCore R&D team. Prior to joining PuriCore, Dr. Sampson worked as a Senior Scientist for
Warwick International, a UK Specialty Chemicals company specialising in medical device sterilants.
Dr. Sampson graduated from the University of Aberdeen with an honours degree in Microbiology. He
then completed a joint PhD in Microbiology/Biochemistry from the University of
Aberdeen/Cambridge studying “The role of enzymes in biopesticides.”

Marella Thorell, Vice President – Human Resources & Administration and Company Secretary

Ms. Thorell joined PuriCore in October 2008, having served as a consultant to the Company for three
years. Prior to joining PuriCore, she was the principal of Thorell Consulting, a human resources and
business consulting firm. Ms. Thorell was formerly Director – Human Resources at Campbell Soup
Company, supporting the sales, marketing, finance, and information technology departments. She
transferred into Human Resources after having spent several years in the Company’s Corporate Audit
function providing advice within Campbell’s global operations. She began her career and earned her
CPA designation with Ernst & Young, LLP in Philadelphia. Ms. Thorell holds a BS in Business from
Lehigh University.
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PART IV

FINANCIAL INFORMATION RELATING TO PURICORE

The statutory financial statements for PuriCore for the year ended 31 December 2011 were audited by KPMG
Audit Plc whose report was unqualified and did not contain any statements under subsections 498(2) and
498(3) of the 2006 Act.

The statutory financial statements for PuriCore for the year ended 31 December 2010 were audited by
KPMG Audit Plc whose report was unqualified and did not contain any statements under subsections 237(2)
and 237(3) of the 1985 Act. Without qualification, but by way of emphasis of matter, it drew attention to the
fact that the Group’s forecasts indicated that, in order to finance its operations over the next 12 months, the
Group needed to procure that Shareholder approval was obtained in relation to the issue of equity warrants
and that a substantial number of its Convertible Loan Notes were converted to equity on or before the
repayment date of 31 December 2011. These matters indicated the existence of material uncertainties that
may have cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statutory financial statements for PuriCore for the year ended 31 December 2009 were audited by
KPMG Audit Plc whose report was unqualified and did not contain any statements under subsections 237(2)
and 237(3) of the 1985 Act. Without qualification, but by way of emphasis of matter, it drew attention to the
fact that the Group’s forecasts indicated that the Group needed to raise additional funds in order to finance
its operations over the next 12 months. In particular, uncertainties were highlighted associated with the
substantial achievement of the Group’s forecasts, the planned issue of Convertible Loan Notes (including the
requirement to obtain Shareholder approval) and subsequent conversion, and the ability to secure further
lease monetisation funding. These conditions, along with other matters explained in the financial statements,
indicated the existence of a material uncertainty that may have cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The following documents, details of which are available on the Company’s website at www.puricore.com,
are incorporated into this document by reference:

•         PuriCore’s 2012 half yearly results, comprising PuriCore’s unaudited consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2012 prepared under IFRS as adopted by the EU together
with relevant accounting policies and notes. The condensed consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June
2012 is on page 5, the condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the six months
ended 30 June 2012 is on page 4, the condensed consolidated statement of cashflow for the six months
ended 30 June 2012 is on page 6, the condensed consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
six months ended 30 June 2012 is on page 7, the significant accounting policies are on page 7 and the
explanatory notes, including a description of the Group’s operating segments, are on pages 8 to 10.

•         PuriCore’s 2011 Annual Report and Accounts, comprising PuriCore’s audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 prepared under IFRS as adopted by the EU together
with relevant accounting policies and notes and the report of the independent auditors. The
independent auditor’s report is on pages 27 and 28, the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2011 is on pages 32 and 33, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2011 is on page 29, the consolidated statement of changes in equity is on page 30, the
consolidated cash flow statement is on page 35, the accounting policies are on pages 37 to 41 and the
explanatory notes, including a description of the principal markets in which the Company operates,
are on pages 42 to 66.

•         PuriCore’s 2011 half yearly results, comprising PuriCore’s unaudited consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2011 prepared under IFRS as adopted by the EU together
with relevant accounting policies and notes. The condensed consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June
2011 is on page 7, the condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the six months
ended 30 June 2012 is on page 6, the condensed consolidated statement of cashflow for the six months
ended 30 June 2012 is on page 8, the condensed consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
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six months ended 30 June 2012 is on page 9, the significant accounting policies are on page 9 and the
explanatory notes, including a description of the Group’s operating segments, are on pages 10 to 13.

•         PuriCore’s 2010 Annual Report and Accounts, comprising PuriCore’s audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 prepared under IFRS as adopted by the EU together
with relevant accounting policies and notes and the report of the independent auditors. The
independent auditor’s report is on pages 28 and 29, the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2010 is on pages 33 and 34, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2011 is on page 30, the consolidated statement of changes in equity is on page 31, the
consolidated cash flow statement is on page 36, the accounting policies are on pages 38 to 43 and the
explanatory notes, including a description of the principal markets in which the Company operates,
are on pages 44 to 72.

•         PuriCore’s 2009 Annual Report and Accounts, comprising PuriCore’s audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 prepared under IFRS as adopted by the EU together
with relevant accounting policies and notes and the report of the independent auditors.
The independent auditor’s report is on pages 32 and 33, the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 December 2009 is on pages 37 and 38, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2011 is on page 34, a consolidated statement of changes in equity is on
page 35, the consolidated cash flow statement is on page 40, the accounting policies are on pages 42
to 47 and the explanatory notes, including a description of the principal markets in which the
Company operates, are on pages 48 to 74.

The financial information incorporated by reference does not constitute statutory financial statements within
the meaning of section 434 of the 2006 Act.

See paragraph 25 of Part VI of this document for further details about the information that has been
incorporated by reference.

Where the documents incorporated by reference make reference to other documents, such other documents
are not incorporated into and do not form part of this document.
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                                                         PART V                                                          

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following review should be read in conjunction with the financial information incorporated by reference
as described in Part IV of this document and investors should not rely on the summary operating and
financial information set out in the section at the beginning of this document headed “Summary
Information”. The principal risks and uncertainties facing the business are discussed in the “Risk Factors”
section set out on pages 14 to 17 of this document.

This review contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The Company’s actual
results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of
certain factors including, but not limited to, those discussed in “Risk Factors” on pages 14 to 17 of this
document.

The financial information in this Part V has been extracted without material adjustment from the audited
financial statements of PuriCore for the years ended 31 December 2009, 2010, and 2011 and the unaudited
half yearly results of PuriCore for the six month periods ended 30 June 2011 and 2012, all of which are
incorporated by reference in Part IV.

1.        Group Background and Current Activities

Overview

PuriCore is a water-based, clean technology company developing and commercialising proprietary solutions
that protect people from the spread of infectious pathogens without causing harm to human health or the
environment. PuriCore’s antimicrobial technology and complementary products are used principally in well-
established core businesses and emerging sectors of two broad markets: Health Sciences and Food &
Agriculture.

(a)       Health Sciences

In the broad Health Sciences market, PuriCore is a leading provider of a broad suite of products and
services for compliant endoscopic decontamination in NHS and private hospitals. In the US,
PuriCore’s Wound Care technology is used by hospitals, wound care centres, nursing homes, and
home healthcare providers to treat chronic and acute wounds. The Wound Care technology also
provides partnership opportunities in new Health Sciences segments including Dermatology and
Animal Health.

(b)      Food & Agriculture

In the broad Food & Agriculture market both Sterilox Fresh and FloraFresh Solution provide savings
to supermarket retailers in labour costs and improvements in inventory loss of fresh produce and floral
products. Sterilox Fresh is also used to sanitise fresh fruits and vegetables in US and Canadian
supermarkets. In addition, the Company is progressing in its research and development programmes
at Oxford University on the use of its technology as an agricultural fungicide.

2.        Geographic Distribution of Group Revenues

                                                                              2009              2010              2011        H1 2011        H1 2012
                                                                      millions $      millions $      millions $      millions $      millions $
Sales by Geographic Areas                              (audited)       (audited)       (audited)  (unaudited)   (unaudited)

United Kingdom                                                    16.4               25.2               22.5               10.9               11.6
United States                                                          23.6               15.3               20.1                 7.9               13.7
                                                                      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Total                                                                       40.0               40.5               42.6               18.8               25.3
                                                                      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
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The geographic areas above are segregated based upon the location of the respective operating division of
PuriCore.

3.        Key Stages of Development

The Company became the parent company of the Group on 26 June 2006, when its wholly owned subsidiary,
Sterilox MergerCo, Inc., merged with PuriCore, Inc. pursuant to a merger agreement entered into between
the Company, PuriCore, Inc. and Sterilox MergerCo, Inc. on 16 May 2006. As a result of the merger, each
shareholder in PuriCore, Inc. received one share in the Company for every share owned in PuriCore, Inc. 

The Company’s principal operating subsidiaries are located in the US and the UK. The Company has been
in the process of reducing the number of subsidiaries it owns by dissolving a number of UK companies. On
19 December 2007, the Group’s management company, PuriCore Management, Inc. merged with PuriCore,
Inc and on 12 May 2008, PuriCore Holding, Inc, a company that had been incorporated to be the Group’s
holding company, merged with PuriCore, Inc. In 2009, PuriCore acquired Labcaire Systems Limited, a
leading supplier of endoscopy and scientific (clean air) equipment. 

In 2012, PuriCore acquired the surgical endoscopy products business of Monmouth Scientific Limited.
Globally, the Group employed an average of 170 personnel with 56 in the US and 114 in the UK during the
financial year ended 31 December 2011. The Group currently has operations in Malvern, Pennsylvania, US,
and in Stafford and Clevedon, UK.

4.        Financing                                                                                                                                                 

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had raised net funds of approximately US$167.6 million primarily by way of
equity issues.

(a)       Equity Financing

Equity issues during the period covered by this Operating and Financial Review were:

(i)       On 4 August 2009, the Company issued 10,810,811 Ordinary Shares at an issue price of
18.5 pence per Ordinary Share, raising £2 million, which was used to finance the acquisition
of Labcaire Systems.

(ii)      On 22 March 2011, the Company issued 2,272,727 Ordinary Shares at an issue price of
52.8 pence per Ordinary Share raising £1,200,000.

(iii)     On 30 December 2011, the Company issued 288,394 Ordinary Shares in lieu of a cash bonus
to two employees.

(b)      Debt and Equipment Lease Financing

The Group has also funded its working capital needs through two additional sources: the issuance of
promissory notes (debt) and third party vendor finance agreements. While equity capital has been used
largely to finance the development of the Group’s products and to finance the growth of its business,
the Group has historically borrowed against the future cash flows from rental or lease agreements in
respect of the Sterilox Systems. In the UK, this historically took the form of the sale of leases whereby
the Group assigned the cash flows from hospitals to a finance company. Accounting treatment under
IFRS required all revenues to be recognised at the time of assignment. In the US, the Group does not
assign the rental streams but retains these cash flows and borrows against signed lease contracts. This
is treated as ongoing rental income under IFRS.

Debt transactions during the period covered by this Operating and Financial Review were:

(i)       On 24 August 2009, PuriCore, Inc. borrowed US$2,067,795 in the form of a promissory note
and security agreement with Republic First Bank. The note is repayable in 38 monthly
instalments commencing from September 2009, accrues interest at 5.9 per cent. and is secured
by leased equipment (and related lease payments).
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(ii)      On 31 December 2009, PuriCore, Inc. borrowed US$659,308 in the form of a promissory note
and security agreement with Republic First Bank. The note is repayable in 36 monthly
instalments commencing from January 2010, accrues interest at 6.0 per cent. and is secured by
leased equipment (and related lease payments).

(iii)     On 22 April 2010, PuriCore, Inc. borrowed US$1,770,363 in the form of a promissory note and
security agreement with Republic First Bank. The note is repayable in 36 monthly instalments
commencing from May 2010, accrues interest at 6.0 per cent. per annum and is secured by
leased equipment (and related lease payments).

(iv)     On 14 June 2010, PuriCore issued the Convertible Loan Notes further details of which are set
out in Part II of this document. 

(v)      On 31 December 2010, PuriCore, Inc. entered into a US$1,000,000 secured line of credit
facility. The line of credit accrued interest at the greater of 4 per cent. and prime rate +1 per
cent., and it expired on 30 June 2011. It was secured by specific customer receivables. This line
of credit is now closed.

(vi)     On 28 April 2011, PuriCore, Inc. entered into a US$4,000,000 line of credit facility. The line
of credit accrued interest at 12 to 20 per cent., and it expired on 30 September 2012. Warrants
in respect of 400,000 Ordinary Shares were issued at the signing of this facility. The Warrants
are exercisable at a price of 52.8 pence per Ordinary Share for a period of three years from the
date of issue. At 31 December 2011, US$1,000,000 had been drawn down and this amount was
fully repaid in August 2012. The Warrants remain outstanding.

(vii)    On 15 September 2011, PuriCore, Inc. entered into a US$1,900,000 secured line of credit
facility. The line of credit accrued interest at the greater of 4.25 per cent. and prime rate +1 per
cent., and it expired on 15 December 2011. It was secured by specific customer receivables.
This line of credit is now closed.

(viii)   On 30 December 2011, PuriCore, Inc. entered into a US$3,500,000 secured line of credit
facility. The line of credit accrues interest at the greater of 4 per cent. and prime rate +1 per
cent., and it expired on 30 June 2012. It was secured by specific customer receivables. At 31
December 2011, US$1,000,000 had been drawn down but has now been repaid.

5.        Summary Income Statement                                                                                                                 

The table below shows the key financial indicators for the years ended 31 December 2011, 2010 and 2009
and the six month period ended 30 June 2012. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, and amortisation
(“EBITDA”) have been calculated after exceptional items by deducting cash charges including sales, general
and administration expenses from gross profit but before deducting expenses for non-cash charges such as
depreciation and amortisation. The consolidated income statements for the three years ended 31 December
2009, 2010 and 2011 and for the six month periods ended 30 June 2011 and 2012 have been incorporated
by reference in Part IV of this document.
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                                                                              2009              2010              2011        H1 2011        H1 2012
                                                                        US$’000       US$’000       US$’000       US$’000       US$’000
                                                                                                                                     (unaudited)   (unaudited)

Revenue                                                             40,035           40,452           42,554           18,755           25,349
Cost of sales                                                      (29,957)        (26,876)        (30,048)        (13,617)        (16,986)
                                                                      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Gross profit                                                       10,078           13,576           12,506             5,138             8,363
Sales and marketing expenses                            (8,279)          (5,745)          (4,577)          (2,425)          (2,459)
General and administrative expenses                 (9,309)        (11,181)        (10,231)          (5,992)          (4,690)
Research and development expenses                  (2,970)          (4,859)          (4,395)          (2,156)          (2,095)
                                                                      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Loss before interest and tax                           (10,480)          (8,209)          (6,697)          (5,435)             (881)
Finance costs                                                         (655)          (1,534)          (2,447)          (1,205)             (655)
Finance income                                                       198                  48                  15                  10                  15
                                                                      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Loss before taxation                                        (10,936)          (9,695)          (9,129)          (6,630)          (1,521)
Taxation                                                                       –                    –                    –                    –                  66
                                                                      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Loss for the year                                             (10,936)          (9,695)          (9,129)          (6,630)          (1,455)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent                             (10,936)          (9,695)          (9,129)          (6,630)          (1,455)
                                                                      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––

Loss per share                                              US$/share     US$/share     US$/share     US$/share     US$/share
Continuing operations
Basic and diluted                                                  (0.05)            (0.43)            (0.37)            (0.28)            (0.06)

The Group has experienced operating losses in each year since its inception and, as at 31 December 2011,
had an accumulated deficit of approximately US$174.4 million. Average headcount has increased in line
with investment in the business and has increased from 147 in the financial year ended 31 December 2009
to 182 in the financial year ended 31 December 2010, and then decreased to 170 in the financial year ended
31 December 2011. The Company has not paid a dividend in any year since incorporation.

The exchange rates for the Group’s income statement of US dollars to pounds sterling for the period covered
by this Operating and Financial Review were as follows:

2009 US$1.57 to £1.00
2010 US$1.55 to £1.00
2011 US$1.60 to £1.00
H1 2011 US$1.6149 to £1.00
H1 2012 US$1.5768 to £1.00

Key features of trading for the financial periods relating to the financial information in this Part V are:

•          volume growth and, more recently, price growth in the UK as the business has become more
established in its marketplace plus critical focus on the recurring revenue stream, which provides
higher margins;

•          management focus on the underlying cost base of the Group continues to take place to optimise its
operational and financial capability;

•          penetration of the North American Supermarket Retail market, which has been generating revenue
since 2004;

•          increase in the supporting cost infrastructure to support future planned growth;

•          increase in service costs in the US and the UK following significant growth in equipment installation
base; and

•          increasing contribution of recurring revenue to total revenue in the Supermarket Retail, Endoscopy
and Wound Care businesses.
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6.        Performance Revenue                                                                                                                            

PuriCore’s audited revenues for 2009, 2010, and 2011 were US$40.0 million, US$40.5 million and
US$42.6 million, respectively, and PuriCore’s unaudited revenues for the first six months of 2011 and 2012
were US$18.8 million and US$25.3 million, respectively, broken down as follows.

                                                                              2009              2010              2011        H1 2011        H1 2012
                                                                             $’000            $’000            $’000            $’000            $’000

Endoscopy                                                          16,465           25,140           22,455           10,892           11,586
Supermarket Retail                                            23,113           14,903           19,448             7,641           13,060
Wound Care                                                            457                409                651                222                703
                                                                      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Total                                                                   40,035           40,452           42,554           18,755           25,349
                                                                      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
(a)       2009                                                                                                                                                          

PuriCore achieved record results for the year with 28 per cent. top-line growth (at constant currency)
and total revenues of approximately US$40.0 million. Recurring revenues for the Group increased to
US$21.9 million and accounted for 53 per cent. of total revenue. The Group improved gross margin
by 3.0 points to 25.2 per cent., resulting in top-line sales growth leading to fixed field-service cost
leverage, continued reduction in Sterilox System standard cost, and the full-year impact of certain
Sterilox lease renewals in the US. Gross margins were slightly lower than expected due to higher than
anticipated field service costs during the record-installation year. The Company’s cash and cash
equivalents at year end totalled US$5.4 million. Debt was reduced from US$9.8 million to US$8.5
million at 31 December 2009.

(i)       Endoscopy

Endoscopy sales (including Labcaire Systems revenues as at August 2009) increased to
US$16.5 million, up 41 per cent. (on a constant currency basis), from 2008 to 2009. The growth
in sales volume was due to the expanded product portfolio of PuriCore and Labcaire products,
services and consumables, as well as the continued increasing base of recurring revenue.

Recurring revenue (comprising rentals, service contracts and consumable products) in the UK
totalled US$11.0 million in 2009, or 67 per cent. of total revenue.

(ii)      Supermarket Retail

Supermarket Retail sales increased to US$23.1 million, up 19 per cent., from 2008 to 2009 as
two of the top-five US supermarket retailers, as well as leading regional chains, adopted
Sterilox.

Recurring revenue (comprising rentals, service contracts and consumable products) in the
Supermarket Retail business totalled US$9.6 million in 2009, or 41 per cent. of total revenue.

(iii)     Wound Care

Wound Care and global dental revenues were US$0.5 million. Sales of Vashe Wound Therapy
and consumables comprised the majority of the revenue figure in this market.

(b)      2010                                                                                                                                                          

PuriCore’s revenues for 2010 of US$40.5 million slightly increased over the prior year. Gross profit
margin for the period increased significantly over the previous year to 33.6 per cent, driven by a
continued improvement in performance of the Sterilox System in the US, a reduction in direct costs
and continued leverage of the field service operations in the US and the UK. Driven by margin
improvements and operating expense leverage, PuriCore incurred an operating loss of US$8.2 million.
The Group ended the year with US$5.2 million in cash (including restricted cash of US$1.2 million).
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(i)       Endoscopy

Endoscopy revenue increased to US$25.1 million, up 54.6 per cent. (on a constant currency
basis), from 2009 to 2010 including the full year impact of the Labcaire acquisition. The
Endoscopy division achieved its first full year of EBITDA profitability. 

(ii)      Supermarket Retail

Supermarket Retail revenue decreased to US$14.9 million, down 35.5 per cent., from 2009 to
2010 as revenues were affected by the significant economic downturn as well as by a change
to the mix between lease and capital sales during the year. Despite these challenges, the
Company won several major accounts, including systems for the number-two US, two
additional top-10 US, and the number-one Canadian supermarket retailer, during the year to
increase its market share.

(iii)     Wound Care

Wound Care, for which at year end the Company commenced early commercialisation of
bottled Vashe Wound Therapy, and global dental revenues were US$0.4 million. Sales of Vashe
Wound Therapy and consumables comprised the majority of the revenue figure.

(c)       2011                                                                                                                                                          

Robust order flow in the US, the early indications of a re-initiation of NHS spending in the UK and
strong growth in Wound Care contributed to total Group sales of US$42.6 million for the year, an
increase of 5 per cent. over the previous year. Operating loss, excluding non-cash depreciation,
amortisation, non-cash stock compensation charges and capitalisation/amortisation of development
costs, reduced by 47.7 per cent. to US$2.2 million. PuriCore was EBITDA and cash flow positive
from operations in Q4 2011. The Group ended the year with US$4.5 million of cash.

(i)       Endoscopy

Endoscopy improved profitability over the prior year despite a 14 per cent. decrease (at
constant currency) in revenues to US$22.5 million resulting from delays in NHS spending.
Recurring revenues increased by 4.0 per cent. and accounted for 76 per cent. of division sales
for the year.

(ii)      Supermarket Retail

Supermarket Retail revenue increased to US$19.4 million, up 30 per cent., from 2010 to 2011
as installations of new Sterilox Fresh and FloraFresh Systems nearly doubled over the previous
year.

(iii)     Wound Care

Wound Care and global dental revenues were US$0.7 million. Sales of bottled Vashe Wound
Therapy comprised the majority of the revenue figure.

7.        Earnings before Interest and Tax

As already noted, the main reasons for the decrease in the Group’s losses before interest and tax from 2009
to 2011 were:

•          increased turnover;

•          reduction in cost of goods for Supermarket Retail Systems; and

•          focused cost reduction efforts.
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8.        Research and Development                                                                                                                   

Research and development expenditure has been a major component of the Group’s historical cost base.
Significant projects over the period from 2009 to 2011 have focused on the development and improvement
of the Company’s equipment and solutions, including bottled products and the new formulation for living
plants and other product formats.

Under IFRS, all development costs that meet the recognition criteria in IAS 38 have been capitalised. These
will be amortised over the life of the projects to which they relate. In 2009, 2010 and 2011 and H1 2012, the
net value of development costs capitalised was US$5.4 million, US$3.9 million, US$2.7 million and
US$2.1 million, respectively. Amortisation of US$0.8 million was charged in 2009, US$1.5 million in 2010,
US$1.3 million in 2011 and US$0.6 million in H1 2012.

9.        Earnings Per Share                                                                                                                                 

Restated loss per share in 2009 was US$0.50, which decreased to US$0.43 in 2010 and again to US$0.37 in
2011. The following is a summary of the main movements in the earnings per share calculation from 2009
to 2011:

                                                                                                                                   Weighted
                                                                                                                                     average
                                                                                                                                 number of 
                                                                                                        Earnings                 shares          Basic EPS
                                                                                                             $’000                                                    $

Per 2009 Annual Report and Accounts1                                           (10,936)        22,091,281                   (0.50)
Decrease in loss in 2010                                                                      1,241                         –                         –
Per 2010 Annual Report and Accounts                                               (9,695)        22,731,043                   (0.43)
New shares issued in 2011                                                                          –           2,561,121                         –
Decrease in loss in 2011                                                                         566                         –                         –
Per 2011 Annual Report and Accounts                                               (9,129)        24,508,008                   (0.37)

1      On 30 June 2010, all of the ordinary shares of 1 pence each in the capital of the Company were consolidated into ordinary shares
of 10 pence each on the basis of ten 1 pence ordinary shares being consolidated into one ten pence ordinary share. The weighted
average number of shares and earnings per share in 2009 have been recalculated as if the share consolidation had occurred at
1 January 2009.

10.      Cash Flow and Treasury                                                                                                                        

(a)       Group Cash Flows

The Group reported cash outflows during 2011, primarily due to trading losses. In addition, there were
cash outflows from an increase in primarily leased equipment assets arising from increased sales
volumes in the Supermarket Retail and Endoscopy businesses.

(b)      Working Capital

Working capital reduced from 2010 to 2011 as cash balances decreased due to continued operating
losses. Trade and other receivables and trade and other payables both increased primarily due to the
general expansion of the legacy businesses. Current loans and borrowings decreased as existing debt
has been paid down, augmented by new borrowings under the Company’s strategy to enter into
promissory notes secured by leased equipment and customer receivables.

(c)       Non-Recurring Cash Flows

During 2009, US$3.3 million in equity was raised to fund the Labcaire acquisition and US$2.7 million
in debt were raised for continuing operations.

(d)      Seasonality

The cash flow profile of the Group’s businesses are affected by seasonality factors. In the UK
Endoscopy business, where the majority of sales are to the NHS, cash flow typically peaks in
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March/April, which is at the end of the NHS financial year. Neither the Supermarket Retail business
nor the Wound Care business is currently subject to significant seasonality factors.

(e)       Currency and Debt Facilities                                                                                                                  

The Group’s cash funds are held in both US dollars and British pounds sterling. The majority of the
Group’s debt funds are held in US dollars. Pursuant to certain financing arrangements relating to
payments due to the Group under various equipment rentals, cash maintenance accounts are
maintained under the control of the companies providing such financing in the event the Company
violates the terms of the financing. In certain instances, these maintenance accounts are to be released
to the Company periodically over the financing term. As at 31 December 2010, the balance in cash
maintenance accounts was approximately US$1.2 million. These funds were released during the year
ended 31 December 2011. The UK business is currently operating within a small overdraft facility.
The US business, however, does not have an overdraft facility. The debt funding at 30 June 2012,
(excluding finance leases) consisted of the UK overdraft, US$0 million drawn down on a
US$0.3 million secured line of credit and various short to medium-term promissory notes in the US.

11.      Supermarket Retail – Key Drivers                                                                                                       

(a)       Overview

Sterilox Fresh Systems produce a food-safe solution for sanitising fresh produce to eliminate
pathogens and cross-contamination as well as to extend shelf life and reduce waste in retail
supermarket food safety programmes. Sterilox is used by three of the top-five target US supermarket
retailers, four of the top-10 US supermarket retailers, and leading regional chains. PuriCore also
provides FloraFresh Solution to address microbial growth in supermarket floral operations and keep
flowers fresher for longer whilst reducing cleaning labour required to remove microorganisms,
including mould and mildew, from fresh floral displays and flower buckets. This concentrated bottled
solution is based upon a new chemical variation of the Sterilox technology for use on fresh cut floral
and living plants.

(b)      Performance

The following table summarises the performance of this business throughout the period:

                                                                   2009              2010              2011        H1 2011        H1 2012
                                                                  $’000            $’000            $’000            $’000            $’000

Revenue                                                   23,113           14,903           19,448             7,641           13,061
Operating Profit/(Loss)                            (2,380)          (3,365)             (174)             (317)              935

The Group has focused its Supermarket Retail business sales in the US and Canada.

During the period, the revenue generated by the Supermarket Retail business was driven largely by:

•          an increase in the number of Sterilox Systems sold or leased over the period; and

•          the addition of FloraFresh to the product line.

The main customers of the Supermarket Retail business are national and regional supermarket retail
chains, including three of the top-five in the US. The business has historically generated revenues
from a mix of rental models for Sterilox Systems and outright purchases of equipment.

12.      Endoscopy – Key Drivers                                                                                                                       

(a)       Overview

PuriCore provides a broad portfolio of equipment, consumables, and services required for compliant
disinfection of heat-sensitive medical instruments, specifically flexible endoscopes, between patient
procedures. With the acquisition of Labcaire in 2009 and the surgical endoscopy products business of
Monmouth Scientific Limited in 2012, the Directors believe PuriCore is one of the largest providers
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of endoscope decontamination products and services in the UK. As part of this business, the Company
also manufactures and distributes a line of scientific (clean-air-handling) equipment for laboratories
in the UK and international markets.

(b)      Performance

The following table summarises the performance of this business throughout the period:

                                                                   2009              2010              2011        H1 2011        H1 2012
                                                                  $’000            $’000            $’000            $’000            $’000

Revenue                                                   16,465           25,140           22,454           10,892           11,586
Operating Profit/(Loss)                            (3,228)             (184)          (1,040)          (1,161)              508

The revenue generated by the UK Endoscopy business is principally a result of the sale of AERs and
related equipment, System leases, disinfectant chemistries, servicing (including maintenance
contracts), consumable supplies and validation services. Recurring revenue, consisting of lease
revenue, service contracts, and consumables increased to 76 per cent. from 2010 to 2011.

This was driven largely by:

•          an increase in the installed base over the period driving an increase in service contracts;

•          an increase in sales price of some existing service and maintenance contracts;

•          the addition of distributed products and associated consumables; and

•          higher revenues driven both by organic growth as well as sales of acquired AER product lines.

The Endoscopy division’s main customers in the UK are the NHS and private hospitals. Revenue
levels in the Endoscopy division typically peak in March and April as these are at the end of the NHS
financial year.

Service income is an increasing revenue and income stream for the Endoscopy division. A one-year
warranty is offered on all AERs and Sterilox Systems. After expiry, customers have the option to
renew the warranty for a fee. Service income in the Endoscopy division has increased over the period
in line with the increase in equipment placed and with selective price increases.

Standard gross margin for the Endoscopy division has fluctuated throughout H1 2012 due to:

•          sales mix within the period between equipment and AERs; and

•          variations in the average selling prices between hospitals due to volume and type of product
installed.

13.      Balance Sheet in Summary                                                                                                                    

The table below shows the year end position under IFRS for the years ended 31 December 2009, 2010 and
2011 and for the six month periods ended 30 June 2011 and 2012, on a summary basis:

                                                                              2009              2010              2011        H1 2011        H1 2012
                                                                             $’000            $’000            $’000            $’000            $’000

Total non-current assets                                     15,351           14,181             9,738           11,941             9,083
Total current assets                                             19,690           21,924           19,303           18,491           17,997
Total current liabilities                                      (15,727)        (27,607)        (16,586)        (28,167)        (16,186)
Total non-current liabilities                                (3,600)          (2,098)        (12,730)          (1,337)        (12,653)
Total (liabilities)/assets                                      15,714             6,400              (275)              928           (1,759)

(a)       Non-current assets

Non-current assets decreased between 2009 and 2011 as capitalised installation costs were amortised.
These decreases were largely due to the units rented under the agreements with the large supermarket

63



chains in the US. Once units are installed at customers’ premises, the installation costs of
approximately US$2,000 are capitalised and amortised over the life of the lease.

(b)      Current assets

The following is a reconciliation of the movement in current assets over the period of the Operating
and Financial Review:

                                                                                                                                                        $’000

Per 2009 Annual Report and Accounts balance sheet                                                                   19,690
Increase in inventories                                                                                                                        657
Increase in trade and other receivables                                                                                           1,035
Increase in restricted cash                                                                                                                  807
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents                                                                                             (265)

Per 2010 Annual Report and Accounts balance sheet                                                                   21,924
Decrease in inventories                                                                                                                  (2,020)
Increase in trade and other receivables                                                                                              102
Decrease in restricted cash                                                                                                             (1,157)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents                                                                                                454

Per 2011 Annual Report and Accounts balance sheet                                                                   19,303
Increase in inventories                                                                                                                     1,227
Decrease in trade and other receivables                                                                                         (2,764)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents                                                                                                231

Per H1 2012 Interim Financial Statement balance sheet                                                              17,997

(c)       Current liabilities                                                                                                                                     

The following is a reconciliation of the movement in current liabilities:

                                                                                                                                                        $’000

Per 2009 Annual Report and Accounts balance sheet                                                                 (15,727)
Increase in trade and other payables                                                                                              (1,386)
Increase in loans and borrowings                                                                                                 (10,494)

Per 2010 Annual Report and Accounts balance sheet                                                                 (27,607)
Increase in trade and other payables                                                                                                 (866)
Decrease in loans and borrowings                                                                                                 11,864
Decrease in provisions                                                                                                                         23

Per 2011 Annual Report and Accounts balance sheet                                                                 (16,586)
Increase in trade and other payables                                                                                              (1,085)
Decrease in loans and borrowings                                                                                                   1,486
Increase in provisions                                                                                                                           (1)

Per H1 2012 Interim Financial Statement balance sheet                                                             (16,186)

Trade and other payables increased significantly in 2009 with the Labcaire acquisition. Trade and
other payables increased in both 2010 and 2011 incrementally with growth in installations.

Loans and borrowings increased in 2009 by new borrowings. Loans and borrowings decreased in
2010 and 2011 due to the payment of notes payable associated with leased equipment.
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(d)      Non-current liabilities

                                                                                                                                                        $’000

Per 2009 Annual Report and Accounts balance sheet                                                                   (3,600)
Decrease in loans and borrowings                                                                                                   1,502

Per 2010 Annual Report and Accounts balance sheet                                                                   (2,098)
Increase in loans and borrowings                                                                                                 (10,632)

Per 2011 Annual Report and Accounts balance sheet                                                                 (12,730)
Decrease in loans and borrowings                                                                                                        77

Per H1 2012 Interim Financial Statement balance sheet                                                             (12,653)

Details of the Group’s debt financing activities are described in paragraph 4 of this Part V.

14.      Liquidity and Capital Resources                                                                                                          

(a)       Overview

PuriCore’s principal source of funds has been cash generated from the sale and rental of systems,
equipment and consumables supplemented by cash inflows from investing and financing activities.
Capital resources available to the Company comprise net cash balances raised through operations and
financing activities. Debt facilities comprise an overdraft facility and promissory loan notes secured
by leased equipment and related future (recurring) payments. An analysis of net cash and related cash
flows is set out below:

                                                                   2009              2010              2011        H1 2011        H1 2012
                                                                  $’000            $’000            $’000            $’000            $’000

Cash at bank and in hand                          4,300             4,036             4,491             3,763             4,722
Restricted cash current                                 350             1,157                    –                    –                    –
Restricted cash non-current                          701                    –                    –                    –                    –
Bank overdraft                                                  –                    –                    –                    –                    –
                                                           ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
                                                                  5,351             5,193             4,491             3,763             4,722
                                                           ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Other loans receivable due 

within 1 year                                                –                    –           (1,000)                  –                    –
Notes payable due within 1 year             (1,115)          (1,737)          (1,643)             (914)          (1,146)
Loans payable due within 1 year             (3,806)          (1,099)             (967)             (967)             (977)
Convertible Loans payable due 

within 1 year                                                –         (12,377)                  –         (13,179)                  –
Finance leases due within 1 year                  (59)             (261)                  –                (18)                  –
                                                           ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
                                                                     371         (10,281)              881         (11,315)           2,599
                                                           ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––

A description of the Group’s equity and debt transactions during the period covered by this Operating
and Financial Review is set out in paragraph 4 of this Part V.

The principal components of the Company’s cash flow are as follows:

                                                                   2009              2010              2011        H1 2011        H1 2012
                                                                  $’000            $’000            $’000            $’000            $’000

Net cash outflow from operating 
activities                                               (8,177)          (4,069)               (57)          (1,642)           2,900

Net cash flow from investing 
activities                                               (7,794)          (2,531)             (656)             (332)             (912)

Net cash flow from financing
activities                                                   364             6,616              (181)           1,027           (1,766)

(Decrease)/Increase in cash                   (15,607)                16              (894)             (947)              222
Effect on foreign exchange

rates movements                                       308              (174)              192              (484)                10
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As at 30 November 2012, the Group’s cash, cash equivalents and money market investments
amounted to US$2.6 million. There have been no material changes in cash flows thereafter, other than
in the normal course of business. The UK Endoscopy business continued to generate positive cash-
flow during 2012.

(b)      Recurring Revenue Model

Equipment placed under the recurring revenue model require an upfront investment by the Company
to fund the investment in the underlying fixed assets. The Company has borrowed against future cash
flows from its rental agreements to finance expansion. In the UK this has historically taken the form
of sale of the leases to a third-party finance company although no assignment of UK leases has taken
place since September 2010 due to the negative impact on profitability of such transactions coupled
with the improving UK cash position. Since 2010 in the US, the Company has borrowed against the
rental revenue stream and retained the leases internally. These loans are secured by the underlying
equipment although the Company retains title during and after the repayment period.

At 31 December 2010, the Company had US$4.2 million in current and long-term debt outstanding
related to leased equipment installed during the year.

At 31 December 2011, the Company had US$1.6 million in current and long-term debt outstanding
related to leased equipment installed during the year.

At 30 June 2012, the Company had US$0.8 million in current and long-term debt outstanding related
to leased equipment installed during the period.

(c)       Capital Model

The Company sells Systems and equipment outright to its customers. In the UK market this primarily
relates to AERs whereas in the US, Sterilox Fresh Systems are sold or leased at the customers’
preference.

15.      Risks and Uncertainties                                                                                                                         

A detailed discussion of risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s businesses is set out in “Risk Factors”
on pages 14 to 17 of this document.

Save as set out in “Risk Factors” on pages 14 to 17 of this document the Company is not aware of any
governmental, economic, fiscal, monetary or political policies or factors that have materially affected,
directly or indirectly, the Company’s operations.
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16.      Statement of Capitalisation and Indebtedness                                                                                    

The table below sets out the unaudited capitalisation of the Group as at 30 June 2012 and indebtedness of
the Group as at 31 October 2012. The information relating to the capitalisation of the Group is taken from
the unaudited half yearly consolidated accounts of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2012
prepared in accordance with IFRS. The information relating to the indebtedness and liquidity of the Group
is taken from the management accounts of the Group as at 31 October 2012.

                                                                                                                                                                   $’000

Total current debt as at 31 October 2012
–Guaranteed                                                                                                                                                      –
–Secured(a)                                                                                                                                                     651
–Unguaranteed/Unsecured                                                                                                                                –
                                                                                                                                                            ————
                                                                                                                                                                      651
                                                                                                                                                            ————
Total non-current debt (excluding current portion of long-term debt)
as at 31 October 2012
–Guaranteed(b)                                                                                                                                                250
–Secured(c)                                                                                                                                                12,759
–Unguaranteed/Unsecured                                                                                                                                –
                                                                                                                                                            ————
Total indebtedness as at 31 October 2012                                                                                            13,660
                                                                                                                                                            ————
Shareholders’ equity as at 30 June 2012
–Share capital                                                                                                                                             4,528
–Share premium                                                                                                                                     163,083
–Other reserves                                                                                                                                           8,439
–Cumulative translation adjustment                                                                                                         (1,997)
                                                                                                                                                            ————
Total capitalisation as at 30 June 2012                                                                                               174,053
                                                                                                                                                            ————
Net financial indebtedness as at 31 October 2012
Cash                                                                                                                                                            3,428
                                                                                                                                                            ————
Liquidity                                                                                                                                                    3,428
                                                                                                                                                            ————
Current financial debt
Current bank debt                                                                                                                                        (651)
                                                                                                                                                            ————
Net current financial debt                                                                                                                        2,777
                                                                                                                                                            ————
Non-current financial debt
Other non-current loans                                                                                                                           13,009
                                                                                                                                                            ————
Non-current financial indebtedness                                                                                                      13,009
                                                                                                                                                            ————
Net financial indebtedness as at 31 October 2012                                                                               10,232
                                                                                                                                                            ————
(a)    The secured current debt is secured by leased equipment (and related payments).

(b)   The guaranteed non-current debt represents a loan note issued by PuriCore International which has been guaranteed by PuriCore.

(c)    The secured non-current debt represents the aggregate nominal amount of the Convertible Loan Notes, which is secured by
certain intellectual property as described in Part II of this document.

There are no indirect or contingent forms of indebtedness as at 31 October 2012. The Directors have made
a statement regarding working capital in paragraph 13 of Part I of this document.

There has been no material change to the capitalisation of the Company since 30 June 2012, being the date
of the last published financial statements of the Company.

The information in relation to the indebtedness of the Group as at 31 October 2012 has been converted into
US Dollars applying the exchange rate of £1 = US$1.6054.
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PART VI

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1.        Responsibility Statement                                                                                                                       

The Company and the Directors whose names appear on page 18 of this document, accept responsibility for
the information contained in this document. To the best of the knowledge of the Company and the Directors
(who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this
document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such
information.

2.        The Company, Incorporation, Registration and Head Office                                                           

The Company was incorporated under the name PuriCore plc on 21 April 2006 under the 1985 Act as a
public company limited by shares and registered in England and Wales with company number 5789798. The
principal legislation under which the Company operates and under which the Ordinary Shares have been
created, is the 2006 Act and the regulations thereunder.

The registered office of the Company and the business address of the UK-based Senior Managers is at
Wolseley Court, Staffordshire Technology Park, Stafford, ST18 0GA.

The corporate headquarters and the business address of each of the Directors and US-based Senior Managers
is at 508 Lapp Road, Malvern, Pennsylvania 19355, USA. The Company’s telephone number at its corporate
headquarters is +1 484 321 2700 and at its UK registered office is +44 (0) 1785 782420.

3.        Share Capital of the Company

(a)       Share Capital of the Company                                                                                                                

The issued and fully paid share capital of the Company as at 18 December 2012, (being the latest
practicable date prior to the publication of this document), was as follows (31 December 2011:
25,292,164):

                                                                                                  Issued and fully paid £              Number

Ordinary Shares of 10p each                                                                         2,529,216         25,292,164

The issued and fully paid up share capital of the Company immediately following the Conversion, the
issue of Interest Shares and the Placing (assuming no exercise of options under the Share Schemes or
issues of shares pursuant to the exercise of Warrants) will be as follows:

                                                                                                  Issued and fully paid £              Number

Ordinary Shares of 10p each                                                                         5,007,877         50,078,765

(b)      History of Share Capital                                                                                                                         

During the years ended 31 December 2009, 2010 and 2011 there have been the following changes in
the share capital of the Company:

•          on 4 August 2009, the Company issued 10,810,811 ordinary shares of 1 pence pursuant to a
placing, resulting in an issued share capital of £2,273,104.39 divided into 227,310,439 ordinary
shares of 1 pence each;

•         pursuant to a special resolution passed at a general meeting on 30 June 2010, the Company
adopted new Articles of Association. By this means the Company removed its objects and also
the restriction on new issues represented by the statement of capital formerly in its
Memorandum of Association;
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•          on 30 June 2010, all of the ordinary shares of 1 pence each in the capital of the Company were
consolidated into ordinary shares of 10 pence each in the capital of the Company on the basis
of ten 1 pence ordinary shares being consolidated into one 10 pence Ordinary Share. The
Company’s share capital following the consolidation changed from 227,310,439 ordinary
shares of 1 pence each to 22,731,043 Ordinary Shares of 10 pence each;

•          on 22 March 2011, the Company issued 2,272,727 Ordinary Shares pursuant to a placing
resulting in an issued share capital of £2,500,377 divided into 25,003,770 Ordinary Shares; and

•        on 30 December 2011, the Company issued 288,394 Ordinary Shares in lieu of a cash bonus
to two employees resulting in an issued share capital of £2,529,216 divided into 25,292,164
Ordinary Shares.

(c)       Options over Ordinary Shares                                                                                                                

The following options were outstanding over Ordinary Shares as at 18 December 2012, being the
latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document.

                                                                                       No. of          No. of options
                                                                                     options                  currently          Option expiry
Exercise price (pence)                                          outstanding              exercisable                          date

550                                                                                  7,600                       7,600                22/9/2014
305                                                                              193,002                   193,002                20/2/2018
24.5                                                                          1,216,500                   422,160                22/9/2016
54                                                                                200,000                              0                  7/8/2019
61.43                                                                           175,000                   140,000                  2/2/2017
27 – 380                                                                     317,200                   143,198     from 31/07/2013
                                                                                                                                           to 22/05/2018

The terms and conditions relating to the exercise of the options referred to above are set out in
paragraph 11 of this Part VI under the heading “Share Schemes”.

(d)      Warrants                                                                                                                                                   

In June 2008, in conjunction with the issuance of a promissory note, which has subsequently been
fully repaid, the Company issued Warrants to subscribe for up to 24,710 Ordinary Shares (as adjusted
following the consolidation of share capital on 30 June 2008). The Warrants were immediately
exercisable and have an exercise price of 212 pence per Ordinary Share and expire in June 2013.

In April 2011, in conjunction with a loan, which has subsequently been fully repaid, the Company
issued Warrants to purchase 400,000 Ordinary Shares. The Warrants were immediately exercisable
and have an exercise price of 52.8 pence per Ordinary Share and expire in April 2014.

The following Warrants (as described above) were outstanding as at 18 December 2012, being the
latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document.

                                                                                                                                                  No. of                                               No. of
                                                                                                                                             Warrants                                          Warrants
Holder                                                                 Exercise price          Date issued                granted          Expiry date          outstanding

Woolwich International Holdings Limited               212 pence              30/06/08                 24,710          30/06/2013                 24,710
Financial Trading & Consultancy Limited              52.8 pence              28/04/11               400,000          28/04/2014               400,000

The terms and conditions relating to the exercise of the Warrants referred to above are set out in
paragraph 15 of this Part VI under the heading “Material Contracts”.
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4.        Information concerning the New Ordinary Shares

(a)       Description of the Type and Class of Securities                                                                                    

Following the Conversion, the issue of Interest Shares and the Placing, the Company will continue to
have one class of Ordinary Shares, the rights of which will be set out in the Articles.

The ISIN of the New Ordinary Shares will be GB00B3XBCR18.

The New Ordinary Shares will be credited as fully paid and free from all liens, equities, charges,
encumbrances and other interests, and will rank together pari passu in all respects in relation to all
dividends and distributions with the Existing Ordinary Shares declared, made or paid after Admission,
subject to the applicable requirements and restrictions relating to such distributions.

(b)      Legislation under which the New Ordinary Shares will be created                                                     

The New Ordinary Shares will be created under the 2006 Act.

(c)       Form and currency of the New Ordinary Shares                                                                                  

The New Ordinary Shares to be issued will, when issued, be in registered form and will be capable of
being held in certificated and uncertificated form.

Title to the certificated New Ordinary Shares will be evidenced by entry in the register of members of
the Company and title to uncertificated New Ordinary Shares will be evidenced by entry in the
operator register maintained by Euroclear UK & Ireland (which forms part of the register of members
of the Company).

Share certificates will not be issued in respect of any New Ordinary Shares to be held in uncertificated
form. Share certificates will be issued in respect of any New Ordinary Shares to be held in certificated
form in accordance with applicable legislation. The New Ordinary Shares will be denominated in
pounds sterling.

(d)      Pre-emption Rights

In accordance with the 2006 Act, any equity shares issued by the Company for cash must first be
offered to Shareholders in proportion to their holdings of Ordinary Shares. Both the 2006 Act and the
Listing Rules allow for the disapplication of pre-emption rights, which may be waived by a special
resolution of the Shareholders, either generally or specifically, for a maximum period not exceeding
five years.

5.        Details of the Group                                                                                                                               

The Company is the holding company of the Group. The Company has the following (directly or indirectly)
principal wholly owned subsidiary undertakings:

                                                                Country of
Name                                                       incorporation     Shareholder     Activity

PuriCore, Inc.                                          US                      PuriCore           US Operating Company
PuriCore International Limited               UK                     PuriCore, Inc.  UK Operating Company

The Group acquired Labcaire in August 2009. Subsequently, the Group transferred the business of Labcaire
to PuriCore International Limited effective as of 31 December 2009, since which Labcaire has not traded or
held any material assets.

6.        Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company                                                              

(a)       Memorandum of Association

The principal provisions of the Memorandum of Association were incorporated in the Articles of
Association by operation of law on 1 October 2009. Since removal of the statement of objects from
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the Articles of Association pursuant to a special resolution passed at a general meeting of the
Company held on 30 June 2010 the Company has had unlimited capacity.

(b)      Articles of Association

The Articles of Association were adopted pursuant to a special resolution passed at a general meeting
of the Company held on 30 June 2010. The Articles of Association also contain provisions to the
following effect:

(i)       Voting rights of members

In general, all members who have properly registered their shares in time may participate in
general meetings. If the notice of the meeting has specified a time (which is not more than 48
hours – ignoring any part of a day that is not a working day – before the time fixed for the
meeting) by which a person must be entered on the register of members in order to have the
right to attend and vote at the meeting, no person registered after that time shall be eligible to
attend and vote at the meeting by right of that registration, even if present at the meeting.

Subject to any special terms as to voting for the time being attached to any shares in the
Company, on a show of hands every member present in person or by duly appointed proxy at
a general meeting and entitled to vote shall have one vote and on a poll every member present
in person or by proxy and entitled to vote has one vote for every share held by him. In the case
of joint holders, the person whose name stands first in the register of members and who votes
in person or by proxy is entitled to vote to the exclusion of all other joint holders.

No holder of a share shall, unless the board otherwise determines, be entitled (except as a proxy
for another member) to be present or vote at a general meeting either personally or by proxy if
any call or other sum presently payable by him to the Company in respect of that share remains
unpaid; or if he or any other person who appears to be interested in the share has been duly
served pursuant to the 2006 Act with a disclosure notice.

A member in respect of whom an order has been made by any competent court or official on
the ground that he is or may be suffering from mental disorder or is otherwise incapable of
managing his affairs may vote, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, by any person
recognised to do so on his behalf as long as evidence satisfactory to the board of that person’s
authority is provided in accordance with the Articles.

(ii)      Dividends

Subject to the Statutes, the Company may declare dividends by ordinary resolution, and interim
dividends can be paid by the board. No dividend may be paid in contravention of the special
rights attaching to any share, and no dividend declared in general meeting shall be payable in
excess of the amount recommended by the board. Unless otherwise resolved, all dividends are
apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid up on the shares during any portion
or portions of the period in respect of which the dividend is paid. A dividend may, upon the
recommendation of the board and on being approved by ordinary resolution, be wholly or
partly satisfied by the distribution of assets and, in particular, of paid up shares or debentures
of any other company. No dividend shall bear interest against the Company unless otherwise
provided by the rights attached to the share. Any dividend, interest or other sums payable and
unclaimed for one year after having been declared may be invested or otherwise made use of
by the board for the benefit of the Company until claimed. Any dividend, interest or other sums
unclaimed for a period of 12 years from the date of such dividend having been declared, or such
interest or other sums becoming payable, shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company.

The board may, if recognised by ordinary resolution, offer shareholders, in respect of any
dividend, the right to elect to receive shares by way of scrip dividend instead of cash. The board
may withhold payment of all or any part of any dividends or other monies payable in respect
of any shares that represents at least 0.25 per cent. of the shares in issue (excluding any shares
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held as treasury shares) if a person who has, or appears to the Company to have, an interest in
those shares has failed to comply with a disclosure notice.

(iii)     Return of capital

Under the Statutes, as there is nothing to the contrary in the Articles, on a voluntary winding-
up of the Company, the liquidator may divide among the members the whole or any part of the
assets of the Company. For such purpose, the liquidator may set the value and may determine
on the basis of that valuation and in accordance with the then existing rights of members how
the division is to be carried out between members or classes of members.

(iv)     Redeemable shares

Subject to the Statutes and to the rights attached to existing shares, shares may be issued which
are to be redeemed or which are liable to be redeemed at the option of the Company or of the
holder, and the board may determine the terms, conditions and manner of redemption of any
such shares.

(v)      Form of holding of shares

The shares are in registered form and a register of members is maintained by the Registrars.
Shares may be held in either certificated or (subject to the Articles) uncertificated form. The
transferor of a share is deemed to remain the holder until the transferee’s name is entered in the
register.

(vi)     Transfer of shares                                                                                                                          

Shares may be transferred, if in certificated form, by an instrument of transfer in writing in any
usual form, or in such other form as the board may approve or, if held in uncertificated form,
in accordance with the CREST Regulations and the CREST rules or otherwise in such manner
as the board in its absolute discretion shall determine. Any instrument of transfer must be
signed by or on behalf of the transferor and (in the case of a partly paid share) the transferee.
Subject to the Statutes, the board may refuse to register any transfer of a share:

(a)      which is not fully paid up (except that such discretion may not be exercised so as to
prevent dealings in shares of that class from taking place on an open and proper basis);

(b)      if it is in certificated form, unless it is lodged, duly stamped (if required), at the
registered office of the Company and accompanied by the certificate for the shares to
which it relates and/or evidence as the board may reasonably require to show the right
of the transferor to make the transfer;

(c)      if the transfer is not in respect of one class of share only;

(d)      if the transfer is not in favour of four or fewer transferees;

(e)      if the transfer is in favour of a minor, bankrupt or person of mental ill-health;

(f)       if it is held in uncertificated form, in any other circumstances permitted by the CREST
Regulations and/or the CREST rules; or

(g)      where the board is obliged or entitled to refuse to do so where a person has failed to
comply with a disclosure notice.

(vii)    Pre-emption rights

Subject to the Statutes and any resolution passed by the Company, shares may be issued with
such rights and restrictions as the Company may by ordinary resolution determine, or (if there
is no determination) as the board may determine. Subject to the Statutes, the Articles and any
resolution passed by the Company, unissued shares are at the disposal of the board.
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Under the Statutes, if the Company issues shares or certain other securities, current
Shareholders will generally have pre-emption rights to those shares or securities on a pro-rata
basis. The Shareholders may, by special resolution, grant authority to the board to allot shares
as if the pre emption rights did not apply. This authority may be either specific or general and
may not exceed a period of five years.

(viii)   Variation of rights                                                                                                                          

Under the Statutes, as the Articles do not provide otherwise, the rights attached to any class of
shares may be altered or abrogated with the written consent of the holders of not less than three
fourths in number of the issued shares of that class (excluding any shares of that class held as
treasury shares) or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate general meeting
of the holders of that class.

(ix)     Lien and forfeiture

The Company has a lien on every partly-paid up share for all monies called or payable in
respect of that share. The Company may serve notice on the members in respect of any amounts
unpaid on their shares. The member shall be given not less than 14 clear days’ notice to pay
the unpaid amount, together with any interest and all costs, charges and expenses incurred by
the Company. In the event of non-compliance, a share in respect of which the notice is given
may be forfeited by resolution of the board.

(x)      Disclosure of interests in shares and restrictions for failure to provide information

If a person appearing to have an interest in the issued share capital of the Company of a class
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings has failed to give the Company
within 14 days information required by a notice requiring that information (a disclosure
notice), the board may, at its discretion, impose restrictions upon the relevant shares.

The restrictions available are the suspension of voting or other rights in relation to meetings of
the Company in respect of the relevant shares and, additionally, in the case of shareholders
representing at least 0.25 per cent. of that class of shares (excluding any shares of that class
held as treasury shares), the withholding of payment on dividends on, and in certain cases the
restriction of transfers of, the relevant shares. The restrictions shall cease to apply seven days
after the earlier of receipt by the Company of notice of an excepted transfer (but only in relation
to the shares transferred) and due compliance, subject to the satisfaction of the board, with the
disclosure notice. For these purposes, an excepted transfer means a transfer pursuant to
acceptance of a takeover bid, or a sale of the whole beneficial interest in the shares on a
recognised investment exchange or a stock exchange outside the United Kingdom on which the
shares are normally traded, or a sale of the whole beneficial interest in the shares otherwise than
on a stock exchange to a person whom the board is satisfied is not connected with the transferor
or with any person appearing to be interested in the shares.

The Disclosure and Transparency Rules require Shareholders (subject to certain exceptions) to
notify the Company if the voting rights directly or indirectly held (within the meaning of those
rules) by such Shareholder reaches, exceeds or falls below three per cent. and each one per
cent. threshold above that. 

(xi)     General meetings                                                                                                                                                 

The 2006 Act requires annual general meetings to be held on a regular basis in addition to any
other general meetings. The board may call other general meetings whenever it thinks fit. The
board must also convene a meeting upon the valid request of members holding not less than
five per cent. of the Company’s paid up capital carrying voting rights at general meetings. If
the board fails to give notice of such meeting to members when required to do so, the members
that requested the general meeting, or any of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all members that requested the meeting, may themselves convene a meeting.
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An annual general meeting shall be convened by at least 21 clear days’ notice and (subject to
the Statutes) all other general meetings shall be convened by at least 14 clear days’ notice.
Every notice calling a general meeting shall specify the place, the day and the time of the
meeting and the general nature of the business to be transacted.

Two members present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote shall be a quorum for all
purposes. If a quorum is not present within five minutes of the commencement time of the
meeting (or such longer time not exceeding one hour as the chairman of the meeting may
decide to wait), the meeting, if requisitioned by members, shall be dissolved or, in any other
case, adjourned to such time (not being less than ten nor more than 28 days later) and place as
the chairman of the meeting shall decide and at such adjourned meeting one member present
in person or by proxy (whatever the number of shares held by him) and entitled to vote shall
be a quorum.

Members may attend and vote in person or by duly appointed proxy.  A member may appoint
more than one proxy in relation to a general meeting, provided that such proxy is appointed to
exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by the member. The Articles
contain provisions for the appointment of proxies, including time limits for making such
appointments ahead of the meeting and provisions for appointment by means of electronic
communication.

A simple majority of members entitled to vote and who are present in person or by duly
appointed proxy may pass an ordinary resolution. To pass a special resolution, a majority of not
less than three fourths of the members entitled to vote and who are present in person or by duly
appointed proxy at the meeting is required.

The board may direct that persons entitled to attend any general meeting should submit to
searches or other security arrangements or restrictions, and may refuse entry to a general
meeting to any person who fails to submit to such searches or otherwise to comply with such
security arrangements or restrictions. If any person has gained entry to a general meeting and
refuses to comply with any such security arrangements or restrictions or disrupts the proper and
orderly conduct of the general meeting, the chairman of the meeting may at any time, without
the consent of the general meeting, require the person to leave or be removed from the meeting.

(xii)    Notices to overseas shareholders

Shareholders with registered addresses outside the United Kingdom are not entitled to receive
notices from the Company unless they have given the Company an address within the United
Kingdom at which notices may be served. Such address may, if the board agrees, be an address
for the purposes of electronic communications.

(xiii)   The Board                                                                                                                                      

Subject to the Statutes and the Articles, the business of the Company is managed by the board,
which may exercise all the powers of the Company, subject to any directions given by the
Company in general meeting by special resolution. No alteration of the Articles, and no such
directions by special resolution shall invalidate any prior act of the board which would have
been valid if that alteration had not been made or that resolution had not been passed.

The board may delegate any of its powers, authorities and discretions (with power to sub-
delegate) to any committee consisting of such person or persons as it thinks fit (whether a
member or members of its body or not), provided that the majority of the members of the
committee are directors. Subject to any restriction on sub-delegation imposed by the board, any
committee so formed may exercise its power to sub-delegate by sub-delegating to any person
or persons (whether or not a member or members of the board or of the committee). 
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(xiv)   Directors

Appointment and retirement of directors                                                                                      
The directors (excluding alternate directors) shall not, unless otherwise determined by ordinary
resolution, be fewer than two but shall not be subject to any maximum number. A director need
not be a member of the Company.

Directors may be appointed by the Company by ordinary resolution or by the board. A director
appointed by the board holds office only until the end of the annual general meeting of the
Company following his appointment unless he is reappointed during the meeting.

Each director shall retire at the annual general meeting unless he was appointed or re-appointed
a director at either of the last two general meetings before that meeting. The Company may fill
any vacated office by re-electing the retiring director or some other person eligible for
appointment. 

No director may vote or be counted in the quorum on any resolution of the board concerning
his own appointment (including the settlement or variation of the terms, or the termination, of
the appointment) as the holder of any office or place of profit within the Company or any other
company in which the Company is interested.

Remuneration of directors
The directors shall be entitled to receive fees for their services at a rate which shall not exceed
an aggregate sum of £250,000 per annum or such higher amount as the Company, by ordinary
resolution, may determine from time to time. 

Any non-executive director who holds any executive office, or who serves on any committee
or devotes special attention to the business of the Company, shall receive such remuneration or
extra remuneration by way of salary, commission, participation in profits or otherwise as the
board, or any committee authorised by the board, may determine.

The Company may pay the directors’ expenses properly incurred by them in connection with
the business of the Company, including their expenses of travelling to and from meetings of the
directors, committee meetings or general meetings.

Directors’ interests
Subject to the Statutes, provided the director has disclosed to the board the nature and extent
of any material interest of his, a director notwithstanding his office:

(i)       may hold any other office or place of profit with the Company (except that of auditor)
in conjunction with the office of director and may act by himself or through his firm in
a professional capacity for the Company;

(ii)      may be a party to, or otherwise interested in, any contract with the Company or in which
the Company is otherwise interested;

(iii)     may be a director or other officer of, or employed by, or a party to any contract with, or
otherwise interested in, any body corporate promoted by the Company or in which the
Company is otherwise interested or in relation to which the Company has power of
appointment; and

(iv)     shall not, by reason of his office, be accountable to the Company for any remuneration
or benefit which he derives from any such office or employment or from any such
contract or from any interest in such body corporation nor shall the receipt of such
remuneration or benefit constitute a breach of the duty under the 2006 Act not to accept
benefits from third parties.
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Restrictions on directors voting
A director is not permitted to vote or be counted in the quorum on any resolution of the board
or of a committee of the board concerning any matter in which he has, to his knowledge,
directly or indirectly, an interest or duty that is material. This prohibition does not apply to any
of the following matters:

(i)       the giving to him of any guarantee, security or indemnity in respect of money lent or
obligations incurred by him or by any other person at the request of, or for the benefit
of, the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings;

(ii)      the giving by the Company of any guarantee, security or indemnity to a third party in
respect of a debt or obligation of the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings for
which the director himself has assumed responsibility in whole or in part (whether alone
or jointly with others) under a guarantee or indemnity or by the giving of security;

(iii)     the director subscribing or agreeing to subscribe for, or purchasing or agreeing to
purchase, any shares, debentures or other securities of the Company or any of its
subsidiary undertakings;

(iv)     any contract concerning any company (not being a company in which the director owns
one per cent. or more) in which he is interested, directly or indirectly, and whether as an
officer, shareholder, creditor or otherwise;

(v)      any arrangement for the benefit of employees of the Company or any of its subsidiary
undertakings under which he benefits in a similar manner as the employees;

(vi)     any contract concerning any insurance which the Company is empowered to purchase or
maintain for, or for the benefit of, any directors or for persons who include directors; or

(vii)    any indemnity permitted by the Articles (whether in favour of the director or others as
well) against any costs, charges, expenses, losses and liabilities sustained or incurred by
him as a director of the Company or of any of its subsidiary undertakings, or any
proposal to provide the director with any advance towards the costs of defending himself
in relation to any civil or criminal proceedings or any investigation or other action by a
regulator taken against him as a director.

Conflicts of interest requiring board authorisation
The board may, provided the quorum and voting requirements are satisfied, authorise any
matter that would otherwise involve a director breaching his duty under the 2006 Act to avoid
conflicts of interest. Any director may propose that the director concerned be authorised in
relation to any matter which is the subject of such a conflict and such proposal shall be resolved
upon by the board in the same manner as any other matter, except that the director who is the
subject of the conflict (or any other director with a similar interest) shall not count towards the
quorum or vote on the resolution authorising the conflict.

Any such authority may provide:

(i)       for the exclusion of such a director from the receipt of information or participation in
decision-making or discussion (whether at board meetings or otherwise) related to the
conflict;

(ii)      that such a director will be obliged to conduct himself in accordance with any terms
imposed by the board from time to time in relation to the conflict but will not be in
breach of his duties as a director by reason of his doing so;

(iii)     that, where such a director obtains information that is confidential to a third party, the
director will not be obliged to disclose that information to the Company, or to use the
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information in relation to the Company’s affairs, where to do so would amount to a
breach of that confidence;

(iv)     that such a director shall not be accountable to the Company for any benefit that he
receives as a result of the conflict;

(v)      that the receipt by such a director of any remuneration or benefit as a result of the
conflict shall not constitute a breach of the duty under the 2006 Act not to accept
benefits from third parties;

(vi)     that the terms of the authority shall be recorded in writing (but the authority shall be
effective whether or not the terms are so recorded); and

(vii)    that the board may withdraw the authority at any time.

(xv)    Borrowing powers

The board may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money, to mortgage or charge
all or part of its undertaking, property and assets (present and future) and uncalled capital and,
subject to the Statutes, to issue debentures and other securities, whether outright or as collateral
security for any debt, liability or obligation of the Company or of any third party.

The board shall restrict the borrowings of the Company and shall exercise all its voting and
other rights or powers of control exercisable by the Company in relation to the Group to ensure
that the aggregate borrowings of the Group (excluding borrowings owed by one Group member
to another and after deducting cash deposited) does not, without the previous sanction of an
ordinary resolution, exceed the greater of (i) £150 million; and (ii) an amount equal to three
times the adjusted total of capital and reserves.

(xvi)   Indemnity of officers

Subject to the Statutes, any person who is or was at any time a director, secretary or other
officer (unless the office is or was as auditor) of the Company or of any of its subsidiary
undertakings may be indemnified out of the assets of the Company to whatever extent the board
may determine against losses incurred in the actual or purported execution of his duties or
office, whether or not sustained or incurred in connection with any negligence, default, breach
of duty or breach of trust by him in relation to the Company or the relevant subsidiary
undertaking.

The board also has power to provide funds to meet any expenditure incurred or to be incurred
by any such person in defending any criminal or civil proceeding in which he is involved by
reason of his office, or in connection with any application under the 2006 Act, or in defending
himself in an investigation, or action proposed to be taken, by a regulatory authority in
connection with his office, or in order to enable him to avoid incurring such expenditure.

(xvii)  Power to insure

The board may purchase and maintain insurance at the expense of the Company for the benefit
of any person in their capacity as a director, officer, employee or trustee of the Company or any
member of the Group, or any entity or trust in which the Company or any other member of the
Group has an interest.

(xviii)Untraceable shareholders

The Company shall be entitled to sell, at the best price reasonably obtainable, the shares of a
member or the shares to which a person is entitled by transmission if:

(i)       during a period of 12 years prior to the date of advertising its intention to sell such shares
at least three cash dividends in respect of such shares have become payable but no
dividend has been claimed;
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(ii)      after the expiry of that period, the Company has published a notice stating it intends to
sell the shares in a national newspaper in the United Kingdom and in a newspaper
circulating in the area of the last known address of the member or the person entitled by
transmission, and by notice in writing to the UKLA (if the shares are listed on the
Official List); and

(iii)     during that period or three months following the publication of the advertisements and
prior to the exercise of the power of sale, the Company has not heard from the member
or the person entitled to the shares by transmission.

The net proceeds of such sale shall belong to the Company, which shall be obliged to account
to the former member or other person who would have been entitled to the shares for an amount
equal to the proceeds as a creditor of the Company.

7.        Mandatory bids, squeeze-out and sell-out rules

(a)       Mandatory bid                                                                                                                                          

The Takeover Code applies to the Company. Under the Takeover Code, if an acquisition of Ordinary
Shares were to increase the aggregate holding of the acquirer and its concert parties to shares carrying
30 per cent. or more of the voting rights in the Company, the acquirer and, depending on the
circumstances, its concert parties would be required (except with the consent of the Panel on
Takeovers and Mergers) to make a cash offer for the outstanding shares in the Company at a price not
less than the highest price paid for the shares of the same class by the acquirer or its concert parties
during the previous 12 months. This requirement would also be triggered by any acquisition of shares
by a person holding (together with its concert parties) shares carrying between 30 and 50 per cent. of
the voting rights in the Company if the effect of such acquisition were to increase that person’s
percentage of the voting rights.

(b)      Squeeze-out

Under the 2006 Act, if an offeror were to acquire or contract to acquire 90 per cent. of the Ordinary
Shares to which the offer relates within four months of making its offer, it could then compulsorily
acquire the remaining 10 per cent. by sending a notice to remaining Shareholders telling them that it
would compulsorily acquire their Ordinary Shares. Six weeks later, it could execute a transfer of the
outstanding Ordinary Shares in its favour and pay the consideration to the Company, which would
hold the consideration on trust for the remaining Shareholders. The consideration offered to such
Shareholders must, in general, be the same as the consideration that was available under the offer.

(c)       Sell-out

The 2006 Act also gives minority Shareholders a right to be bought out in certain circumstances by
an offeror who has made a takeover offer. If a takeover offer relates to all the Ordinary Shares and, at
any time before the end of the period within which the offer could be accepted, the offeror held or had
agreed to acquire not less than 90 per cent. of the Ordinary Shares to which the offer relates, any
holder of Ordinary Shares to which the offer related who had not accepted the offer could by a written
communication to the offeror require it to acquire those Ordinary Shares. The offeror would be
required to give any Shareholder notice of his right to be bought out within one month of that right
arising. The offeror may impose a time limit on the rights of minority Shareholders to be bought out,
but that period cannot end less than three months after the end of the acceptance period. If a
Shareholder exercises his/her right, the offeror is bound to acquire those Ordinary Shares on the terms
of the offer (or on such other terms as may be agreed). There have been no public takeover bids by
third parties in respect of the share capital of the Company in the last or current financial year.
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8.        Directors’ and Senior Managers’ Details                                                                                             

Set out below is information regarding each Director and Senior Manager relating to directorships (other
than that of the Company and other members of the Group) which they have held and partnerships in which
they have been a partner, in each case at any time during the five years preceding the date of this document.

Name                                  Current                                                     Historic

               

               

               

               

               

               

Michael Ashton Hikma Pharmaceuticals Plc
Transition Therapeutics Inc

Proximagen Group plc
Purepac Inc.
Faulding Inc.
SkyePharma plc
LMA, NV

Directors

James Walsh Biosensia Ltd.
Diagnostic Polymers Ltd.
Nannocoms Ltd.
Fiomi Diagnostics Holdings Ab.
Fiomi Diagnostics Ab.
BioCroi Limited
Trinity Biotech plc
Enzolve Technologies Ltd.
GenCellBiosystems Limited

Benen Trading Ltd.
Biocurex, Inc.
Trinity Biotech Manufacturing Ltd.
Stokes Bio Ltd.

William Birkett JLJ Management Ltd 
Cygnus Venture Partners Ltd
Flashvoice Ltd
Monogram Developments Ltd
Monogram Homes Ltd
Monument Securities Ltd
McIvor Brooks Ltd
Clicks Group Ltd
Energy Advantage Options Ltd
Ferranti Ltd
Chelford Group plc
Chelford SAP Solutions Ltd
SSI Holdings Ltd
Strategic Systems International Ltd

Mail.Ru Group Limited
Nautilus Minerals Inc.
Strike Resources Limited

Matthew
Hammond 

Metrostar Management Corp.
Deep Sea Metro Limited

Michael
Sapountzoglou

Senior Managers

Brite Sparks Limited

Hager Limited
Hager Engineering Limited
Hager UK Limited
Atral UK Limited

Neil Blewitt
Jenifer Bowden
Tom Daniel
Geoff Koontz
Colin Leak

Mark Sampson
Marella Thorell
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No Director or Senior Manager has at any time during the five years preceding the date of this document:

•          had any convictions in relation to fraudulent offences;

•          had any bankruptcy order made against him or entered into any individual voluntary arrangements;

•          been a member of any administrative, management or supervisory body of a company which has been
placed into receivership, compulsory liquidation or creditors’ voluntary liquidation or administration
or which has entered into any company voluntary arrangement or any composition or arrangement
with its creditors generally or any class of its creditors;

•          been a partner of any partnership which has been put into compulsory liquidation or administration or
entered into partnership voluntary arrangements;

•          had a receivership of any asset of a partnership where he was a partner at the time;

•          been publicly criticised or sanctioned by statutory or regulatory authorities (including recognised
professional bodies); or

•          been disqualified by a court from acting as a director of a company or from acting in the management
or conduct of the affairs of any company.

None of the Directors or Senior Managers have:

•          any potential conflicts of interest between their duties to the Company and their private interests
and/or duties to third parties;

•          any arrangements or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others such that
the aforementioned individuals were selected as a member of the administrative, management and
supervisory bodies or as a senior manager; and

•          any restrictions on the disposal of their shares in the Company within a certain time period except that
Ordinary Shares issued to a Non-Executive Director following the exercise of share options by him
are not normally allowed to be sold by that Non-Executive Director until at least one year after his
resignation unless the Board agrees otherwise.

9.        Directors’, Senior Managers’ and Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

(a)       Directors’ and Senior Managers’ Interests                                                                                            

Set out below are the interests of the Directors and Senior Managers in the issued share capital of the
Company and the Convertible Loan Notes. The following table has been prepared on the basis of
information available as at 18 December 2012 (being the latest practicable date prior to the
publication of this document).
                                                                                                                    No. of Ordinary                              
                                                                                                                          Shares following
                                                                                                                           the Conversion,
                                                                      Percentage of  Nominal amount           the issue of        Percentage of
                                   No. of Existing   Existing Ordinary      of Convertible     Interest Shares    Enlarged Issued
                                 Ordinary Shares                      Shares          Loan Notes   and the Placing        Share Capital
Directors
Michael Ashton                       19,350          0.08 per cent.                           –                  19,350                     0.039
James Walsh                            10,000          0.04 per cent.               £50,000                138,955                       0.28
William Birkett                        54,000          0.21 per cent.                £15,000                  92,686                       0.19
Matthew Hammond                          –                              –                           –                           –                            –
Michael Sapountzoglou           23,000          0.09 per cent.                          –                  23,000                     0.046

Senior Managers
Neil Blewitt                                      –                              –                £75,000                193,433                       0.39
Jenifer Bowden                                 –                              –                           –                           –                            –
Tom Daniel                                       –                              –                           –                           –                            –
Geoff Koontz                                    –                              –                           –                           –                            –
Colin Leak                                        –                              –                           –                           –                            –
Mark Sampson                                 –                              –                           –                           –                            –
Marella Thorell                                 –                              –                           –                           –                            –
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The Directors and the Senior Managers have the following options over Ordinary Shares under the
Share Schemes as at 18 December 2012 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of
this document):

                                No. of Ordinary
                                      Shares under                                         No. of Options
                                                 option     Exercise price (£)             exercisable      Latest expiry date
Directors
Michael Ashton                     200,000                         0.54                              –      7 August 2019
                                                35,000                     0.6143                              –      2 February 2017
James Walsh                              2,734                         3.05                       2,734     20 February 2018
                                                35,000                     0.6458                              –      27 April 2017
William Birkett                         5,000                         3.05                       5,000     20 February 2018
                                                70,000                     0.6143                     70,000     2 February 2017
Matthew Hammond                35,000                     0.6143                     35,000     2 February 2017
Michael Sapountzoglou            5,000                         3.05                       5,000     20 February 2018
                                                35,000                     0.6143                     35,000     2 February 2017

Unless the Board agrees otherwise, Ordinary Shares issued to a Non-Executive Director following the
exercise of share options by him are not normally allowed to be sold by that Non-Executive Director
until at least one year after his resignation. Share options granted to the Executive Director vest based
on the achievement of certain performance targets.

                                No. of Ordinary
                                      Shares under                                          No. of options
                                                 option     Exercise price (£)             exercisable      Latest expiry date
Senior Managers
Neil Blewitt                           100,000                       0.245                     33,333     22 September 2016
                                                25,000                         1.80                     25,000     6 August 2014
Jenifer Bowden                         7,500                         3.05                       7,500     20 February 2018
                                                75,000                       0.245                     25,000     22 September 2016
                                                  2,500                       1.525                       2,500     9 December 2014
Tom Daniel                              28,000                         3.05                     28,000     20 February 2018
                                                60,000                       0.545                     10,000     2 February 2017
                                              100,000                       0.245                     33,333     22 September 2016
Geoff Koontz                             9,000                         3.05                       9,000     20 February 2018
                                                90,000                       0.245                     30,000     22 September 2016
                                                10,000                       0.525                       6,666     5 August 2015
Colin Leak                              80,000                       0.245                     26,667     22 September 2016
                                                15,000                       0.605                     10,000     21 October 2015
Mark Sampson                        14,000                         3.05                     14,000     20 February 2018
                                                75,000                       0.245                     25,000     22 September 2016
                                                  3,000                       1.275                       3,000     28 August 2013
Marella Thorell                         7,500                         3.05                       7,500     20 February 2018
                                                80,000                       0.245                     26,667     22 September 2016
                                                20,000                         0.55                     13,333     9 November 2015
                                                  6,000                       1.275                       6,000     28 August 2013

(b)      Substantial Shareholders’ Interests                                                                                                        

As at 18 December 2012 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document),
the Company is aware that the following persons were interested, directly or indirectly in 3 per cent.
or more of the issued share capital of the Company by virtue of the notification required to be made
pursuant to chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules. In addition, the Directors expect that,
immediately following the Conversion, the issue of Interest Shares and the Placing such Shareholders
will have the following interests in the Enlarged Issued Share Capital:
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                                                                                                                               No. of Ordinary                         
                                                                                                                                  Shares following the   Percentage of
                                                                      Percentage of   Nominal amount of     Conversion, issue of           Enlarged
                                  No. of Existing                    Existing      Convertible Loan       Interest Shares and     Issued Share
                                Ordinary Shares      Ordinary Shares                   Notes (£)                   the Placing             Capital

Fund 
Manager/Owner

Invesco Perpetual              4,345,766         17.18 per cent.                  2,500,000                    14,747,0271               29.40
Woolwich 

International 
Holdings Limited           2,727,573         10.78 per cent.                                –                      2,727,573                  5.45

Kanton Services 
Limited                           2,050,087           8.11 per cent.                  1,000,000                      4,629,196                  9.24

Oracle Management 
Limited                           1,604,725           6.34 per cent.                     500,000                      2,894,279                  5.78

Gacita Limited                   1,268,898           5.02 per cent.                                –                      1,268,898                  2.53
Brooks Macdonald 

Asset Management         1,154,132           4.56 per cent.                                –                      1,154,132                  2.30
Mr. Stewart Newton           1,096,732           4.34 per cent.                     600,000                      3,044,1972                 6.08

Notes:

(1) Includes the issue of 3,953,488 Ordinary Shares under the Placing.

(2). Includes the issue of 400,000 Ordinary Shares under the Placing.

None of the Company’s substantial Shareholders set out above has voting rights different from those
set out in paragraph 6 of this Part VI.

Following the Conversion, issue of Interest Shares and the Placing, Mr. Daniel Hegglin will hold
3,309,091 Ordinary Shares being 6.61 per cent. of the Enlarged Issued Share Capital.

Save as set out in this paragraph 9(b), the Directors are not aware of any person who is, or who will
immediately following the Conversion, the issue of Interest Shares and the Placing be, interested
(within the meaning of the 2006 Act) directly or indirectly in 3 per cent. or more of the Enlarged
Issued Share Capital or who does, or who will, directly or indirectly, exercise control over the
Company or any arrangements the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a change of
control of the Company.

No loans are outstanding from the Company or any associated undertaking of the Company to any
Director nor has any guarantee been provided by the Company or any associated undertaking of the
Company for the benefit of any Director.

No Director has or has had any interest in any transaction which is or was unusual in its nature or
conditions or significant to the business of the Company and which was effected by PuriCore during
the current or immediately preceding financial year or during any earlier financial year which remains
in any respect outstanding or unperformed.
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10.      Directors’ and Senior Managers’ Service Arrangements

(a)       Directors’ and Senior Managers’ Remuneration                                                                                   

The total of the remuneration paid and benefits granted (including any benefits in kind, Company
pension contributions, and any contingent or deferred compensation) to each person who served as a
director of the Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2011 was as follows:

                                                                                                 Pensions and
                                                      Salary                                      retirement
                                                   and fees     Annual bonus               benefits    Other benefits                   Total
                                                         US$                    US$                    US$                    US$                    US$

Non-Executive Directors
William Birkett                  43,305                         –                         –                         –                43,305
Matthew Hammond1            3,007                         –                         –                         –                  3,007
Michael Sapountzoglou     36,008                         –                         –                         –                36,008

                                                                                                    Pensions &
                                                      Salary                                      retirement                                                      
                                                   and fees     Annual bonus               benefits    Other benefits                   Total
                                                         US$                    US$                    US$                    US$                    US$

Executive Directors
Greg Bosch2                     300,085                         –                         –                47,287              347,372
Darren Weiss3                  157,692                         –                         –                16,144              173,836
Chris Wightman4              240,585                         –                         –                         –              240,585
                                     ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total                                780,762                         –                         –                63,431              844,193                                     ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Notes:

(1) Matthew Hammond only began receiving fees in December 2011.

(2) Greg Bosch resigned from his position as an Executive Director of the Company with effect from 31 May 2012.

(3) Darren Weiss resigned from his position as an Executive Director of the Company with effect from 7 October 2011.

(4) Chris Wightman resigned from his position as an Executive Director with effect from 29 March 2012.

James Walsh was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect from 29 March
2012.

Michael Ashton was appointed as an independent Non-Executive Director on 1 February 2012,
became Non-Executive Chairman on 29 March 2012 and was appointed as Executive Chairman on
31 May 2012.

The aggregate remuneration for the Senior Managers for the year ended 31 December 2011 was
US$1,140,536. The aggregate financial cost of benefits in kind for the Senior Managers for the year
ended 31 December 2011 was US$72,289. No amount was set aside or accrued by the Company or
its subsidiaries to provide pension, retirement or similar benefits for the Senior Managers for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

(b)      Executive Director’s Appointment

Michael Ashton was appointed as an independent Non-Executive Director on 1 February 2012 and
became Non-Executive Chairman on 29 March 2012. Mr. Ashton received fees of US$28,260 while
serving as a Non-Executive Director, including fees he received as Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. 

With effect from 1 June 2012, Mr. Ashton was appointed Executive Chairman of PuriCore. His annual
salary is $425,000 from the date of his appointment as Executive Chairman. For the year ending
31 December 2012, Mr. Ashton participates in a bonus scheme with a target bonus of 50 per cent. of
his annual salary, pro-rated from the date of his appointment as Executive Chairman. This bonus is
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payable upon the achievement of performance conditions, tied to PuriCore’s financial results and
condition for the year ending 31 December 2012.

Additionally, Mr. Ashton is eligible to participate in any of the Share Schemes or other equity based
incentive scheme. He received a share option award upon his appointment as a Non-Executive
Director and another share option award in August 2012 as part of his Executive Chairman
remuneration package.

Mr. Ashton receives a monthly car allowance of $1,500, and is eligible to participate in certain health
and welfare programmes. He is entitled to five weeks’ paid holiday leave and all US Company
holidays and to receive compensation for a reasonable amount of time off taken due to illness, at the
discretion of the Board. He is reimbursed for all reasonable incurred business expenses.

Mr. Ashton’s appointment may be terminated by either party on the giving of twelve months’ written
notice.

(c)       Non-Executive Directors’ Letters of Appointment                                                                                 

Mr. Michael Sapountzoglou and Mr. William Birkett entered into letters of appointment with the
Company with effect from 30 June 2006. Mr. Birkett’s and Mr. Sapountzoglou’s terms were modified
with effect from 7 June 2012. Matthew Hammond entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company with effect from 1 July 2010 which was amended on 7 June 2012. Dr. James Walsh entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company with effect from 29 March 2012.

The Non-Executive Directors receive fixed annual fees which are determined having regard to the
time commitment required and the level of fees paid by similar companies. Non-Executive Directors
are not eligible to participate in the Group’s benefit plans save for share scheme participation as
disclosed in paragraph 9 of this Part VI.

Where Non-Executive Directors spend more than 24 days per annum discharging their duties, an
additional fee of £1,000 per such day spent is payable (subject to prior authorisation of the Chairman,
but no such additional payment has been made).

The Non-Executive Directors were appointed, for an initial period of one year and thereafter the
appointment may be terminated on the giving of six months’ written notice by the Company or by the
Non-Executive Director. In addition, the Non-Executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
pursuant to the Articles and subject to annual re-election after nine years of service on the Board, in
accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code. Termination under, inter alia, the provisions of
the 2006 Act, the Articles, disqualification from acting as a Director for incompetency, gross
misconduct, serious or persistent negligence or misconduct and failure to carry out duties reasonably
required after a written warning, is with no compensation. Non-Executive Director performance is
evaluated annually. There is discretion for the Company to make a payment of the relevant amount of
six months’ fees in lieu of notice. Non-Executive Directors are bound by obligations of
confidentiality. Non-Executive Directors are entitled to consult with the Company’s professional
advisers in the performance of their duties at the Company’s expense.

The Non-Executive Directors are expected properly to discharge their fiduciary duties, and exercise
proper skill and care and devote sufficient time to their duties commensurate with a non-executive
directorship of a listed company, including preparation for and attendance at Board meetings and
meetings of any committee to which they may be appointed, as well as for all General Meetings of
the Company. Non-Executive Directors must also bring independent judgement to bear on strategy,
performance, resources, and standards of conduct and good corporate governance, satisfying
themselves as to the integrity of financial information and that financial controls and risk management
are robust and defensible, sharing responsibility for the control of the Company and its subsidiaries
and for superintendence of the Executive Director.
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(d)      Waiver of emoluments and benefits on termination

There is no arrangement under which a Director has waived or agreed to waive future emoluments nor
have there been any such waivers during the financial year immediately preceding the date of this
document and, save as disclosed, there are no other benefits due to the Directors on termination.

(e)       Loans and Guarantees

There are no outstanding loans or guarantees granted or provided by any member of the Group to, or
for the benefit of, any of the Directors.

11.      Share Schemes                                                                                                                                        

Prior to the Merger, options were granted under various arrangements. The only pre-Merger options
outstanding as at the date of this document are 7,600 options under the 2004 Scheme referred to below
(which was closed to further grants following the Merger). At the time of the Merger, these options became
options over Ordinary Shares instead of PuriCore, Inc. shares.

Since the Merger, the Company has used the Incentive Plan to grant options and other awards. Options have
also been granted to Non-Executive Directors and consultants under individual arrangements.

The terms of PuriCore’s share incentive arrangements are described below.

(a)       The Sterilox Technologies, Inc. Share Option Scheme 2004 (the “2004 Scheme”)

The 2004 Scheme was established by a resolution of the Board of Directors of PuriCore, Inc. on
22 September 2004. It has been structured to permit options granted to qualify as “Enterprise
Management Incentives” for UK taxation purposes. Following the Merger and the grant of options
over Ordinary Shares in exchange for existing options, the terms of the options now relate to the
Company, rather than PuriCore, Inc.. No further options may be granted under this scheme. The 2004
Scheme has the following features:

(i)       Exercise of Options

An optionholder may generally only exercise his or her option pursuant to the terms of a
vesting schedule which forms part of their option. An option may not be exercised later than
the date on which the option lapses in accordance with its terms or ten years following the date
of grant of the option, whichever is earlier. All of the following provisions are subject to this
restriction.

Provision has been made for the exercise of vested options within twelve months of the death
in service of an optionholder, but any shares acquired must be sold immediately.

An option may also be exercised in full upon any of the following events:

•          a takeover of PuriCore by an unconnected person or persons recommended by the
Directors or by one or a number of employees acting in concert. In the event that the
takeover is either by way of a general offer to acquire the entire issued share capital of
PuriCore, or a general offer to acquire all the shares in the same class as the shares under
option, the options may be exercised in full at any time during the six month period from
the date on which the person making the offer has obtained control and any condition to
which the offer is subject has been satisfied, or such shorter period of not less than 21
days as the Directors specify by written notice to the optionholders. In the event that
another company becomes beneficially entitled to more than 50 per cent. of the voting
power exercisable in a General Meeting of the Company, then the directors may give
notice to the optionholders inviting them to exercise their options within a specified
period of time. In either case, if an option is not exercised within the specified time
period, it will lapse;

•          a voluntary winding up of PuriCore; or

85



•          the sale of the whole or substantially the whole of the trade and assets of PuriCore. The
option is exercisable within 28 days following the date of sale (or such longer period as
may be permitted by the Directors of the Company). If an option is not exercised within
the specified period, it will lapse.

Options are non-pensionable.

(ii)      Tax Liability

Where, on the exercise of an option granted under the 2004 Scheme, a liability to tax is
incurred, the optionholder will bear the cost of this liability. The terms of grant of the options
may also require the optionholder to bear the liability to employer’s National Insurance
contributions arising in relation to the exercise of the options in full or in part.

(iii)     Lapse of Options

Options shall lapse to the extent not already exercised on the earlier of:

•          the tenth anniversary of the date of grant;

•          the optionholder leaving employment for any reason other than death;

•          the bankruptcy of the optionholder;

•          the transfer, assignment, mortgage, charge or other purported disposal of the option by
the optionholder;

•          the loss of the legal or beneficial ownership of the option (otherwise than on death) by
operation of law or any other act or omission of the optionholder; and

•          the expiry of the periods during which options can be exercised following any of the
events described in (i) above.

(iv)     Adjustment of Option Terms

In the event of any variation in the ordinary share capital of PuriCore, the number of shares
comprised in an option and/or the exercise price may be adjusted in such manner as the
directors may decide.

(v)      Exchange of Options

The rules of the 2004 Scheme provide for the rollover of options in the event that any company
(the “Acquiring Company”) obtains control of PuriCore pursuant to either a general offer to
acquire shares, a scheme of arrangement under Part 26 of the 2006 Act or shares are acquired
pursuant to sections 974–991 (inclusive) of the 2006 Act. An optionholder may, within an
appropriate period specified in the rules by agreement with the Acquiring Company, release his
options in consideration for the grant to him of rights which are equivalent to the released
options but which relate to shares in the Acquiring Company. In such event, the rules of the
2004 Scheme will continue to govern the option save that references to PuriCore will be
deemed to be references to the Acquiring Company.

In the event that the change of control is a reconstruction, where PuriCore has come under the
control of an Acquiring Company, in circumstances where the ultimate control does not
change, if the Acquiring Company offers to grant new options of substantially the same value
and same terms to existing optionholders under the 2004 Scheme in exchange for the release
of their existing options, the existing optionholders will have a period of not less than 28 days
to agree to the exchange. If they do not agree to the exchange within the specified period, then
the options over shares in PuriCore will lapse.

The Company offered to grant new options to existing optionholders under the 2004 Scheme
on 26 June 2006 in exchange for their existing options over shares in PuriCore, Inc. The
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optionholders had 28 days in which to accept the exchange offer, otherwise the options over
shares in PuriCore, Inc. lapsed.

(vi)     Modifications to the 2004 Scheme

The directors may at any time amend the rules of the 2004 Scheme, provided that if such
amendment would abrogate or adversely affect the subsisting rights of any optionholder, the
prior consent in writing of the optionholder is required before the amendment becomes
effective.

(b)      The PuriCore Executive Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan”)

Employees of the Group are eligible to participate in the Incentive Plan. The Incentive Plan is
administered and operated by the Remuneration Committee.

The Incentive Plan was adopted by PuriCore on 26 June 2006, and subsequently amended on 5 June
2009 and 29 October 2010. The Incentive Plan provides a framework for the grant of equity and other
equity-related incentives to employees in the UK and the US. Awards may take the form of share
options (including incentive stock options which comply with US tax requirements) and also
restricted shares, stock appreciation rights or such other awards deliverable in or related to the
Ordinary Shares or factors that may influence the value of such shares (collectively the “Awards”).

The aim of the Remuneration Committee is to implement appropriate plans, within the framework of
the Incentive Plan, specific to those jurisdictions where the employees are located and which take
account of the local regulatory and taxation regimes in which those plans will operate.

(i)       Eligibility

Awards may be granted to employees of the Group at the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee.

(ii)      Grant

Awards under the Incentive Plan may be granted within 42 days after the announcement by
PuriCore of its annual or interim results. Awards may also be granted at any other time when
the circumstances are considered by the Remuneration Committee to be exceptional. No
awards may be made after 22 June 2016. Awards are non-pensionable.

(iii)     Plan Limits

The total number of Ordinary Shares (including treasury shares) issued and issuable under
awards granted under the Incentive Plan (or any other share option plan or other share incentive
awards made by the Company, but not including Ordinary Shares which may be used pursuant
to the Incentive Plan to satisfy bonuses (excluding Ordinary Shares issued to satisfy what
would otherwise be paid as an annual cash bonus), options granted pursuant to the 2004
Scheme or pursuant to the individual options originally granted by PuriCore, Inc.) may not
exceed 10 per cent. of the issued Ordinary Share capital of PuriCore, provided that, for the
purposes of incentive stock options, no more than 10,000,000 Ordinary Shares may be issued.

(iv)     Exercise Price

Where share options are awarded, other than nominal or nil cost options, the price per Ordinary
Share payable on exercise must not be less than the market value per share at the time of grant.

(v)      Individual Limits

The following individual limits apply:

•          no participant may be granted market value options in any annual period over Ordinary
Shares with a total market value, measured on their dates of grant, in excess of 200 per
cent. of his or her base salary for that period; and
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•          no participant may be granted Awards over Ordinary Shares (excluding market value
options, bonus shares or matching shares) in any annual period with a total market value
measured on their dates of grant, in excess of 100 per cent. of his or her base salary for
that period.

Notwithstanding the above, the Remuneration Committee may, in exceptional circumstances
(including the hiring of new employees), grant market value options with a total market value
not exceeding 400 per cent. of a participant’s base salary for the relevant annual period or other
Awards with a total market value not exceeding 200 per cent. of a participant’s base salary for
the relevant annual period.

(vi)     Exercise of Awards

No minimum period is prescribed under the Incentive Plan prior to the exercise of an Award,
which will be determined by the Remuneration Committee on granting an Award, save that no
share option may be exercised more than ten years following the date of grant of the option.

Awards under the Incentive Plan may be made subject to the attainment of performance targets
in such objective manner as the Remuneration Committee considers appropriate.

Performance targets may be set by reference to the overall group financial performance or the
performance of the participant, or of more focused regional or departmental functions in which
the participant is employed. All Awards granted to Executive Directors shall be subject to the
attainment of performance targets.

Options have been granted subject to accelerated vesting on terms whereby, to the extent that
any conditions for acceleration are met, vesting may occur before the expiry of the performance
period over which the performance targets are measured.

(vii)    Lapse of Awards

The majority of options granted lapse if not exercised within five years following the date of
grant. The option grant made in February 2008 has a ten year term and one option award made
in August 2012 has a seven year term. Under the Incentive Plan, Awards will lapse to the extent
not already exercised on the earliest of:

•          the lapse date specified by the Remuneration Committee and stated in the Award
document (as noted above);

•          the tenth anniversary of the date of grant;

•          approximately 90 days after termination of employment, although the Remuneration
Committee has the power to provide that Awards will either become exercisable or vest
on termination of employment or such later date as the Remuneration Committee may
determine and certain employment agreements provide for such later lapse, depending
upon the circumstances of termination;

•          on the expiry of the period(s) in which Awards may be exercised following a change of
control;

•          in respect of part of an Award, the date on which the Remuneration Committee
determines that the performance targets have not been achieved in respect of that part of
the Award;

•          the bankruptcy of the Award holder;

•          the surrender of the Award by the Award holder; and

•          the transfer, assignment or charge of the Award by the Award holder.
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In addition, the terms of an Award holder’s employment contract may contain further
provisions for the lapse of Awards.

(viii)   Tax Liability

Where on the exercise, vesting or release of any of the Awards granted under the Incentive Plan,
a liability to tax or employee’s social security contributions (including UK National Insurance
contributions) arises and any company in the Group is required to account for such liability, the
participant will bear the cost of this liability. In the UK, the Incentive Plan rules also enable the
relevant company in the Group to recover an amount equal to any employer’s liability for
National Insurance contributions from the participant.

(ix)     Adjustments of Capital Structure

In the event of a variation in the capital structure of PuriCore, the Remuneration Committee
may provide for adjustments in the number and kind of shares and/or the exercise price or other
price of shares subject to outstanding Awards granted under the Incentive Plan.

(x)      Change of Control

If a person obtains control of the Company, there is a voluntary winding up of the Company,
or there is a reconstruction, amalgamation or liquidation of the Company then all Awards shall
become exercisable or vest (as appropriate) pro rata to the length of time which has elapsed
since the date of grant of the option or Award and to the extent that the Remuneration
Committee determines that any performance conditions have been satisfied, unless the
Remuneration Committee determines that the option or Award shall vest in full.

(xi)     Administration and Amendment

The Remuneration Committee may at any time amend the Incentive Plan in whole or in part
provided that the prior approval of the Shareholders is obtained for any amendments to
provisions relating to eligibility, the overall limit on the issue of new shares, the maximum
entitlement for any participant and any adjustments to any existing Awards, where such
changes are to the advantage of participants (save for minor amendments to benefit the
administration of the Incentive Plan, to take account of changes in legislation or to obtain or
maintain favourable taxation or regulatory treatment for participants or for any member of the
Group).

Awards granted under the Incentive Plan may be satisfied by the issue of new shares, treasury
shares, the transfer of shares from an employee benefit trust or in cash. The Remuneration
Committee is also empowered to approve such supplements to or amendments, restatements or
alternative versions of the Incentive Plan as it may consider necessary or appropriate to take
account of local law, tax policy or custom in particular jurisdictions.

(c)       Other Awards

The Directors have been authorised to grant share options to Non-Executive Directors and
consultants, on terms and conditions to be determined. Any such grants will be taken into account
when applying the limit on share award grants described above in sub-paragraph (b)(iii) “Plan
Limits”.

These options either vest proportionately upon the attainment of anniversary dates of the original
grants or were fully vested as of the date of grant. Options that have been granted to Non-Executive
Directors lapse, to the extent not vested, if the Non-Executive Director ceases to be a Director or
employee of PuriCore. Options vest in full on a change of control of PuriCore, unless the
Remuneration Committee requires, or the Director decides, to exchange the option for a new option
over the acquiring company’s shares. Where provided in the option agreement, Ordinary Shares
acquired on the exercise of an option by a Non-Executive Director, other than Ordinary Shares that

89



need to be sold to satisfy the exercise price and tax liabilities, must not be sold until one year after the
Non-Executive Director ceases to be a Director of PuriCore unless the Directors otherwise agree.

Options have also been granted to a limited number of consultants who provide significant services
to the Company. The terms of these individual option agreements vary. The options do not vest if the
consultant has ceased to provide services to the Group on the vesting dates. Options will lapse if the
consultant’s services are terminated for cause.

12.      Corporate Governance                                                                                                                           

(a)       Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

The Group is firmly committed to business integrity, high ethical values, and professionalism in its
activities and operations. As an essential part of this commitment, the Board endorses the highest
standards of corporate governance and is accountable to the Shareholders.

The role of the Board is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of the Group within a framework of
prudent and effective controls, which enables risk to be assessed and managed. The Board sets the
Group’s strategic aims, ensures that the necessary financial and human resources are in place for the
Group to meet its objectives and reviews management performance. The Board sets the Group’s
values and standards and ensures that its obligations to its Shareholders and others are understood and
met.

As at the date of this document, the Group is in full compliance with the provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code, save with respect to the composition of committees of the Board for the
reasons set out below.

The Group is currently led and controlled by a Board comprising five Directors (the Executive
Chairman, the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, and three Non-Executive Directors).

The Board considers the issue of independence on an annual basis. The Board has reviewed the
independence of the Non-Executive Directors and the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
and concluded that Dr. Walsh and Mr. Birkett continue to demonstrate the characteristics it considers
to be essential indicators of independence. Dr. Walsh and Mr. Birkett are considered by the Board to
be independent of management and free of any business or other relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement. Although Mr. Birkett has served on the
Board for more than nine years, his continuity and experience is deemed important in the functioning
of the Board and is not considered by the Board to interfere with his independence.

Dr. Walsh and Mr. Birkett hold share options in the Group; however, the Board does not consider this
to impact on their independence.

Two of the Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Hammond and Mr. Sapountzoglou, are not considered
independent as each of them represents a significant shareholder of the Group.

The Board has also concluded that the following behaviour is essential for the Board to consider a
Director to be independent and assesses the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director and each
Non-Executive Director against these criteria:

•          provides objective challenge to management;

•          is prepared to challenge others’ assumptions, beliefs, or viewpoints as necessary for the good
of the organisation;

•          questions intelligently, debates constructively, challenges rigorously, and decides
dispassionately;

•          is willing to stand up to defend one’s own beliefs and viewpoints in order to support the
ultimate good of the organisation; and
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•          has a good understanding of the organisation’s businesses and affairs, enabling proper
evaluation of the information and responses provided by management.

All Directors are subject to re-election at least once every three years. Further, under the UK
Corporate Governance Code, Directors having served for more than nine years are subject to re-
election annually. The Board is responsible to Shareholders for the proper management of the Group.
The differing roles of the Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors are clearly delineated, with
both having fiduciary duties towards PuriCore. The Executive Director is responsible for the operation
of the business, whilst the Non-Executive Directors bring third-party, objective judgement to bear on
Board decisions by constructively challenging management and ensuring that the strategies proposed
by the Executive Director are fully considered. To enable the Board to discharge its duties, all
Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information and there is a procedure for all
Directors, in furtherance of their duties, to take independent professional advice, if necessary, at the
expense of the Company. All Board members have access to the advice of the Company Secretary.
The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it and usually meets bi-monthly.

The Board is responsible for overall Group strategy, approval of major capital expenditure projects,
and consideration of significant financing matters. The roles of the Executive Chairman and Senior
Independent Non-Executive Director are separate. The Executive Chairman, Mr. Ashton, is
responsible for investor relations and ensuring the efficient and effective working of the Board and
leads the Board in the determination of the Group’s long-term strategy and the achievement of its
objectives. The Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, Dr. Walsh, is responsible for assisting the
Executive Chairman with meeting process, evaluations and agenda as needed, presiding at meetings
of the Non-Executive Directors at least once per year, and meeting with Shareholders and
understanding issues and concerns. The Board does not allow any full-time Executive Director to take
on any non-executive directorship or chairmanship in any FTSE 100 Company.

The following Committees, which have written terms of reference, deal with specific aspects of the
Group’s affairs:

(i)       Nomination Committee                                                                                                                  

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Ashton (chairman), Mr. Birkett and
Mr. Sapountzoglou. Mr. Birkett is the only independent Non-Executive Director on the
Nomination Committee so the Company does not comply with B.2.1 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code. The Board believes that the Committee’s composition is appropriate for the
size of the Group and that the members exercise independence in their duties. The Committee
is responsible for proposing candidates for appointment to the Board, having regard to the
balance and structure of the Board. In appropriate cases, recruitment consultants are used to
assist the process.

(ii)      Remuneration Committee                                                                                                              

The Remuneration Committee comprises Dr. Walsh (chairman) and Mr. Hammond. Dr. Walsh
is the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director. There are only two members of the
Remuneration Committee as is permitted due to the Company qualifying as a “smaller
Company” by virtue of being outside of the FTSE 350. The Remuneration Committee does not
comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code (D.2.1) as the Remuneration Committee
should comprise at least two independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board believes that the
Committee’s composition is appropriate for the size of the Group and that the members
exercise independence in their duties. The Remuneration Committee also utilises outside
resources and experts as appropriate. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board of the Group’s framework of executive remuneration and its
cost. The Remuneration Committee determines the contract terms, remuneration, and other
benefits for Executive Directors, including performance-related cash and equity bonus
schemes, pension rights, and compensation. The Board itself determines the remuneration of
the Non-Executive Directors.
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(iii)     Audit Committee                                                                                                                            

The Audit Committee comprises Mr. Birkett (chairman), Mr. Ashton and Mr. Hammond. The
Audit Committee does not comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code (C.3.1) as the
Audit Committee should comprise at least two independent Non-Executive Directors. The
Board believes that the Committee’s composition is appropriate for the size of the Group, that
the members are well qualified for their roles on the Committee and exercise independence in
their duties. The Audit Committee received reports from the Group’s external auditors (KPMG
Audit Plc) and reviewed the half-yearly and annual accounts presented to the Board, focusing
in particular on accounting policies and areas of management, judgement, and estimation. The
Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the controls that are in place to ensure the
integrity of the information reported to the Shareholders.

The Audit Committee acts as a forum for discussion of internal control issues, including review
of the enterprise risk management programme and contributes to the Board’s review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management system and processes. It
advises the Board on the appointment of external auditors and on their remuneration for both
audit and non-audit work and discusses the nature and scope of the audit with the external
auditors. The Audit Committee advises the Board on the need for an internal audit function.
The Audit Committee has concluded that an internal audit function is not appropriate at this
time, given the current scale and structure of the Group’s operations. The Audit Committee is
responsible for overseeing the performance, as well as the independence and objectivity of the
auditors, which it does by requiring reports from the auditors and the requirement to pre-
approve fees for non-audit work.

(b)      Internal Control

In accordance with the Turnbull guidance, there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating, and
managing the significant risks facing the Group. The Directors are responsible for the Group’s system
of internal control and reviewing its effectiveness. The Group’s system of internal control is designed
to provide the Directors with reasonable assurance that the Group’s assets are safeguarded, that
transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and that material errors and irregularities are either
prevented or would be detected within a timely period. However, no system of internal control can
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives or provide absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s system of financial and non-financial controls, including operational and compliance
controls, risk management, and the Group’s high-level internal control arrangements. The key
elements of the internal control system in operation are:

•          The Board meets regularly with a formal schedule of matters reserved to it for decision and has
put in place an organisational structure with clear lines of responsibility defined and with
appropriate delegation of authority. The Board receives periodic reports from all committees.

•          Management is responsible for the identification and evaluation of significant risks and for the
design, implementation, and monitoring of appropriate internal controls, including financial
systems, computer environments, business operations and compliance. Management regularly
reports to the Board on the key risks inherent in the business and on the way in which these
risks are managed.

•          There are established procedures for planning, approval, and monitoring of capital expenditure
and information systems for monitoring the Group’s financial performance against approved
budgets and forecasts.
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13.      Working Capital                                                                                                                                     

The Company does not have sufficient working capital for its present requirements, that is for the next 12
months from the date of this document.

The Company has in issue £7.95 million in aggregate nominal amount of the Convertible Loan Notes which
are due and payable on 31 December 2013, if not previously converted in whole or in part by Noteholders,
at the option of the Noteholders. The Company will therefore on 31 December 2013 have a maximum cash
shortfall equal to £7.95 million, being the aggregate nominal amount of the outstanding Convertible Loan
Notes on such date (the “Shortfall”).

The Company does not expect to be in a position to satisfy a request for repayment by all or a substantial
number of the Noteholders in which event the Company may enter into administration.

In the event the Company does enter into administration, the Directors would no longer manage the affairs
of the Company or the realisation of its assets. As a result of entering into administration, the Ordinary
Shares would be cancelled from the Official List and Shareholders may receive little or no value for their
Ordinary Shares.

In order to address the Shortfall, the Company has secured agreement with certain Noteholders (subject to
the passing of the Resolution) for the variation to the conversion terms of the Convertible Loan Note
Instrument (the “Variation”) and conversion of £7,575,000 in aggregate nominal amount of the Convertible
Loan Notes (the “Conversion”) and thereby satisfying in aggregate 95.28 per cent. of the Shortfall. The
remaining £375,000 of unconverted Convertible Loan Notes, to the extent unconverted by 31 December
2013, and to the extent an election is made on such date to require repayment, will be satisfied out of the net
proceeds of the Placing.

14.      Litigation

There are no, nor have there been, any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such
proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Company is aware) during the 12 months
preceding the date of this document, which may have, or have had in the recent past, a significant effect on
the Group’s financial position or profitability.

15.      Material Contracts                                                                                                                                 

Set out below are all of the contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business)
which have been entered into by any member of the Group within the two years immediately preceding the
date of this document and are or may be material in the context of the Group’s business or which contain any
provision under which any member of the Group has an obligation or entitlement which is material to the
Group as at the date of this document:

(a)       Convertible Loan Note Commitment Letters                                                                                          

Convertible Loan Note Commitment Letters dated 18 December 2012 have been entered into between
the Company and the Converting Noteholders (including those Directors that are Noteholders)
pursuant to which the Converting Noteholders have conditionally agreed to convert their Convertible
Loan Notes into Conversion Shares at a price of 40 pence per Ordinary Share. Certain Converting
Noteholders have also agreed to be issued with Interest Shares. In addition, the Converting
Noteholders holding Ordinary Shares have agreed to vote in favour of the Resolution in respect of the
Ordinary Shares beneficially owned by them.

The undertakings in the Convertible Loan Note Commitment Letters are conditional on the approval
by the Shareholders of the Resolution, the Variation having been approved by the requisite majority
of Noteholders, and each Noteholder that has approved the Variation having entered into a Convertible
Loan Note Commitment Letter. The Variation has been approved by the requisite majority of
Noteholders and each Noteholder that has approved the Variation has entered into a Convertible Loan
Note Commitment Letter.
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(b)      Irrevocable Undertakings

Irrevocable undertakings dated 18 December 2012 have been entered into between the Company and
certain Shareholders as well as each of the Directors with beneficial interests in Existing Ordinary
Shares (who are not Noteholders) pursuant to which each such person has agreed to vote in favour of
the Resolution in respect of their own beneficial holdings amounting to an aggregate of 2,407,980
Ordinary Shares.

(c)       Placing and Underwriting Agreement

The Company and Peel Hunt entered into a Placing and Underwriting Agreement on 19 December
2012. Under the agreement, Peel Hunt was appointed to act as sponsor in relation to the Proposals. In
addition, Peel Hunt has agreed to use its reasonable endeavours to procure subscribers for the Placing
Shares at the Issue Price and, to the extent it fails to procure such subscribers, to subscribe as principal
at the Issue Price. The Placing and Underwriting Agreement contains an obligation on Peel Hunt to
fully underwrite the Placing upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Placing and
Underwriting Agreement. The Company has given certain customary warranties and undertakings
regarding, amongst other things, the accuracy of information contained in this document, working
capital and the Group and its businesses. The Company has also agreed to indemnify Peel Hunt
against losses arising from claims made against Peel Hunt in respect of the Proposals.

Peel Hunt may terminate the Placing and Underwriting Agreement in specified circumstances prior to
Admission, including (i) in the event of a breach of the Placing and Underwriting Agreement or a
breach of the warranties contained therein to an extent which Peel Hunt regards acting in good faith
as material in the context of the Proposals, or (ii) where there is a material adverse change in the
financial or trading position or prospects of the Group to an extent which Peel Hunt regards acting in
good faith as material in the context of the Proposals, or (iii) in the event of certain force majeure
events arising. In the event that Peel Hunt terminates the Placing and Underwriting Agreement or if
the agreement does not become unconditional in accordance with its terms, the Placing and
Admission will not take place and Peel Hunt will not itself subscribe as principal for any Placing
Shares.

(d)      Business Purchase Agreement dated 25 May 2012 with Monmouth Scientific Limited

PuriCore International entered into a business purchase agreement on 25 May 2012 with Monmouth
Scientific Limited for the purchase of the surgical endoscopy products business of Monmouth
Scientific Limited. The consideration paid by PuriCore International on or around completion totalled
£285,169. In addition, PuriCore International has conditionally agreed to pay further consideration of
£125,000, of which £50,000 is payable upon the first anniversary of completion and the balance
payable on the second anniversary of completion.

(e)       Warrant Instrument dated 28 April 2011                                                                                               

On 28 April 2011, in conjunction with the making of a loan which has been fully repaid, the Company
issued Warrants to Financial Trading & Consultancy Limited. Financial Trading & Consultancy
Limited is entitled until 28 April 2014 to subscribe for up to 400,000 Ordinary Shares at a price of
52.8 pence per Ordinary Share. If there is an issue of Ordinary Shares (other than pursuant to the
exercise or conversion of existing subscription rights including any options granted pursuant to the
Share Schemes, subscription rights pursuant to the Warrant Instrument dated 30 June 2008 or
conversion rights pursuant to the Convertible Loan Note Instrument), any sub-division or
consolidation of Ordinary Shares, or any cancellation or reduction of Ordinary Shares, the number of
Ordinary Shares to be issued on any subsequent exercise of the Warrant shall be adjusted so that
holders of the Warrants will receive an adjusted number of Ordinary Shares so that the total number
of Ordinary Shares to be or capable of being issued will carry the same proportion of votes and
entitlement to participate in profits as they did immediately before such issue, sub-division,
conversion, cancellation or reduction of Ordinary Shares. Accordingly, the issue of the Placing Shares
and the Interest Shares will result in an adjustment to the number of Ordinary Shares to be issued on
the exercise of the Warrant.
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(f)       Convertible Loan Note Instrument dated 14 June 2010

The Company issued £7.95 million in aggregate nominal amount of Convertible Loan Notes pursuant
to the Convertible Loan Note Instrument dated 14 June 2010. The principal terms of the Convertible
Loan Notes are summarised in Part II of this document.

(g)      Promissory Note dated 22 April 2010 with Republic First Bank

On 22 April 2010, PuriCore, Inc. borrowed US$1,770,363 in the form of a promissory note and
security agreement with Republic First Bank. The Promissory Note accrues interest at a rate of 6.0
per cent. per annum and is repayable in 36 monthly instalments beginning May 2010. The Promissory
Note is secured by leased equipment (and related payments). Monthly payments on this note are
aligned with the payments due to PuriCore, Inc., for the leased equipment. As at 31 October 2012,
US$315,586 was outstanding on this note.

(h)      Promissory note dated 31 December 2009 with Republic First Bank

In December 2009, PuriCore, Inc. borrowed US$659,308 in the form of a promissory note and
security agreement with Republic First Bank. The note is repayable in 36 monthly instalments
beginning January 2010, bears interest at 6.0 per cent., and is secured by leased equipment (and
related lease payments). Monthly payments on this note are aligned with the payments due to
PuriCore, Inc., for the leased equipment. As at 31 October 2012, US$39,716 was outstanding on this
note.

(i)       Warrant Instrument dated 30 June 2008

On 30 June 2008, the Company issued Warrants to Woolwich International Holdings Limited as
further consideration for the granting of a promissory note which has been fully repaid. Woolwich
International Holdings Limited is entitled until 30 June 2013 to subscribe for up to 24,710 Ordinary
Shares at a price of 212 pence per Ordinary Share. If there is a sub-division of the Ordinary Shares,
the number and/or nominal value of the Ordinary Shares to be subscribed for on the exercise of the
Warrants will be increased in due proportion so that the Warrants will represent the same percentage
of issued share capital of the Company as they did at the date the Warrants were granted. The price at
which the Warrants may be exercised may also be adjusted on a sub-division of the Ordinary Shares
in such manner (if at all) as the auditors of the Company certify as being appropriate.

16.      Taxation                                                                                                                                                   

The following information is intended only as a general guide to current UK tax legislation and to what is
understood to be the current practice of HMRC and may not apply to certain classes of Shareholders, such
as dealers in securities, or to Shareholders who are not absolute beneficial owners of their shares. Any person
who is in doubt as to their tax position, or is subject to tax in any jurisdiction other than the UK, should
consult their professional adviser without delay.

In particular, in respect of the proposed Variation and the proposed Conversion (by reference to the agreed
mechanism and any payments made under the terms of the Convertible Loan Notes prior to the Variation/
the Conversion) each Noteholder should seek professional tax advice to confirm the tax implications for
them.

(a)       Dividends

(i)       Corporation Tax

Corporation tax applies to UK and non-UK source dividends and other distributions (excluding
capital distributions) unless the distribution is exempt. Broadly all dividends are exempt from
corporation tax unless they fall within certain anti-avoidance rules. Dividends paid on the
Ordinary Shares to UK tax resident corporate Shareholders should generally continue to
qualify for exemption from UK corporation tax, however, Shareholders within the charge to
UK corporation tax are advised to consult their independent professional tax advisers on this
issue.
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(ii)      Income Tax

Under current UK taxation legislation, no withholding tax will be deducted from dividends
paid by the Company.

Dividends paid by the Company will carry an associated tax credit of one-ninth of the cash
dividend or ten per cent. of the aggregate of the cash dividend and associated tax credit.
Shareholders resident in the UK receiving such dividends will be liable to income tax on the
aggregate of the dividend and associated tax credit at the dividend basic rate (10 per cent.), the
dividend higher rate (32.5 per cent.) or the dividend additional rate (42.5 per cent. reducing to
37.5 per cent. from 6 April 2013).

The effect will be that the taxpayers who are otherwise liable to pay at only the basic rate of
income tax should have no further liability or income tax in respect of such a dividend. Higher
rate tax payers will have an additional liability (after taking into account the tax credit) of
22.5 per cent., of the aggregate of the cash dividend and the associated tax credit, or an effective
rate of 25 per cent., of the dividend actually received. Additional rate taxpayers will have an
additional liability (after taking into account the tax credit) of 32.5 per cent. (27.5 per cent.
from 6 April 2013) on the aggregate of the cash dividend and the associated tax credit, or an
effective rate of 36.1 per cent. (30.6 per cent. from 6 April 2013) of the cash dividend actually
paid. Shareholders whose income tax liability is less than the tax credit will not be entitled to
claim a repayment of all or part of the tax credit.

Non-UK resident Shareholders will not generally be able to claim repayment from HMRC of
any part of the tax credit attaching to dividends paid by the Company. A Shareholder resident
outside the UK may also be subject to foreign taxation on dividend income under local law. It
is particularly important that Shareholders who are not resident in the UK for tax purposes
obtain their own tax advice concerning tax liabilities on dividends received from the Company.

(b)      UK Taxation of Chargeable Gains

(i)       Corporate Shareholders

A UK tax resident corporate Shareholder disposing of its Ordinary Shares may be liable to
corporation tax on chargeable gains arising on the disposal at the corporation tax rate
applicable to its taxable profits (the main rate of corporation tax for 2011/2012 being
26 per cent. reducing to 24 per cent. for 2012/2013).

In computing the chargeable gain liable to corporation tax, a corporate Shareholder is entitled
to deduct from the disposal proceeds the cost to it of the Ordinary Shares as increased by an
indexation allowance to adjust for inflation, together with incidental costs of acquisition and
disposal costs.

The UK operates a substantial shareholding exemption regime which may apply to the disposal
of Ordinary Shares by corporate Shareholders subject to certain conditions being met.

(ii)      Non-corporate Shareholders

For the purpose of UK taxation on chargeable gains, the acquisition of Ordinary Shares
pursuant to the Placing will be regarded as an acquisition of a new holding in the share capital
of the Company. The amount paid for the Ordinary Shares will usually constitute the base cost
of a Shareholder’s holding.

If a Shareholder disposes of all or some of his or her Ordinary Shares, a liability to tax on
chargeable gains may, depending on his or her circumstances and subject to any available
exemptions or reliefs, arise.

A UK tax resident or ordinarily resident individual Shareholder who disposes (or is deemed to
dispose) of all or any of their Ordinary Shares may be liable to capital gains tax in relation
thereto at rates of 18 per cent. or 28 per cent. depending on the Shareholder’s total amount of
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taxable income and subject to any available exemptions (the capital gains annual exemption
being £10,600 for individuals for 2011/2012) or reliefs.

In addition, an individual UK Shareholder who ceases to be resident or ordinarily resident in
the UK for a period of less than five complete tax years and who disposes of the Ordinary
Shares held prior to departure during that period of temporary non-residence may, under anti-
avoidance legislation, be liable to capital gains tax on his or her return to the UK.

(iii)     Non-UK resident Shareholders

Shareholders who are not resident or ordinarily resident in the UK for the purpose of UK
taxation will not normally be liable to UK taxation on chargeable gains arising from a disposal
of their Ordinary Shares unless they carry on a trade, profession or vocation in the UK through
a branch or agency (or in the case of a corporate Shareholder, a permanent establishment) in
connection with which the Ordinary Shares are held. Such Shareholders, however, may be
subject to foreign taxation depending upon their personal circumstances. Shareholders who are
individuals and who are temporarily non-resident in the UK may, under anti-avoidance
legislation, still be liable to UK tax on any capital gain realised (subject to any available
exemption or relief).

(c)       Stamp Duty and Stamp Duty Reserve Tax

No liability to UK stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax (“SDRT”) should arise on the issue of
Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Placing. 

A subsequent transfer or sale of Ordinary Shares will generally be liable either to ad valorem stamp
duty at the rate of 0.5 per cent. (rounded up to the nearest multiple of £5) of the consideration actually
paid for the transfer or sale or, if an unconditional agreement to transfer the Ordinary Shares is not
completed by an instrument of transfer that is duly stamped within six years of the agreement (or, if
the agreement was conditional, the date on which the agreement became unconditional), to stamp duty
reserve tax at the rate of 0.5 per cent. of the consideration actually paid.

A transfer of Ordinary Shares effected on a paperless basis through CREST will generally be subject
to SDRT at the rate of 0.5 per cent, of the amount or value of the consideration payable. CREST is
obliged to collect SDRT on relevant transactions carried out through CREST.

Stamp duty is normally paid by the purchaser. SDRT is ultimately a liability of the purchaser. The
Company will not be responsible for payment of stamp duty or SDRT in any case.

Under CREST, no stamp duty or SDRT will arise on a transfer of Ordinary Shares into CREST unless
such a transfer is made for a consideration in money or money’s worth, in which case a liability to
SDRT (usually at a rate of 0.5 per cent.) will arise.

17.      General

Peel Hunt has given and not withdrawn its written consent to the issue of this document with the references
to its name in the form and context in which it appears.

The auditors of PuriCore since its incorporation have been KPMG Audit Plc, a member firm of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, whose registered address is at St. James’ Square,
Manchester M2 6DS.

The Ordinary Shares are in registered form. It is expected that definitive share certificates in respect of any
New Ordinary Shares to be held in certificated form will be despatched to holders by Equiniti by no later
than 18 January 2013. No temporary documents of title will be issued. The total costs, charges and expenses
in connection with the Variation, the Conversion, the issue of Interest Shares and the Placing are estimated
to be approximately £670,000 (exclusive of VAT) and are payable by the Company. The estimated net
proceeds of the issue of the New Ordinary Shares will be approximately £1,632,000.
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The Conversion Shares will be issued at 40 pence per Conversion Share, which represents a premium of
30 pence per Ordinary Share to the nominal value of 10 pence of each Ordinary Share. The Placing Shares
will be issued at 43 pence per Placing Share, which represents a premium of 33 pence per Ordinary Share
to the nominal value of 10 pence of each Ordinary Share.

Other than the application for Admission, the New Ordinary Shares have not been admitted to dealings on
any recognised investment exchange nor has any application for such admission been made, nor are there
intended to be any other arrangements for dealing in the New Ordinary Shares.

Other than as described in this document, there are no patents or other intellectual property rights, licences
or particular contracts which are of fundamental importance to the Company’s business.

18.      Principal Establishments                                                                                                                       

The following are the principal establishments of the Group:

                                                                                            Rent                                   Expiry       Approximate
Location                                            Tenure                  (per month)                                 date         area (sq. ft.)

508 Lapp Road,                           Leasehold                   US$40,031              31 August 2014                32,908
Malvern
Pennsylvania
19355
US

Wolseley House,                         Leasehold                        £10,920         29 September 2014                13,580
Dyson Way
Staffordshire
Technology Park
Beaconside
Stafford
ST18 0AG
UK

175 Kenn Road,                           Leasehold                        £10,000                  29 June 2017                20,000
Clevedon
North Somerset
BS21 6LH
UK

19.      Environmental Issues                                                                                                                             

There are no environmental issues that might affect the Company’s use of its tangible fixed assets.

20.      Number of Employees                                                                                                                            

The average number of employees increased from 147 in the year ended 31 December 2009 to 182 in the
year ended 31 December 2010, as a result of the acquisition of Labcaire, and then decreased to 170 in the
year ended 31 December 2011.

The breakdown of average number of employees by geographical location is as follows:

                                                                                                    Year ended         Year ended         Year ended
                                                                                                 31 December      31 December      31 December
                                                                                                              2009                   2010                   2011
US                                                                                                              56                       57                       56
UK                                                                                                             91                     125                     114
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
                                                                                                                147                     182                     170                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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The number of employees as at 18 December 2012, being the last practicable date before publication of this
document is 163.

21.      Related Party Transactions                                                                                                                   

Save as disclosed in note 27 to PuriCore’s 2009 Annual Report and Accounts, note 26 to PuriCore’s 2010
Annual Report and Accounts and note 25 to PuriCore’s 2011 Annual Report and Accounts (which have been
incorporated by reference in Part IV of this document) there have been no related party transactions during
the financial years ended 31 December 2009, 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011. The Company
confirms that there have been no related party transactions entered into by the Company in the period
between 31 December 2011 and the date of this document.

22.      Third Party Statements                                                                                                                         

Certain information has been obtained from external publications and/ or third parties and is sourced in this
document where the information is included. PuriCore confirms that this information has been accurately
reproduced and, so far as the Company is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by third
parties, no facts have been omitted which would render the information inaccurate or misleading.

23.      Significant Change                                                                                                                                 

Save for the impact of the two contracts announced by the Company on 9 October 2012, which are expected
to generate respective revenues of US$7 million and US$2 million, as referred to in paragraph 3 of Part I of
this document under the heading “Current Trading and Prospects” and the sub-heading “Food &
Agriculture”, there has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the Group since
30 June 2012, being the date to which the unaudited interim financial statements of the Group, which have
been incorporated by reference into this document, were prepared.

24.      Documents Available for Inspection                                                                                                     

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection during normal business hours on any
weekday (except Saturdays and public holidays) at the offices of CMS Cameron McKenna LLP, Mitre
House, 160 Aldersgate Street, London, EC1A 4DD from the date of this document up to the conclusion of
the General Meeting:

(a)      the Articles of the Company;

(b)      the documents incorporated by reference set out in paragraph 25 below;

(c)      the letter of consent referred to in paragraph 17 of this Part VI; and

(d)      this document.

25.      Documents incorporated by reference

This document should be read and construed in conjunction with certain documents which have been
previously published and filed with the UKLA and which shall be deemed to be incorporated in, and form
part of, this document. Part IV (Financial Information Relating to PuriCore) and the table below list the
information which is incorporated by reference into this document in compliance with Prospectus Rule 2.4.1.
To the extent that any document or information incorporated by reference or attached to this document itself
incorporates any information by reference, either expressly or impliedly, such information will not form part
of this document for the purposes of the Prospectus Rules, except where such information or documents are
stated within this document as specifically being incorporated by reference or where this document is
specifically defined as including such information.

Any statement contained in a document which is deemed to be incorporated by reference into this document
shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this document to the extent that a statement
contained in this document (or in a later document which is incorporated by reference into this document)
modifies or supersedes such earlier statement (whether expressly, by implication or otherwise). Any

99



statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute
a part of this document.

These documents are also available on the Company’s website at www.puricore.com.

                                                                                              Page number(s)
                                                                                             in the reference

Reference document Information incorporated by reference                                         document

Chairman & CEO Review                                                                       4–5
CFO Report                                                                                                 6
Business Review                                                                                   7–11
Board of Directors                                                                                     12
Directors’ Report                                                                                 13–21
Corporate Governance Statement                                                       22–25
Directors’ Remuneration Report                                                         26–30
Independent Auditor’s Report                                                             32–33
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income                                 34
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity                                         35
Company Statement of Changes in Equity                                               36
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position                                    37–38
Company Statement of Financial Position                                                39
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows                                                    40
Company Statement of Cash Flows                                                          41
Group Accounting Policies                                                                 42–47
Notes to the Financial Statements                                                       48–74

Chairman’s Report                                                                                  2–3
Chief Financial Officer’s Report                                                                 4
Board of Directors                                                                                       5
Business Review                                                                                     6–9
Directors’ Report                                                                                 10–18
Corporate Governance Statement                                                       19–22
Directors’ Remuneration Report                                                         23–26
Independent Auditor’s Report                                                             28–29
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income                                 30
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity                                         31
Company Statement of Changes in Equity                                               32
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position                                    33–34
Company Statement of Financial Position                                                35
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows                                                    36
Company Statement of Cash Flows                                                          37
Group Accounting Policies                                                                 38–43
Notes to the Financial Statements                                                       44–72

PuriCore’s 2009
Annual Report
and Accounts

PuriCore’s 2010
Annual Report
and Accounts

PuriCore’s unaudited
H1 2011 Interim
Financial Statement

100



                                                                                              Page number(s)
                                                                                             in the reference

Reference document Information incorporated by reference                                         document

Operating and Financial Review                                                             2–4
Board of Directors                                                                                       5
Business Review                                                                                     6–9
Directors’ Report                                                                                 10–17
Corporate Governance Statement                                                       18–21
Directors’ Remuneration Report                                                         22–25
Independent Auditor’s Report                                                             27–28
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income                                 29
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity                                         30
Company Statement of Changes in Equity                                               31
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position                                    32–33
Company Statement of Financial Position                                                34
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows                                                    35
Company Statement of Cash Flows                                                          36
Group Accounting Policies                                                                 37–41
Notes to the Financial Statements                                                       42–66

Except as set forth above, no other portion of these documents is incorporated by reference into this
document and those portions which are not specifically incorporated by reference in this document are either
not relevant for the prospective investors or the relevant information is included elsewhere in this document.

PuriCore’s unaudited
H1 2012 Interim
Financial Statement
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PART VII

DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply throughout this document unless the context requires otherwise:

“1985 Act” the Companies Act 1985

“2004 Scheme” the Sterilox Technologies, Inc. Share Option Scheme 2004

“2006 Act” the Companies Act 2006

“Admission” admission of the New Ordinary Shares to: (i) the Official List; and
(ii) trading on the London Stock Exchange’s main market for listed
securities becoming effective in accordance with, respectively, the
Listing Rules and the Admission and Disclosure Standards

the requirements contained in the publication “Admission and
Disclosure Standards” (as amended from time to time) containing,
amongst other things, the admission requirements to be observed by
companies seeking admission to trading on the London Stock
Exchange’s main market for listed securities

“Articles” the articles of association of the Company adopted by special
resolution on 30 June 2010, as further described in paragraph 6 of
Part VI of this document

“Board” or “Directors” the directors of PuriCore, as set out on page 18 of this document

“Business Day” a day on which the London Stock Exchange is open for the
transaction of business

“CFIA” Canadian Food Inspection Agency

“Closing Price” the closing price of an Ordinary Share as derived from the Daily
Official List of the London Stock Exchange

“Conversion” the conversion of Convertible Loan Notes to Conversion Shares

“Conversion Price” the price at which the Convertible Loan Notes can be converted to
Ordinary Shares

“Conversion Shares” the new Ordinary Shares to be issued upon the exercise of
conversion rights by Converting Noteholders under the Convertible
Loan Note Instrument

“Convertible Loan Notes” the secured convertible loan notes of the Company due
31 December 2013 constituted by the Convertible Loan Note
Instrument

“Converting Noteholders” those Noteholders that elect to convert their Convertible Loan Notes
into Conversion Shares at a Conversion Price of 40 pence per
Ordinary Share pursuant to the Convertible Loan Note Commitment
Letters

the conditional letters made between the Company and certain
Noteholders in connection with the Conversion and the issue of
Interest Shares, the principal terms of which are summarised in
paragraph 15 of Part VI of this document

“Admission and Disclosure
Standards”

“Convertible Loan Note
Commitment Letters”
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the instrument of the Company constituting the Convertible Loan
Notes as conditionally amended by written resolutions signed by
Noteholders holding not less than 75 per cent. in nominal amount of
the outstanding Convertible Loan Notes, the principal terms and
conditions of which are summarised in Part II of this document

“CREST” the computerised settlement system operated by Euroclear UK &
Ireland to facilitate the transfer of title to shares in uncertificated
form

“CREST Regulations” the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001

“Director” a director of the Company

“EBITDA” earnings before interest, tax, amortisation and depreciation

“Enlarged Issued Share Capital” the issued share capital of the Company after the implementation of
the Conversion, the issue of Interest Shares and the Placing

“EPA” the US Environmental Protection Agency

“EU” the European Union

Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited

“Executive Director” the executive Chairman of the Company, being Michael Ashton

“Existing Ordinary Shares” the Ordinary Shares of 10 pence each in the capital of the Company
in issue at the date of this document

“FDA” the US Food and Drug Administration

“Form of Proxy” the Form of Proxy relating to the General Meeting which
accompanies this document

“FSMA” the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000

“General Meeting” the general meeting of the Company to be held at 4.00 p.m. on
10 January 2013, notice of which is set out at the end of this
document

“Group” the Company, its subsidiaries and its subsidiary undertakings

“H1” and “H2” refers to the first and second halves of a calendar year for the
six month periods ending 30 June and 31 December respectively

“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standards

“Incentive Plan” the PuriCore Executive Omnibus Incentive Plan

“Interest Shares” the 495,613 new Ordinary Shares to be issued to certain Converting
Noteholders in satisfaction of the Company’s liability to pay
accrued interest to those Converting Noteholders in respect of the
period from 1 July 2012 up to Conversion at a price of 40 pence per
Ordinary Share, rounded down to the nearest Ordinary Share

“ISO” International Standards Organisation

“Issue Price” 43 pence per New Ordinary Share

“Labcaire” or “Labcaire Systems” Labcaire Systems Limited, a leading provider of endoscope
decontamination equipment and services in the UK acquired by

“Euroclear UK & Ireland” or
“Euroclear”

“Convertible Loan Note
Instrument”
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PuriCore International in August 2009 whose business was
transferred to PuriCore International on 31 December 2009

“Listing Rules” the listing rules of the UK Listing Authority

“London Stock Exchange” London Stock Exchange plc

“Merger” the merger of PuriCore, Inc. with Sterilox MergerCo, Inc. pursuant
to which PuriCore, Inc. became a subsidiary of the Company

“New Ordinary Shares” the Conversion Shares, the Interest Shares and the Placing Shares

“NHS” the National Health Service in the United Kingdom

“Noteholders” the holders of the Convertible Loan Notes

“NSF” National Sanitation Foundation

“Official List” the Official List of the Financial Services Authority

“Ordinary Shares” or “Shares” ordinary shares of 10 pence each in the capital of the Company

“Peel Hunt” Peel Hunt LLP

“Placee(s)” the person(s) with whom the Placing Shares are being conditionally
placed

“Placing” the conditional placing of the Placing Shares by Peel Hunt on behalf
of the Company pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Placing
and Underwriting Agreement

“Placing and Underwriting Agreement the agreement between PuriCore and Peel Hunt dated 19 December
2012, the principal terms of which are summarised in paragraph 15
of Part VI of this document

“Placing Shares” the 5,353,488 new Ordinary Shares which have been conditionally
placed firm by Peel Hunt pursuant to the Placing and Underwriting
Agreement

“Proposals” the proposed Variation, Conversion, issue of Interest Shares and the
Placing

“Prospectus Rules” the rules made for the purposes of Part VI of the FSMA in relation
to offers of securities to the public and admission of securities to
trading on a regulated market

“PuriCore” or “Company” PuriCore plc or when the context requires, PuriCore plc and its
subsidiaries and subsidiary undertakings or any combination of
them

“PuriCore, Inc.” the US operating company of the Group, which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of PuriCore

“PuriCore International” PuriCore International Limited, the UK operating company of the
Group, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of PuriCore

“Q1”, “Q2”, “Q3” and “Q4” refers to the first, second, third and fourth quarters of a calendar
year for the three month periods ending 31 March, 30 June,
30 September and 31 December respectively

Equiniti Limited“Registrars” or “Equiniti”
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“Regulatory Information Service” one of the regulatory information services authorised by the UKLA
to receive, process and disseminate regulatory information in
respect of listed companies

“Repayment Date” the date on which the Company is required at the election of the
Noteholders to repay the Convertible Loan Notes, being
31 December 2013

“Resolution” the resolution to be proposed as a special resolution at the General
Meeting, notice of which is set out at the end of this document

“Securities Act” the US Securities Act of 1933 (as amended)

the senior independent non-executive Director, being Dr. James
Walsh

“Senior Management” those members of the management bodies of PuriCore and its
subsidiaries who are relevant to establishing that PuriCore has the
appropriate expertise and experience for the management of its
business for the purposes of paragraph 14.1 of Annex I of
Appendix 3 of the Prospectus Rules, being Neil Blewitt, Jenifer
Bowden, Tom Daniel, Geoff Koontz, Colin Leak, Mark Sampson
and Marella Thorell

“Shareholder Helpline” the Shareholder helpline available from 8.30 a.m. to 5.30 p.m.
Monday to Friday (except bank and other public holidays in the
UK) on 0871 384 2050 from inside the United Kingdom or +44 121
415 0259 from outside the United Kingdom

“Shareholders” holders of Ordinary Shares

“Share Schemes” the 2004 Scheme, the Incentive Plan and the individual option
arrangements described in paragraph 11 of Part VI of this document

“Statutes” every statute (including any statutory instrument, order, regulation
or subordinate legislation made under it) concerning companies that
are incorporated in England and Wales to the extent that it is for the
time being in force or (where the context requires) was in force at a
particular time, including the 1985 Act, the 2006 Act, the
Insolvency Act 1986 and the CREST Regulations

“subsidiary undertaking” has the meaning ascribed to it in sections 1161, 1162 and
Schedule 7 of the 2006 Act

“Takeover Code” the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers

“UK” or “United Kingdom” the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

“UK Listing Authority” or “UKLA” the Financial Services Authority in its capacity as the competent
authority for the purposes of Part VI of FSMA and in the exercise
of its functions in respect of the admission to the Official List
otherwise than in accordance with Part VI of FSMA

“UL” Underwriters Laboratories Inc.

“US” or “United States” the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any
state of the United States of America and the District of Columbia

“Senior Independent Non-
Executive Director”
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“Variation” the proposed variation to the Convertible Loan Notes providing for
a conversion price of 40 pence per Ordinary Share for a Conversion
taking place pursuant to a conversion notice dated on or prior to
14  December 2012, and a conversion price of 75 pence per
Ordinary Share for a Conversion taking place pursuant to a
conversion notice dated after 14 December 2012

“Warrants” warrants to subscribe for Ordinary Shares

“Warrantholders” holders of Warrants

“US$”, $, “dollar” or “US dollar” the lawful currency of the United States

the lawful currency of the United Kingdom

Unless otherwise stated, all times referred to in this document are references to the time in London.

All references to legislation in this document are to the legislation of England and Wales unless the contrary
is indicated. Any reference to any provision of any legislation shall include any amendment, modification,
re-enactment or extension thereof.

Words importing the singular shall include the plural and vice versa and words importing the masculine
gender shall include the feminine or neutral gender.

“£” “Sterling”, “pounds”,
“pounds sterling”, “p” or “pence”
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GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

“510(k) clearance” the pre-marketing process under section 510(k) of the US Food,
Drug and Cosmetic Act whereby manufacturers notify the FDA of
their intent to market a medical device

a machine for the automated decontamination of endoscopes

“antimicrobial” an agent that inhibits the growth or multiplication of
microorganisms, or kills them

“autoclave” a device that uses steam to sterilise equipment

“biocide or biocidal” a product typically used to kill micro-organisms

“biofilm” a naturally occurring community of micro-organisms enclosed
within a polysaccharide matrix. Biofilms are ubiquitous in nature
and protect micro-organisms from chemical attack

“BPD” Biocidal Products Directive 98/8/EC

“brine” saline solution

“Conformité Européene or CE” a product marking applying to products regulated by the European
Commission’s health, safety and environmental protection
legislation, which indicates that a manufacturer has conformed with
all the obligations required and is allowed to freely distribute the
product

“decontamination” disinfection or sterilisation of infected articles to make them
suitable for use

“disinfectant” an agent that destroys most recognised pathogenic and other kinds
of micro-organisms by chemical or physical means but not
necessarily all microbial forms, such as bacterial spores

“disinfection” the destruction of pathogenic and other kinds of micro-organisms
by physical or chemical means. Disinfection is a less lethal process
than sterilisation, since it destroys most recognised pathogenic
micro-organisms, but not necessarily all microbial forms, such as
bacterial spores

“electrochemical cell” a set up that uses an electrolyte and electrodes in such a way that a
chemical reaction will produce an electric current sent through an
external circuit. In any electrochemical cell, oxidation reactions
take place at the anode and reduction reactions take place at the
cathode

“electrolyte” the medium in a fuel cell that provides the ion transport mechanism
between the anode and the cathode necessary to sustain the
electrochemical process. In a fuel cell, the electrolyte allows the
transport of positively charged hydrogen ions (protons) from the
anode, where they are produced, to the cathode, where they react
with oxygen molecules and electrons to produce water

“endodontic” the branch of dentistry that deals with diseases of the tooth root,
dental pulp and surrounding tissue

“Automated Endoscope
Reprocessor” or “AER”
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“endoscope” a fiber optic instrument for examining visually the interior of a
bodily canal or a hollow organ such as the colon, bladder, or
stomach

“endoscopy” endoscopy is the general term for the use of an endoscope, for
examining the inside of the body. For instance the examination of
the colon using an endoscope is called a colonoscopy, the
examination of the stomach is called a gastroscopy and the
examination of the bronchi is called a bronchoscopy

“fogging” a process of distributing liquid into the atmosphere through the
delivery of very small droplets

“germicide” an agent that destroys micro-organisms, especially pathogenic
organisms

“H5N1 Avian Influenza” a subtype of the Influenza A virus that is capable of causing illness
in many species, including humans. An avian-adapted, highly
pathogenic strain of H5N1 is the causative agent of H5N1 flu,
commonly known as “avian influenza” or simply “bird flu” and is
endemic in many bird populations

“high level disinfectant” a germicide that inactivates all microbial pathogens, except large
numbers of bacterial endospores, when used according to labelling.
The FDA further defines a high level disinfectant as a sterilant used
under the same contact conditions except for a shorter contact time

“HIV” human immunodeficiency virus, the virus that causes AIDS

“ion” an atom or group of atoms that carries a positive or negative charge
as a result of having lost or gained one or more electrons

an acute, sometimes fatal respiratory disease caused by abacterium
of the genus Legionella, especially L. pneumophila and
characterised by severe pneumonia, headache and a dry cough

a strain of Staphylococcus aureus that has become resistant to the
antibiotic methicillin. In practice, MRSAs are generally resistant to
many antibiotics and some are resistant to all but vancomycin

“misting” refers to spraying small droplets of water into the air around
produce to increase humidity

“norovirus” a group of related viruses, including norwalk and norwalk-like
viruses, that can cause stomach pain, diarrhoea and vomiting in
humans. Norovirus is the most common cause of infectious
gastroenteritis. Outbreaks of norovirus gastroenteritis are common
in semi-closed environments such as hospitals, nursing homes,
schools and cruise ships

“pathogen” a micro-organism that causes disease in another organism.
Generally, any viruses, bacteria, or fungi that cause disease

“peracetic acid” a strong oxidant, also known as peroxyacetic acid

“pH” (from “potential of Hydrogen”) the logarithm of the reciprocal of
hydrogen-ion concentration in gram atoms per litre; provides a
measure on a scale from 0 to 14 of the acidity or alkalinity of a

“Methicillin-Resistant
Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA)”

“Legionnaires disease or
Legionella”
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solution (where 7 is neutral and greater than 7 is more alkaline and
less than 7 is more acidic)

“SAFERplus” a PuriCore pass-through automated endoscope reprocessor used in
UK hospital endoscopy departments in the decontamination of
flexible endoscopes

“sterile” the state of being free from viable micro-organisms

“sterilisation” a validated process used to render a product free of all forms of
viable micro-organisms

“Sterilox Solution” or “Solution” a hypochlorous acid solution produced in PuriCore’s Sterilox
Systems from water, electricity and common salt as a disinfectant or
sanitising solution

“Sterilox Systems” or “Systems” the branded system(s) marketed by PuriCore which produce a
hypochlorous acid solution from water, electricity and common salt

an infectious disease caused by Mycobacterium tuberculosis that
typically affects the lungs (pulmonary TB), but may also occur in
other organs (extrapulmonary TB). TB infection refers to
asymptomatic, latent infection with TB bacteria; active TB disease
refers to symptoms caused by replicating bacteria

“Vashe Wound Therapy” a PuriCore branded system used in wound care with clearance from
the US Food and Drug Administration for moistening, irrigating,
cleaning and debriding acute and chronic wounds

“tuberculosis, TB or
Mycobacterium tuberculosis”
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NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING

PURICORE PLC
Incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 1985 with registered number 5789798

Notice is hereby given that a GENERAL MEETING of PURICORE PLC (the “Company”) will be
held at 4.00 p.m. on 10 January 2013 at the offices of CMS Cameron McKenna LLP, Mitre House, 160
Aldersgate Street, London EC1A 4DD to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution,
which will be proposed as a special resolution:

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

THAT:

(a)      the Directors be generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant to section 551 of the Companies
Act 2006 (the “2006 Act”) (in addition to, and not in substitution for, any existing authority to allot)
to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company or grant rights to subscribe
for or to convert any security into shares in the Company of an aggregate nominal amount of
£2,478,661, such authority to expire (unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general
meeting) on the earlier of fifteen months from the date this Resolution is passed and the conclusion
of the annual general meeting of the Company in 2013, save that the Company may before such expiry
make any offer or agreement which would or might require shares to be allotted or such rights to be
granted after such expiry and the Directors may allot shares or grant such rights in pursuance of such
offer or agreement as if the authority conferred by this resolution had not expired; and

(b)      the Directors be empowered pursuant to section 570 of the 2006 Act (in addition to, and not in
substitution for, any existing power) to allot equity securities (as defined in section 560(1) of the 2006
Act) of the Company for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by paragraph (a) of this Resolution
as if section 561(1) of the 2006 Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall
expire (unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) on the earlier of fifteen
months from the date this Resolution is passed and the conclusion of the annual general meeting of
the Company in 2013, save that the Company may before such expiry make any offer or agreement
which would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may
allot equity securities in pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if the power conferred hereby
had not expired.

Registered office:                                                                                                             By order of the Board:

Wolseley Court                                                                                                                         Marella Thorell
Staffordshire Technology Park Company Secretary
Stafford                                                                                                                                 19 December 2012
ST18 0GA

Notes:

1.     A member who is an individual is entitled to attend, speak and vote at the meeting or to appoint one or more other persons as his
proxy to exercise all or any of his rights on his behalf. Further details of how to appoint a proxy, and the rights of proxies, are
given in the paragraphs below. A member that is a company can appoint one or more corporate representatives (such as a director
or employee of the company) whose attendance at the meeting is treated as if the company were attending in person, or it can
appoint one or more persons as its proxy to exercise all or any of its rights on its behalf. In each case, a person attending the
meeting will need to provide the Company or its registrars, Equiniti Limited, with evidence of their identity and, if applicable,
their appointment as a proxy or corporate representative with authority to vote on behalf of a member.

2.     A shareholder may appoint more than one proxy in relation to the General Meeting provided that each proxy is appointed to
exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by that shareholder. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the
Company. To appoint a proxy or proxies shareholders must: (a) complete a Form of Proxy, sign it and return it, together with the
power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, to the Company’s registrars, Equiniti Limited, Aspect
House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA, United Kingdom; (b) complete a CREST Proxy Instruction (as set out
in paragraph 11 below); or (c) register the appointment of a proxy electronically at www.sharevote.co.uk (see paragraph
13 below), in each case so that it is received no later than 4.00 p.m. on 8 January 2013. To appoint more than one proxy, you will
need to complete a separate Form of Proxy in relation to each appointment. A Form of Proxy for use in connection with the
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General Meeting is enclosed with this document. If you do not have a Form of Proxy and believe that you should, please contact
the Company’s registrars, Equiniti Limited on 0871 384 2050 (calls to this number are charged at 8p per minute from a BT
landline; other telephony provider costs may vary) or at Equiniti Limited, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex
BN99 6DA, United Kingdom.

3.     Where more than one proxy is being appointed, you will need to state clearly on each Form of Proxy the number of shares in
relation to which the proxy is appointed. A failure to specify the number of shares each proxy appointment relates to or specify
a number of shares in excess of those held by the member will invalidate the proxy appointment.

4.     The return of a completed Form of Proxy or any CREST Proxy Instruction (as described in paragraph 11 below) will not prevent
a shareholder attending the General Meeting and voting in person if he/she wishes to do so.

5.     In the case of joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the appointment submitted
by the most senior holder will be accepted. Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the joint holders appear
in the Company’s register of members in respect of the joint holding (the first-named being the most senior).

6.     Any person to whom this Notice is sent who is a person nominated under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy
information rights (a “Nominated Person”) may, under an agreement between him/her and the shareholder by whom he/ she was
nominated, have a right to be appointed (or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy for the General Meeting. If a Nominated
Person has no such proxy appointment right or does not wish to exercise it, he/she may, under any such agreement, have a right
to give instructions to the shareholder as to the exercise of voting rights.

7.     The right of shareholders to appoint proxies above does not apply to Nominated Persons.

8.     Pursuant to regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, the Company gives notice that only those
shareholders included in the register of members of the Company at 6.00 p.m. on 8 January 2013 or, if the meeting is adjourned,
in the register of members at 6.00 p.m. on the day which is two days before the day of any adjourned meeting, will be entitled
to attend and to vote at the General Meeting in respect of the number of shares registered in their names at that time. Changes to
entries on the share register after 6.00 p.m. on 8 January 2013, or, if the meeting is adjourned, in the register of members at 6.00
p.m. on the day which is two days before the day of any adjourned meeting, will be disregarded in determining the rights of any
person to attend or vote at the General Meeting.

9.     As at 18 December 2012, the Company’s issued share capital comprised 25,292,164 ordinary shares of 10 pence each. Each
ordinary share carries the right to one vote at a general meeting of the Company and, therefore, the total number of voting rights
in the Company as at 18 December 2012 is 25,292,164.

10.   CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so
for the General Meeting and any adjournment(s) of the meeting by using the procedures described in the CREST Manual
(available via www.euroclear.com/CREST). CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST
members who have appointed a service provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will
be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf.

11.   In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a
“CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited’s
specifications, and must contain the information required for such instruction, as described in the CREST Manual. The message,
regardless of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or is an amendment to the instruction given to a previously
appointed proxy must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be received by the Company’s agent (ID RA19), by the latest
time for receipt of proxy appointments set out in paragraph 2 above. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the
time (as determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the Company’s agent
is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time any change of
instructions to proxies appointed through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means.

12.   CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors, or voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK &
Ireland Limited does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages. Normal system timings and
limitations will, therefore, apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST
member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST personal member, or sponsored member, or has appointed any
voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be
necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time. In this connection,
CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to those
sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations of the CREST system and timings.

13.   You may, if you wish, register the appointment of a proxy electronically by visiting www.sharevote.co.uk. To use this service you
will need your Voting ID, Task ID and Shareholder Reference Number printed on the accompanying Form of Proxy. Full details
of the procedure are given on the website at www.sharevote.co.uk.

14.   Any member attending the meeting has the right to ask questions. The Company must answer any such question relating to the
business being dealt with at the meeting but no such answer need be given if (a) to do so would interfere unduly with the
preparation for the meeting or involve the disclosure of confidential information, (b) the answer has already been given on a
website in the form of an answer to a question, or (c) it is undesirable in the interests of the Company or the good order of the
meeting that the question be answered.
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15.   You may not use any electronic address provided in this Notice or any related documents to communicate with the Company for
any purposes other than those expressly stated.

16.   A copy of this Notice, and other information required by section 311A of the Companies Act 2006, can be found at
www.puricore.com.
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